
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

 
 

June 8, 2021 



Rolling Hills 
 Community Development District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 

 
June 2, 2021 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Rolling Hills Community 
Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Audit Committee Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 
Development District will be held Tuesday, June 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills 
Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043. 
Immediately following will be the regular meeting. Following is the advance agenda for the 
meeting: 
 
Audit Committee Meeting 
 I. Roll Call 
 II. Review and Ranking of Audit RFP Proposals 
 III. Other Business 
 IV. Adjournment 
 
Regular Business Meeting 
 I. Roll Call 
 II. Audience Comments 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the April 13, 2021 Meeting 
 IV. Acceptance of the Minutes of the April 13, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting 
 V. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 
 VI. Update Regarding Series 2021 Project 
 VII. Consideration of Work Authorization with Alliance 
 VIII. Ratification of Requisitions (019-030) 
 IX. Consideration of Audit Committee’s Ranking of Proposals 
 X. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2022 Proposal from Riverside Management Services, Inc.  
 XI. Consideration of Resolution 2021-06 Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 

2022 and Setting a Public Date (August 10, 2021) 
 XII. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement with The School Board of Clay County, Florida 

Regarding the Use of the District’s Amenity Complex Facilities 
 XIII. Other Business 
 XIV. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney - E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding 
  B. Engineer  
  C. Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (774) 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
   2. BYO Proposal (Shade Umbrella) 



2 

   3. BYO Proposal (Shade) 
 XV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 XVI. Audience Comments 
XVII. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
  C. Check Register 
XVIII. Next Scheduled Meeting: August 10, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity 

Center 
 XIX. Adjournment 
 
Enclosed for your review and approval is a copy of the minutes from the April 13, 2021 meeting. 
 
The fourth order of business is acceptance of the minutes of the April 13, 2021 audit committee 
meeting, which are enclosed for your review. 
 
The seventh order of business is consideration of work authorization, which will be sent under 
separate cover. 
 
The eighth order of business is ratification of requisitions, which are enclosed for your review. 
 
The ninth order of business is consideration of audit committee’s ranking of proposals.  A 
ranking sheet is enclosed for your review. 
 
The tenth order of business is consideration of proposal from RMS, which is enclosed for your 
review. 
 
The eleventh order of business is approval of the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2022 and 
consideration of Resolution 2021-06, which is enclosed for your review along with a copy of the 
proposed budget.  Approval of the proposed budget begins the budget process, allowing in 
excess of 60 days for Board and staff input prior to a public hearing and adoption of the budget.   
 
The twelfth order of business is ratification of agreement with Clay County School Board, which 
will be sent under separate cover. 
 
Enclosed under the Attorney’s Report is a copy of the E-Verify memorandum. 
 
Enclosed under the Manager’s Report is a letter indicating the number of registered voters. 
 
Enclosed under the Operations / Amenity Manager’s report are the items as outlined above. 
 
Enclosed are the financials, assessment receipt schedule and the check register. 
 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature, and any additional support material will be 
presented and discussed at the meeting.  If you have any questions in the meantime, please feel 
free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James Oliver 
James Oliver 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



 Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

Agenda 
 
 

Tuesday  Rolling Hills Amenity Center 
June 8, 2021 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 
6:00 p.m. Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 
 District Website: www.rollinghillscdd.com 
  
  
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the April 13, 2021 Meeting 
 
 IV. Acceptance of the Minutes of the April 13, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting 
 
 V. Update Regarding Series 2020 Project 
 
 VI. Update Regarding Series 2021 Project 
 
 VII. Consideration of Work Authorization with Alliance 
 
 VIII. Ratification of Requisitions (019-030) 
 
 IX. Consideration of Audit Committee’s Ranking of Proposals 
 
 X. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2022 Proposal from Riverside Management Services, Inc.  
 
 XI. Consideration of Resolution 2021-06 Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 

2022 and Setting a Public Date (August 10, 2021) 
 
 XII. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement with The School Board of Clay County, Florida 

Regarding the Use of the District’s Amenity Complex Facilities 
 
 XIII. Other Business 
 
 XIV. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney - E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding 
   



  B. Engineer  
  
  C. Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (774) 
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. BYO Proposal (Shade Umbrella) 
 
   3. BYO Proposal (Shade) 
 
 XV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 XVI. Audience Comments 
 
XVII. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
XVIII. Next Scheduled Meeting: August 10, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity 

Center 
 
 XIX. Adjournment 
 
 
Community Interest: 
 A. Amenity Center – Chairperson Jordan 
 B. Security & Technology –Supervisor Miller 
 C. Communications, Programming/Events, Finance & Accounting – Vice Chairman Mattera 
 D. Landscape & Pond Maintenance – Supervisor Church  
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 



ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in the Rolling Hills Amenity 

Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Shannon Jordan Chairperson 
 Frank Mattera Vice Chairman 
 Rose Bock Supervisor 
 David Church Supervisor 
 John Miller Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel by (telephone) 
 Keith Hadden District Engineer 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Tom Chewning Riverside Management 
 Marilee Giles GMS, LLC 
 Sete Zare MBS Capital Markets, LLC (by telephone) 
 Bill Huck Waltham Development 
 Ken Peterson Waltham Development 
 Scott Blanck Garden Street Communities Southeast, LLC 
 Mike Bianchi Adams McDougal 
 Coach Chad Rix Clay High School Swim Team 
 Coach Carol McDougal Clay High School Swim Team 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Notice of Publication 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

 Affidavits of publication of the notices of rulemaking and rule development, regular board 

meeting and audit committee meeting were included in the agenda package. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the February 9, 
2021 Meeting 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the minutes of the February 9, 2021 meeting were approved as 
presented. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Developer’s Update 

 Mr. Oliver stated Bill Huck, Managing Director and CEO of Common Bond Capital, who 

acquired this development in 2012 after the great recession, is here speak with us tonight.  He has 

been very important in getting this community up to standard after it went through financial 

difficulties during the economic downturn.  Also here tonight is Ken Peterson, one of the partners 

on the project, as well as Scott Blanck of Garden Street Communities, which will  develop the next 

phase of Rolling Hills.  I would like to turn it over to Bill for his comments to the Board and 

residents. 

 Mr. Huck stated my primary purpose for being here this evening are two, the first is to 

thank you and your professional staff for the support and cooperation, advice and cheerleading 

that our company has enjoyed, Ken Peterson, my partner and I since 2012 when we stepped into a 

situation where there had been a recession, the initial developer lost this property to its bank, we 

acquired the property from the bank, worked with your predecessors on the board, Rose Bock was 

there from the beginning and your professional staff to restructure the bond debt, sell lots to 

builders who subsequently built homes.  We are now in the process under a different hat that I 

wear as Waltham Development Company in developing the 139 lots in what we call the Christmas 

tree area of your community.  Our second purpose for being here is to let you know that in the last 

three weeks we have entered into a purchase and sale agreement to sell the remaining 247 entitled 

lots to Garden Street Communities.  Garden Street Communities is a development company 

represented by Scott Blanck, who is more capable in introducing his company and he can do that 

in a moment.  I want to thank each of you and your professional staff, Katie Buchanan and others 

who are on the phone who have been so helpful to us over the last nine or ten years of our position 

in the community.  We will be around for another year and a half or so as we continue to build out 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

the 139 lots that are under construction now, but this is the appropriate time for us to say, thank 

you. 

 Mr. Bill Huck and Ken Peterson left the meeting at this time. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Matters Related to Issuance 
of Series 2021 Bonds 

 Mr. Oliver stated I want to introduce Scott Blanck of Garden Street Communities, the entity 

that would buy the remaining lands and part of that is they will need to build the infrastructure so 

they can build lots and sell homes.  I will turn it over to Katie and Sete so they can talk about the 

funding agreement and the investment banking agreement.   

 

A. Consideration of Bond Financing Team Funding Agreement with Garden Street 
Communities Southeast, LLC 

 Ms. Buchanan stated this is the form of funding agreement that is similar to what you have 

seen before that we executed in connection with the 2020 Bonds that we issued with Waltham.  

The whereas clauses describe the districts existence, that the developer is under contract to 

purchase certain lands within the district’s boundaries and indicates that the developer has 

requested the district to undertake activities related to the issuance of bonds on their property.  In 

exchange for the district undertaking that work the developer has agreed to provide funding with 

the understanding that the developer will only be responsible for activities that they have 

authorized and approved in advance.  Given that the only reason we would move forward with the 

bonds is if the developer did in fact request that action.  I don’t see that to be a problem for the 

district because that is true.   

 Paragraph C describes the type of fees that the developer would likely be responsible for.  

Almost all these fees if not every fee that is identified would be reimbursable with bond proceeds.  

The goal is to make sure that none of the district’s operating funds are used towards any proposed 

bond issuance.  Also, to make sure that the developer feels comfortable that the district will assist 

any issuance of bonds and the district will also include its fees in the cost of issuance so they will 

be paid out of bond proceeds.  The district has the obligation to capitalize so if we do issue bonds, 

we will be required to reimburse any expenses identified by the developer under this agreement 

within 45 days of issuance.  The rest of the contract is boilerplate in nature but I’m happy to take 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

4 

any questions.  The exhibits give you an idea of the property we are discussing that would be 

subject to any future bond issuance. 

 As a general note that any changes to assessment levels are only going to impact the lands 

we are discussing right now.  We wouldn’t be issuing bonds that would impact or affect the 

assessments of anyone else in the community.  This is similar to the structure that we undertook 

last time and I wanted to give you those reassurances. 

 Ms. Jordan asked are we referencing Phase B and C in Exhibit A? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated correct.   

 Ms. Jordan asked are there additional properties remaining within Rolling Hills to be 

developed? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I believe so. 

 Mr. Hadden pointed out on a map the two parcels that Garden Street is buying and stated 

they are building the Christmas tree right now.  There is another piece that Bill Huck and his group 

still owns, but it doesn’t have any development plans.  They have to go back to the county and say 

if they wanted to build one lot over there or 100 lots or whatever and go through the development 

process again. 

 Ms. Jordan stated all these lots look like property lots, none of them look like parks. 

 Mr. Hadden responded there are several parks. 

 Ms. Jordan asked will there be additional amenities for the residents?  Would this many 

lots overcast our current amenities? 

 Mr. Hadden stated when the development work was originally done the county, state and 

all those entities approved the 761 lots with this one amenity center.  I know some people were 

told by a realtor or whomever that there was going to be another amenity center in the back, but it 

was never planned.  That is not to say that if the community wanted to build one back there they 

could approach Bill Huck about some of that land that doesn’t have any development rights 

attached to it and say, can we buy that and build something.  That is something you can certainly 

do once you have 751 homeowners out here you will be in a better cash flow position.  There are 

neighborhood pocket parks like you have out here now, but there is no second amenity. 

 Ms. Jordan asked are the whited out areas protected lands? 

 Mr. Hadden responded yes those are all in conservation easements that have already been 

given to the water management district.  Those are areas that will be protected. 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

5 

 Mr. Church asked with regard to the planned pocket parks is there any undertaking of the 

proper drainage and irrigation so they will have decent looking lawns?  We have pocket parks that 

look like the desert. 

 Mr. Hadden responded every pocket park we stub a potable water and reuse water so that 

when it is developed if you want a water fountain you can and if you want to have irrigation you 

can.  The pocket parks that are out there today you could put in an irrigation system if you so 

desire.   

 Ms. Jordan asked in the event of a downturn in the economy and this developer decides 

they are not going to develop, what happens? 

 Mr. Oliver asked do you mean if they purchase the land and didn’t develop it? 

 Ms. Jordan stated yes. 

 Mr. Oliver stated they likely would sell it to another developer who would develop it. 

 Ms. Jordan stated but the bonds belong to us. 

 Mr. Oliver stated the bonds belong to the bondholder.  The district issues the bonds. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I think Shannon is asking what the security is for the bonds.  If the 

developer says I’m walking away then what happens is the district forecloses on the real property 

and takes the property in lieu of the continued payment of special assessments.  Then like Jim is 

describing, the bondholders hire an expert to come in and identify another developer and then that 

developer picks up the project and takes it from there.  What does not happen is that any bonds 

that are secured by B and C that obligation would never be transferred to another lot in the 

community.  It is only on the dirt that secures the special assessments.   

 Ms. Jordan asked about the construction of a road to accommodate construction traffic. 

 Mr. Hadden stated it is a county road and it is on the county schedule to build but they 

won’t let us build it and then reimburse us.  It would be $400,000 that we would pay and never 

recoup.  The county has said you can use it for construction access and the county will build that 

road, it is on their agenda to pave and they will, but they are not going to commit as to when it will 

be paved.  If Scott wanted to on his own, he could and from a marketing standpoint at some point 

he may say, let’s do it.  I don’t know but it is a $400,000 question.  

 Mr. Miller stated looking at the amount of development in Phase B and C, Bradley Creek 

Parkway is not designed to handle that amount of traffic, so something is going to have to be done 

in order to protect the rest of the families traveling on those roads now.  It is too narrow.   



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

6 

 Mr. Hadden stated I master planned everything out here.  I did all the engineering plans 

and they were all approved by the county for all 761 lots to come through the entrance and at that 

point be diverted into the community as we see it now or to be tied into the 53 lots that Richmond 

America built about a year and a half ago.  There are two points of access, we designed it per the 

county’s requirements and that size we have is the size they mandated.  A secondary access point 

would be better. 

 Mr. Miller asked is this something that we as a committee should approach the county on 

at this point in time so they are aware that is going to have to be done sooner than later? 

 Ms. Jordan stated I think with the backing of the developer maybe we could get the county 

to move forward with that sooner.  Is that possible? 

 Mr. Hadden stated the more people you can have knock on a commissioner’s door or the 

county manager’s door the better.  That is the way to get things done in Clay County.   

 Mr. Oliver stated right now we are focused on this funding agreement.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I have some concerns but as a builder if you are willing to work with us 

with the county commission to get that done. 

 Mr. Blanck stated that would be a benefit to both of us.  We are going to be in this for 

several years, we want to be a partner and anything we can do with the county together, larger 

numbers make a bigger impression. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Mattera with all in 
favor the bond team financing funding agreement with Garden Street 
Communities Southeast, LLC was approved. 

 

B. Investment Banking Agreement 

 Mr. Oliver stated Sete Zare with MBS Capital Markets is on the phone and she is going to 

discuss the investment banking agreement.  You probably met her when we did the Series 2020 

Bonds. 

 Ms. Zare stated we serve as the underwriter for the district since its inception.  The 

agreement before you is very similar to what we presented last year when you did the 2019 

issuance; it also provides for a 2% of par fee, which is contingent upon bond closing and it is paid 

out of bond proceeds.   

 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

7 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the investment banking agreement with MBS Capital Markets, LLC 
was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Series 2020 Construction Matters 

A. Project Update by Engineer 

 Mr. Hadden stated we are on schedule and the pipes will be going in the ground shortly.  

The pond is almost complete, they are undercutting the roads right now.  I know they repaired a 

couple fences that were hit and if you have complaints from any resident, let us know.  They are 

trying to minimize the impact from all their construction.  It is going to be worse when we start 

building houses, because every house has plumbers, electricians and foundation people and that 

kind of thing.  Luckily there is only one homebuilder not three or four.   

 

B. Ratification of Requisitions 007-013 & 015-018 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
requisitions 007-013 and 015-018 were ratified. 

 

C. Consideration of Change Order 

 Mr. Hadden stated there is one change order and it is a dollar change order and a time 

change order and both are correct and I recommend approval for both.  There were cost increases 

because the cost of materials went up and this is about an 11% cost increase but if you keep in 

mind that we are saving 7% by us doing the direct purchase, the net is only 4%.  We knew that 

was happening because the cost of all materials is going up.  The time change order is because of 

some hoops the county had them jump through and I totally agree with that and they will still be 

finished well before LGI is ready to start building houses.   

 Ms. Jordan asked is there a dollar amount associated with the extended time? 

 Ms. Buchanan responded there is a liquidated damages provision, but this additional time 

doesn’t relate to Vallencourt’s performance.  It wouldn’t be appropriate for us to penalize them for 

their inability to get the work done.   

 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

8 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Mattera with all in 
favor change order no. 1 with Vallencourt was approved. 

 

D. Consideration of Proposals 

 Mr. Oliver stated we have Coach McDougal and Coach Rix here from the Clay High 

School Swim Team and I would like to amend the agenda to add this item, consideration of renewal 

of agreement with the swim team. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the agenda was amended to consider swim team agreement renewal. 

 

 Consideration of Swim Team Agreement Renewal 

 Mr. Oliver stated you have had a longstanding relationship with the district having swim 

team practices and meets here in the past.  Typically, what has happened, the board has designated 

the chair to work with staff and the swim team to coordinate an agreement with district counsel 

and they brought it up a littler earlier this year.   

 Coach McDougal stated we have been here ten years, we have had an Olympic athlete a 

Clay High graduate for your swimmer in this pool.  We started a few years ago starting summer 

conditioning and we wanted to start a couple weeks earlier this year before school lets out.  We do 

our best not to inconvenience anybody as a resident.  If there is a resident who wants to swim laps, 

we open a lane to them.  The only area we use is the competition pool part, we don’t use any other 

part of the pool.  We have requested the last two weeks in May, Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday 

after school for two hours from 2:30 to 4:30.  When school lets out we swim Tuesday, Wednesday 

and Thursday mornings from 8:00 to 10:00 and in the past I have only had three residents come in 

to swim laps in the morning.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Mattera seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in 
favor renewal of the swim team agreement with Clay High Swim 
Team was approved and the chair or vice chair were authorized to 
work with staff and the swim team to coordinate an agreement with 
district counsel.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing Regarding the Adoption of 
District Rates, Resolution 2021-05 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

9 

 Mr. Oliver stated we discussed this at the last meeting and the board set a public hearing 

to consider rates.  Exhibit A to the resolution lists the three rates we are looking at tonight.  One is 

the non-refundable room rental fee so that when residents rent this room for private functions that 

is the fee they would pay and the recommendation is that it be $75.  Then we have the room rental 

deposit and this is refundable if after the event it is cleaned up, there is no damage, the resident 

would get a full refund and the recommended amount is $150.  The rates before COVID were $50 

and $50.  The last proposed rate is a non-resident annual user fee of $2,500.  Because we built this 

infrastructure with tax-exempt bonds we have to allow non-residents the opportunity to use these 

facilities at a fair price.  When this was built in 2008 or so I believe the annual amount was set at 

$1,800.  There have been cost increase since that time and we are learning from other districts and 

we think that should be increased and the notice is at $2,500.  Those are the three things for the 

board to consider tonight.  Once we have had some discussion, we will open the public hearing 

you can take comments from the public regarding these rates. We will  then close the public hearing 

and the Board can vote.  We can have more discussion about the three rates.  The rental fee is 

historically pretty low compared to other districts.  The refundable deposit is fully returned if 

everything is cleaned up and there is no damage.  Finally, the non-resident annual user fee 

increasing to $2,500, which wouldn’t impact anybody in this room.  I think we only had one family 

a year take advantage of that rate.  If that rate is too high here, they can shop around at other 

districts. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I think the rental deposit of $150 is too high on top of the non-refundable 

room rental fee.   

 Mr. Oliver stated a solution to that may be that they can pay with two checks, first is the 

$75 rental fee and here is the $150 check and it will not be deposited it will be handed back to the 

person once they clear the room.   

 Ms. Jordan stated it is irresponsible to write a check that you hope doesn’t get cashed.   

 Mr. Mattera asked what if they don’t have the money to cover that check?  If you lower 

the deposit and they break something and it is more than the deposit they can have the money.  To 

me the rental should be $75 no matter what.  The reason I brought up the deposit is because if they 

break a chair it is going to be more than what we are asking for a deposit.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I think the deposit should be the same as the rental fee of $75.  The $150 

doesn’t make sense. 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

10 

 Mr. Oliver stated if the deposit does not cover damages which may occur and the resident 

does not subsequently cover the costs of repairs or cleanup, future rentals by that person can be 

blocked. 

 Ms. Jordan asked how many incidents did we have where the resident did not pay for 

damages? 

 Mr. Oca stated I have had to keep three deposits so far. 

 Ms. Jordan asked in how many years? 

 Mr. Oca responded eight years. 

 Ms. Jordan stated three deposits in eight years.  Were any of them this year or last year?   

 Mr. Oca stated not this year and we didn’t have any rentals last year due to COVID.  A $50 

deposit doesn’t cover all you need to replace.  We had four chairs broken, they are about $100 

each and I only have 12 instead of 16.  I never recovered that cost.   

 Ms. Jordan stated those chairs are used by everybody and their brother so we can’t say that 

it was done by someone paying a $50 for a party.  In eight years we kept three deposits I don’t 

think it warrants asking people to pay $150 deposit.  I don’t see that our residents are going to tear 

up the place.  $75 is fine.   

 Mr. Miller stated concerning breakage, each of us are homeowners or renters and we have 

insurance and in that policy is a liability coverage.  That liability coverage covers property of 

others and it would be covered under that.  You can bill the individual and direct them to contact 

their insurance company to file a claim. 

 Ms. Jordan stated you don’t want to file a claim on your insurance for $50.  You have a 

$1,000 deductible and then you would have to pay more for insurance.   

 Mr. Miller stated liability insurance is non-deductible.  You direct that to them and they 

have a choice, to file an insurance claim or they can pay for it. 

 Mr. Church stated the $175 would cover a chair.   

 Mr. Oliver stated you have had a good discussion I would like to open the public hearing, 

take audience comments and this is not to go back and forth but to hear their comments so you can 

consider them.  Once we have closed the public hearing ,we will turn it back over to the board for 

discussion and among the five of you decide what the motion will be and take the vote. 

 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

11 

On MOTION by Mr. Mattera seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the public hearing was opened. 

 

 A resident asked who pays if the chairs are broken? 

 Ms. Jordan stated I assume it will be the CDD fees or reserves. 

 A resident asked why should someone be penalized if they are having a party here if there 

is no property broken?   

 A resident asked how much is the facility used? 

 Mr. Oca stated we have rentals every weekend up until school starts. 

 A resident stated if you raise the price you are going to discourage the usage. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I don’t think asking $75 for a rental will discourage usage but asking 

them to put down $150 damage deposit will. 

 A resident stated if you are having a party you are talking about $225 just to have the room. 

 Mr. Mattera stated the rental is $75, the $150 is only if you damage it. 

 A resident stated you have to come up with $225 for a party.  I’m more likely to have a 

party if it is $175 and not $225.   

 A resident stated I understand what he is saying that the price makes the decision.  There 

are a lot of people who would not have the money and I would not write a bad check.  I do the 

cashiers check for the rental and then the other check for the deposit.  It may cost $100 to repair a 

chair but that is a used chair and they have been sitting out for how many years so raising it to pay 

for what it would cost for the chair you have to take into consideration you are replacing a used 

chair that is used by all of us.  As homeowners we pay a lot to live here, we pay a lot for the CDD 

to live here.  We moved here for the privilege of being able to rent this stuff and be able to utilize 

this stuff and to have that party and have that guest.  It is phenomenal to be able to do that and 

increasing that fee for some people who don’t have the money that can barely afford to live here 

it hurts, but I understand if you have a party and break stuff you lose.  Take notice that the $75 and 

$75 would be okay if we need to raise it.  At $150 between the two costs you are going to make 

sure your guests are doing what they should. 

 A resident stated I see both sides and maybe meet in the middle, I don’t know that it is in 

the best condition to validate the $150; $75 and $75 would be feasible.  If we invest in other 

furniture then that may justify an increase. 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

12 

 Ms. Bock asked if one of the five of us will make a motion that our fees be whatever and 

if that doesn’t get a second that would die? 

 Mr. Oliver responded yes. 

 Ms. Bock stated then someone else can make a motion.   

 Mr. Oliver stated right. 

 Ms. Bock stated that is a good way for five people to come up with one answer. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Mattera seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in 
favor Resolution 2021-05 was adopted with the following changes to 
Exhibit A: the non-fundable room rental fee $75 and the room rental 
deposit fee $75. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the public hearing was closed. 

 

 Mr. Oliver stated we approved the $75 and $75.  Are we fine with the $2,500 for the non-

resident user fee? 

 The board members indicated their agreement with the $2,500. 

 Mr. Oliver stated I will ask Frank to amend his motion. 

 

Mr. Mattera amended his motion to read: $75 for rental room fee, $75 
for refundable room rental deposit and $2,500 for non-resident 
annual user fee and Ms. Jordan seconded the amended motion and 
with all in favor the amended motion passed. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Amenity Center Policies 

 Mr. Oliver stated I spoke with Freddie, he didn’t have any recommended changes, I know 

you had quite a few changes last year.  During you review you suggested changes and if you want 

to bring them up now you could or you could bring them up to Freddie.  We can make revisions 

to the amenity policies at any CDD meeting, it is not a public hearing like we just had. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals Related to 
Operations & Maintenance of District 
Facilities and Common Areas 

 There being none, the next item followed. 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

13 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Draft Capital Reserve Study 

 Mr. Oliver stated this capital reserve report is some take home reading.   I put this on the 

agenda to give you an opportunity to see the district’s needs in terms of repairs and replacements 

over the next 30 years or so.  This report looks at all of the assets the district owns, all the way 

from the entry to this facility, the streetlights and certain other improvements.  It lists all these 

facilities and shows the date it was put into service, the useful expected life, and projected  

replacement cost.  Charlie Sheppard of Community Advisors inputs this data into his capital resrve 

program for financial modellling. Ther report provides a recommendation of how much money 

each year the district should contribute to the capital reserve account for future repairs and 

replacements.  It is not a requirement to go with the report’s recommendations, but it is a good 

business tool as you go through the budgeting process for the upcoming year.  This is still in draft 

form and I would call your attention to page 1.2 it says for FY 2021 budget but it is for fiscal year 

2021/2022, which begins October 1st, the contribution he recommends is $75,000 and then you 

can see it escalates by about 3% over the next several years so that you slowly build up your capital 

reserves.  We will talk about this more as we go through the budget process but when I bring a 

proposed budget to you in June I will have this $75,000 in that line item.  As we refine the budget 

over the summer and approach the August public hearing for budget adoption, the board will 

decide what they want to fund for the capital reserve contribution.   

 Ms. Jordan asked does this include the areas we are building and their money that is coming 

in? 

 Mr. Oliver responded this only includes in terms of current capital assets, the assets that 

are in the ground right now.  As additional assets are acquired or constructed by the district, we 

update the report. It is a living document and you can have it updated every three or four years.  

As new facilities come online you will add these to the list. 

 Ms. Jordan asked as we get start getting those CDD funds, we could technically get out of 

this red? 

 Mr. Oliver stated yes, as contribtions ramp up annually.  Take a look at report. When new 

capital spending is requested, we should remember to take care of existing facilities.  

 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

14 

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Board Guidance Regarding Preparation of 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Budget 

  Mr. Oliver stated I would like to briefly recess this meeting and have an audit 

committee meeting and we will resume this meeting. 

 The board took a short recess and after conducting the audit committee meeting, then 

reconvened the regular board meeting.  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Audit Criteria and Authorization 
for Staff to Publish an RFP for Auditing 
Services 

 Mr. Oliver stated now we will resume the CDD meeting and our first action is to approve 

the audit criteria and direct staff to issue an RFP for audit proposals. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Ms. Bock with all in favor 
the evaluation criteria approved by the audit committee was accepted 
and staff was authorized to issue an RFP for audit services. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

 A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 B. Engineer 

 Ms. Jordan stated there is a second pothole. 

 Mr. Church stated there is a huge sinkhole on Hidden Meadows.  It has caution tape around 

it, but half the street is almost into it.  It is bad. 

 Mr. Hadden stated public works must have been out to put out cones and tape out there.  If 

you don’t see something fixed in the next two weeks have Freddie track me down so I can follow-

up on it. 

 

 C. Manager 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

15 

 Mr. Oliver stated there is a letter in front of you that is from the chairperson of our district 

to the vice chairman of the Clay County Commission, Wayne Bolla.  I have interacted with Wayne 

in other districts such as Pine Ridge Plantation and Eagle Landing and he has always been 

responsive.  If we send something to him from the district he will get it to the appropriate party at 

the county.  It probably goes to the county manager and then will probably go to road and bridges 

or engineering.  Eventually, Keith will get involved with this because there are three things we 

want to do with this letter.  This letter is about the issue of trying to find a parking solution on 

county roads within Rolling Hills so that we will not impair the ability of emergency vehicles to 

go through the community in response to an emergency and school buses also.  This is to open that 

conversation and it is from the chairperson of the district.  What we will do based on this is set up 

a meeting with the appropriate people at county staff, to not only address the parking issue because 

we want them to do the best practices they have in other districts because it is (A) to their benefit 

to solve this problem and (B) if something bad happens they have a letter from this district saying, 

we are telling you about a problem you have on your country roads here for not only emergency 

vehicles to get through but school buses.  The other thing that will be discussed are the potholes 

that have been here forever and those need to be addressed.  The third issue is a request for the 

crosswalk that we talked about in the back of the community.   

  

 

 D. Operations/Amenity Manger 

 1. Report 

 Mr. Oliver stated this may be the first time you have seen Tom Chewning.  He has been 

with RMS for many years and when I heard Tom was coming to this district I was thrilled because 

he has done a great job at St. Johns Golf & Country Club.  Welcome aboard. 

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

 Ms. Jordan stated the community held a game night and it was awesome and we would like 

to reserve this room one Saturday night a month for a game night and meet and greet event for 

residents.  I think it is reasonable to withhold rentals for that for one night a month to allow the 

residents to come up here and meet each other, socialize.   



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

16 

 We need to address with Tree Amigos where they are parking their trucks when they are 

doing their service and make sure they are not impeding traffic.   

 We have an ugly park that we do not have any money to improve but a prior Riverside 

employee had an idea to cover the ugly park bench.  I sent the information to Freddie.  I would 

like to look at that, we don’t have a lot of money and that may be something the board is willing 

to go forward and just get.  That is something I would like us to look into and get some quotes on. 

 Mr. Mattera stated we took a lot of phone numbers down and in speaking to Freddie he 

said a lot of times Saturday night is a rental.  We decided that we wanted to do it every other week 

and because we had everybody’s phone number if we spoke to Freddie a couple days before and 

he said the room is rented we were going to change it to a Friday night.  On a Saturday we can 

meet at 6, have food and start the games at 7:30.  Friday night because people work we can start 

until 7:30 that takes away the food part.  If you can guarantee one Saturday night a month that 

would be great and then we can play it by ear for the second Saturday.   

 Ms. Jordan stated if we can set the first Saturday of the month that way the residents always 

know they can come up here the first Saturday night and meet other residents.   

 Mr. Oliver stated I think it is fine, you make that determination.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the first Saturday of the month the meeting room will be 
reserved for residents meet and greet and game night. 

 

 Mr. Oliver stated if Freddie already has something on the books for any of those Saturdays 

work around it.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we are going to have a sign-in so if there are any damages all residents 

will absorb it and disburse the cost of any damage. 

 Mr. Church asked can we have Tree Amigos lower the hedges in the front by our signs?  

Some you can’t see anymore. 

 Mr. Chewning stated we will take care of it. 

 Mr. Mattera stated I talked about having a flea market here and last month when they did 

the one at Winn-Dixie I had 25 vendors who would be willing to come here.  I discussed it with 

Freddie because I had second thoughts on it because 25 vendors is going to fill up this parking lot.  

The only time they can come is a Sunday because Saturday they go all different places.  I have all 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

17 

the cards of the people who want to do it, but I think it is probably going to cost us more than make 

us because they are going to come here for free, they are going to tie up the whole parking lot on 

a Sunday and depending on how they leave because I saw Saturday afternoon when they were 

done and packing up, whoever owns that shopping center had to clean it.  We will put it on the 

back burner for now, but I have all their cards, they are willing to do it any time on a Sunday.  If 

we decide to do it then there are vendors who will come and set up.   

 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 A resident asked can you also ask them about the trees on the sidewalk between the two 

tennis courts?  They need to be trimmed a little bit through those walkways. 

 On the rules for the amenity center that they just passed.  They still have some of the same 

issues with the prices and I understand you voted differently but they still have the $50 and $150 

on there so when they submit all that can they make sure it matches the $75 and $75?  The 

timeframe for the tennis courts, these went back to 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.  I thought they went to 10 p.m.  

I want to make sure that what you do is matched up.   

 Mr. Oliver stated the resolution that was passed tonight had an exhibit of what was 

proposed but it was voted to be $75 and $75 and that will be changed.  They will match after this 

meeting. 

 A resident stated I go around the backside of the lake and get over here and there is no way 

I know that I’m not going through somebody’s yard if I proceed out to the road.  I assume since 

the mower goes through and they go back and mow that is nobody else’s property but there is 

nothing indicating that.  I don’t want to violate anybody’s privacy by walking on their property.  

Is that area between the two houses public property?  There are trees on both sides. 

 Ms. Jordan stated you are fine.   

  

 A resident asked is Adams taking the back lots that are not even talked about?  It is not the 

139. 

 Mr. Oliver stated it is not the 139.   

 A resident stated LGI is building those.   Is there a way to find out from Adams when they 

are trying to do the retirement age community?   

 Mr. Oliver stated I have not heard anything. 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

18 

 A resident asked is there any thought about putting a stoplight out here so when we get 

another thousand houses on the other side that people aren’t flying up and down? 

 Mr. Oliver stated I think what you are going to see is a lot of residents will probably start 

requesting that.  We have gone through the process before in other districts and then the county 

will have a traffic counts, they have certain criteria.  Eventually there may be a stoplight but there 

is a process. 

 

EIGHTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

 A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 A copy of the balance sheet and income statement were included in the agenda package. 

 

 B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 A copy of the assessment receipt schedule was included in the agenda package. 

 

 C. Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the check registers were approved. 

 

NINETEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting: June 8, 2021 @ 6:00 
p.m. at Rolling Hills Amenity Center 

 Mr. Oliver stated the next meeting is June 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. and we will also have an 

audit committee meeting. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 7:53 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 The Rolling Hills Community Development District audit committee met Tuesday, April 

13, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in the Rolling Hills Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green 

Cove Springs, Florida 32043. 

 

 Present were: 
 
 Shannon Jordan 
 Frank Mattera 
 Rose Bock 
 David Church 
 John Miller 
 Jim Oliver 
 Katie Buchanan (by telephone) 
 Keith Hadden 
 Freddie Oca 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the audit committee meeting to order. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Review and Selection of Audit RFP Criteria  

 Mr. Oliver stated Chapter 218, Florida Statutes requires that we go through the RFP process 

to select an auditor to perform the independent annual audit that is required of all units of 

government in Florida, including community development districts.  The audit committee first 

selects the evaluation criteria so that when we receive proposals you will rank those proposals 

based on that evaluation criteria.  Behind tab 13 of the agenda package is evaluation criteria that 

was developed by Hopping Green and it meets the statutory requirements for evaluation criteria.  

There are five criteria to consider and those are ability of personnel, proposer’s experience, 

understanding scope of work, ability to perform the required services and price.  When the 

committee approves this we will bring it to the board to approve it and when the board approves it 

they will direct staff to request audit proposals, we will reach out to many of the CPA firms that 

do districts throughout the state and we will bring them back to the audit committee, the audit 

committee will rank the proposals and the ranking will be brought to the board, the board will 



April 13, 2021 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

make a selection and direct staff to get an engagement letter from the top ranked proposer.  

Tonight, I’m asking you to approve the evaluation criteria as the audit committee. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the evaluation criteria was approved as presented.   

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the audit committee meeting adjourned. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

019 

ETM. 

$3,858.54 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incul'l'ed (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

thorized Offi er 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON·COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 P1·oject and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



Hadden Engineering, Inc. 
P.O. Box 9509 
Fleming Island, FL 32003 

April 7, 2021 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

17186.27000 
0197456 

Project 17186.27000 Rolling HIiis - CEI 
Professional Services rendered through April 3. 2021 

Total Fee 

Percent Complete 

77,170.87 

15.00 Total Earned 
Previous Fee Billing 
Current Fee Billing 

Total Fee 

11,575.63 
7,717.09 
3,858.54 

3,858.54 

Invoice Total this Period $3,858.54 ============== 
Outstanding Invoices 

Number 
0197118 
Total 

Date 
3/4/2021 

Balance 
3,858.55 
3.858.55 

England· Thim) &millar,lnc. 
~•l'l.lUISIS•SURVFl'OAS•GlS•lmOSCAf'fAACm'ECIS 

U71500SL~fl6ad•Ja<\.sw.le,Fbl!l.3nse•td~.$ffl•kl~.f0.9W 

CA«.mU-1 lc-@)31' 





REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The unde1·signed, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master T1·ust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

020 

V ALLENCOURT CONSTRUCTION CO. 

$214,965.97 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

J8( obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, ~nd has not pi·eviously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on th~ date hereof. 



'ALLENCOUR 
Construction Co. In 

INVOICE 

Date: 04/20/21 PerlodTo: 4/20/2021 

To: Rolling Hills Community Development District 
4 75 West Town Place Suite 114 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

Attn.: Accounts Payable/ Bill Tew 

Pa·oject Description: Rolll11g HIiis 139 Lots Phase A 
Bradley c,.eek Pkwy 

ORIOINALCONTRACTAMOUNT ................................................ -----------

ClfANOEOROllRSTOOAT,.---- ........................................................................ $ 

RllVISllOCONTRACT AMOUNT ................. ---- ----------- $ 
PERCENTAGl!COMPLET....__ ____ .......................... 12.16% 

WORl<COMPL6Tl!TO OATll ................. ________ ---- ---- $ 
STORP.DMATERIALS. ..... - ......... _________________ $ 

1'0TALCOMPLllTllO&STORllD•------------------ $ 

LllSS RETAINAGI!............................................................................................................................................. $ 
TOTAL EARNF.D LESS RETAINAGE.............................................................................................................. $ 

LHSSPREVIOUSDILllNGS•---- ------·------ $ 
CURRllNT oun. . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . • . . . • . . . . • . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 

Account Summary: Soles Sales 
This Period To Date 

Gross: 238,851.08 564,517,69 
Retalnagc: 23,805.11 56,451.77 

Net: 214,965.97 508,065.92 

Invoice#: 7057 

VCC Project#: 2020-52 

Appltcation #: 5 

$4,198,326.03 

445,496.73 
4,643,822.76 

564,517,69 

564,517.69 
56,451.77 

508,065.92 
293,099.95 

214,965,97 



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT AIA DOCUMENT G702 (Instructions on reverse side) PAGE 
TO: Rolling Hills Co=unity Development D 

475 West Town Place Suite 114 
PROJECT: Rolling Hills 139 Lots Phase A 

Bradley Creek Pkwy 

APPLICATION NO: 7057-5 

PERIOD TO: 04/20/21 

Distribution to: 

(X] OWNER 
fX1 ENGINEER St Augustine, FL 32092 

FROM: Vallencourt Construction Company, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1889 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

---

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT --- - --- -

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 

Change Orders approved in ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 
previous months by Owner 

TOTAL 

Approved this Month 

Number Date Approved 

1 4/26/2021 $ 445,496.73 

TOTALS $ 445,496.73 $ -
Net change by Change Orders $ 445,496.73 

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, 

information and belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been 

completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been 

paid by the Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment shown 

issued and payments received form the Owner, and that current payment shown 

herein is now doe. 

:;;c;. ~ Date: April 20, 2021 

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 

In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the 

data comprising the above application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the 

best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as 

indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and 
the Contractor is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED 

----·-· ----

ENGINEER'S PROJECT NO: N/A 

CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT NO: 2020-52 

Application is made for Payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract 

Continuation Sheet. AIA Document G703, is attached 

L ORIGINALCONTRACTSUM.-------------- $ 4,198,326.03 

2. Net change by Change Orde,rs-------------- $ 445,496.73 

3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 +- 2)----------- $ 4,643,822.76 

4. TOTAL COMPLETED &STORED TO DATc.--------

(Column G on G703) 

$ 564,517.69 

5. RETAINAGE: 

a. 0 % of Completed Work $ 

(Column D + E on G703) 
b. _%of Stored Materials$, __ _ 

(Column Fon G703) 

Total Retainage (Line Sa + 5b or 

56,45L77 

Total in Column 1 ofG703)r---------
6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGcc•;.._ __________ _ 

(Line 4 Less Line 5 Total) 

7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR 
PAYMENT (Line 6 from prior Certificate), ______ _ 

8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUt----------------

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAG~· ·---------

(Line 3 less Line 6) 

$ 56,45L77 

$ 508,065.92 

$ 293,099.9S 

$ 214,965.97 

$ 4,135,756.84 

State of: FLORIDA County of: $!-AX... . ... .,. '"· ., .. -·-----~~, _ ::::-:~~,;7-:·:::z:, ... -!~ 

Subscribed and sworn t~ befo" me this,. 20th ;;_.· .. :/·::·•<;:-,. -~~~fl-'--::··,· 'Ap_~}~~l Ii! 
Notary Public: l,,/J,((U,U._.J U~ :::-: ,~-; :•; l'li, C~-· ..... , .• ,, .. , . ..,G :.·, .. ,11 ~ 

I fl ~.. , •~• ~• e•• ·, •• ,,,,.0 r,•••1 :{ 

MyCo=issionExpires: 12/8/202~ · ... ," _-·_.' ;::. ·:_--·'<·.:: ... :.~',-'•-_-"_:., __ t 
• .-il '.. . .. • • •• , .. ,, .• - : " ,.. • " :: J. 

.$ ~ 4\.,-, 's.cr, 
:ount certified differs from the amount applied ~ / _ [ 

By: /llf(ff" Date:~"'Lf 
• .ot negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the 

Contractor named herein. Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without 

prej11di~ to any_rigbts of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract 
AIA DOCUMENT G702 * APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT• MAY 1983 EDITION* AIA*@ 1983 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YOUR AVENUE, N.W., WASHINGTON D.C. 20006 G702-1986 



Rolltng IUlli::Communlt.Y Development Dldrlct 
J.IAl>u...,,.,~,a,or,J.r,UCATklllAIIOCil\TlflCATl;fl)R t.l.ntrnt,con,w,. 

C-1ra<tofulp,oJ.c.r11/la1/onl, lllzlhod. 

la l:>l,wtlontbd<,w,l"'®Mnnul:ll<dlolht R~~tldo!ln. 

lhfCololl\!l l•~l',,nlndo ..i,,..,-.bNutUloup,lorllndtrnu ""11Jl'llly, 

A D C - HSctJnlON kllnmD .. OPll'O" ¥J.l~I 

,, ,,_,.ng11-n~ ~ .... wor .. ,609.224,26 •. 1-•-••0R\.Vnlffll $◄2,8S9,0S 
,. SWPPP $J3,862,1't ~, tl91,168.96 

"' $42,899.50 •. Seed and Mulch $56,&\7,80 

Paving and Sidewalks $612,571.43 

- $952,848.73 
Roadway Umterdtaln $59,G95.◄0 .•. $271,819,08 ... ca,m ' $209,683,..IO ,. ...... $973,218.13 

U, ... 0 .. .,1~,..on $162,107.85 

'"' 
__ ,ge 

$+1SA96.73 

TOTA > $4,H3,8:U.,76 

Schedule of Contract Values 

Rolllngffllls 139 LotsPhas♦A 
Dralllcy Crtok Pkwy 

D E 
~U:(lllll'UTUI 

--- --
U~IOJIM~Vll IUlfH~OO 

urLKAnM 

,a,q 

$ 84,966.65 $193,649.31 

$ 16,786.62 S3,S37.5' 

$ 6.0tS.84 Sl,!i69.26 

' 163,SlUO $21,91U6 

$ 

I 

' • 
' . 
' . 

' $ 

• 54,303.91 $12,119.61 

$ 32.5,666,61 $'138,8$1.08 

F 
11..\lUWS: 

rllllU!l'~f 

no,.., .... 
ll~Ul 

$ 

' ' ' ' I 
$ 

' $ 

s 

• 
' ' ' 
' ' ' ' ' $ 

' ' ' ' ' ' 
• 

Al'rl,1(,1,ll0H NUKIIR, 

AmR"Al!OHOAti: 

PUlOl>lO: 

VIXPAD/~trll, 

G 
IOU!. • 

COMIUIIO 1~,q 

,u,,noa1t 

,n.i.11 

fl•ldl 

278,615.95 .... 
20,32+,16 ., .. 
?,lies.to "'' 191,488.96 100¾ 

. 

66,503.52 .... 
. 
. 
. 
. 

56tfo17,69 "" 

$ 

' ' ' $ 

I 

' $ 

I 

' I 
' $ 

$ 

' ' ' $ 

$ 

' • 
' • 
' ' 
• 

7057•5 

04/'l0/'1.1 

04/20/21 
2010-SZ 

II 
M~~ 

TOfllMI 

•• 

33°'608.31 

22,SH.89 

6,211,(14 . 
42,899,60 

$6,6-17,80 

611,571.43 

952,8i8,73 

S9,0!J5,40 

271,819.08 

2:09,683.40 

973,218.41 

9S,60♦.13 

◄U.496,73 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

♦,079,SOS,07 

I ....... 

$ 27,861.60 

$ 2,032.42 

• 7S8.51 

' 19,149.'J0 

I 
$ 

' ' $ . 
' . 

' • • 6,650.35 

' ' ' I 
' • . 
• 
$ 

' ' ' • 
• 56,451,77 



Mc..1rcu:.: Mcln.J1rn..:Jiy,. President. IV'llkc- V..:allc-ncourt II. V,cc- Prc=.:1dcnt. 

Mike- V.allc-ncoun Sr-. Ch.:u.-m;ln J_ D.an•el V..lllcncourt,. ~/,cc Prc:::,dcnt. 
.... • St.:,,n Bn't<"'~ P.E •• \/ice Pr~'."ad,•ot 

~onstruction Co. Inc. 

Dhbloo<om -- ,...,_ ............. .......... Tot,I- a,y--Qty- ... 
Qty .......... TotalTWs hdod TDtllltD Datlll 

,._ 
..... 

Ola~And EartllWaric 
900 Cleamo Easl!me'lt 1 ACRE $U.939.l2 SU""9.l2 1 l. $0.00 $13,,3,.12 ,. ... 
900 S1te0ea!1na 48.6 ACRE $666.41 n,0.53 ... , u., $0.00 $32,31"7 .53 , .... 
1000 -- 60481.00 Cf $2.40 ~45154.40 0 40250 ,02so $9',CD0.00 s,,,,00.00 "" 
1001 ~ ra-Pond 50481.00 Cf $0.<17 $28426.07 0 40250 40250 s1a.,1:,.so s11,,17.S0 "" 
1108 Site Cut 26.270.00 Cf .., '4 $58=.80 US00 5500 1&000 Sl.4, s,0.00 $40,.320.00 ... 
1109 Place & eom-- AD 86 751.00 Cf $1.12 $97.1&1.12 US00 ,,,so S1250 $52,3C0.00 $CS,240.00 "" 
1110 Earthwork ~•- T,-- 1 LS 133 --- $33"·~ 0 0.2 o.: s,.u,.31. sc,, ... ,.:,1 ,,. 
1115 Fine Grade LOTS-No Pads 156 000.00 sY $0.25 m-.oo 0 18250 11250 $4,s,2.so s •• s,2.so u• 
lllB Flnalllressout 18 =.oo sY $0.53 $9=69 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
1122 Grade or "-~ Ditches on site 1-""0.00 L.F $9.02 $17 0<!7.l!O 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 0• 

uoo subsoil Stablllza t1cn 11=noo sY $7.54 a':1443,8.20 0 0 $0.00 $D.00 .. 
TOQI Prta:for-01'1 aeo,tng And EarttlwDrlcllloaS: ~"4.26 $193 ... 9.31 S278 615.9S ◄A 

011> En>Sioa And 5ecllment:C<>ntrolAnd PDlbltloa Abamnent 

303 Maintain Slit Fence 14•~.oo L.F Sl.36 $19 856.00 uoo 2000 3200 s:,no.00 $4.,352.00 22t 

304 NPOES•-,- 8 MO ~, .54 " e.n., l l. 4 sa1,.u $3,270.1' -601 Slit Fence T- m '•-••~ 14=,oo L.F """' ~-702.00 u,oo 14'00 $0.00 $12~'702.00 ioo• 

608 InletProtl:cl!on 23 EAOi 1Sl63.51 .. 7E0.73 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 '" T-PllcefarilllcweOlbEn>slanAIUl5edlmefttCOatrolAndPoll--Jlielns: ~ -.as C:":t:"-T'F.$4 $20 T7a 1#:. '" I I I 
01CS1mfflwallerl'Dllatloa- I I I 

300 INPOES Permit r.......u•ncz 18 IMO 1$1 =.26 s12=.08 l 1 ~ $1,SU.2C s,,277.04 sn 

301 INPOESPeml:J« 11 EAOi 1<1 =•06 Sl-06 1 1 $0.00 $l.,3oa.o, 100\-

I Total Prtce ror aboveOJ.cSIDrmwallor- Preftatloll JllemS: ~ -.-, ... ~-.26 ~~•n ss, 
I I I I 

OJ.d Demolition And Site Preparation I I I 
1104 stnn Tnn<nll ISO -oo ICf ,.,,n Sl.3S""'S.60 $0121 50128 $0.00 Sl.lS,3"S.CO , ... 
1105 Bu,vln Pond 150128.00 Cf 1$1.12 $56143.36 2"1.SO 24.978.00 S012& $21,975.l' ss,~i◄).36 lCOt 

Tot,,I Pttcefarabove Ol.d Demolltloa ADd Slle"'-ratlon Jlloms: S19"-a6 =',975.36 $19 ~q6 "" 
I I 

01.g 5ocl Bid i I 

1201 SlteSod 14~".oo sY 152.◄S •10 437.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
1203 Pond Sod IU.250.00 sY 1$2.◄5 •32<!62.50 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 ... 

Total PttceforabCM!OlQ SOd Bid Doms: sc~ ocg.50 SO.OD SD.OD "" 
I I 

01115eedlng And/ar Maldllng i 
1206 11.rll'\ffl"QfWavseed and Mulcf'I 15=.oo sY $0.33 $S 167.80 0 0 $0,00 $0.00 •• 
1207 !seed and M<kh Lots 156000.00 sY $0.33 S51 ◄80.llO 0 0 so.oo $0.00 •• 

I Total Prtce for above Oll> ~ /Wl/or MIIICIIIDg - $56 ~7.ao SO.OD m.oo "' 
I 

02 PaYlng Alld Sidewalk 
U02 su-ra-Sidewall< 1 =•.oo Sf $3.27 ... ~ .. 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 '" 
1402 a-Umera:lt lSU0.00 sY S13.4S ~•~s.so 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 '" 
1401 4• Base Sla!JIIZl!d N:zss Road To LS 2 =.oo sY IS6.60 <16-nn 0 0 $0.00 $0.QO •• 
1.503 1· -~It Pavement 1s -an.oo sY S6.~ $913.193.70 0 0 $D.00 $0.00 , .. 
1504 1••~w- is- 1-.n:oo Sf $7.~ $113 "' JO 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 , .. 
1517 PritneUmemd< 1S ~.00 sY S0.5S 1.50 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 '" 
1518 Tade Coat 1S >n.OQ sY $0.55 --·~ 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 ... 
1700 ~&~-- 1 LS $5400.11 SS400.ll 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
1804 18" Miami Curb & - gno.oo L.F $9.37 $91=40 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 '" 
2003 S'Sdewall: 12 000.00 SF ... .36 <52~0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 ... 
2005 A..0.A. HancDc:ao i;n,- 24 EAOi $163.51 $3.92-0.2'1 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
2006 A.OAMalS 240 SF "" .. <"933.£,0 0 0 $0.00 .$0.00 •• 

T-IPrt0eforabCM!02 Paw,gAnd Sldenlkllloms: -~ .... 00 .,, "" ... 
I I I 



03Dralaage5-lft 
3003 Dewatrr Slx>nn lllaln r-oo LF tl.5.7◄ 

.,~,02.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
3026 Q.n,Jnleto-6' 7 EAOI .. 012.50 $2, n:lil .so 0 0 $0.00 $0 .. 00 •• 
3027 Q.n, Jnlet 6-8' ~ 7 cAOI .. .v •• 129.89 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
3028 Q.n, Inlet &-10' ~ 5 EAOI ,., 183.37 $30,916.85 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
3029 Q.n, Inlet ll>-12' ,_, 3 EAOI $6964.20 <n,-J<n 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3058 c.cntrc1 Slrudure 12·14" ~ 1 EAOI '-•~.57 S9 -•.57 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3061 Slam Manhole ().6' ~ 2 EAOI , •• 10.87 ~ 1.7◄ 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
3062 Slx,nn - 6-lr ,.._, 2 EAOI $4.935.21 $9•=.54 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3063 StDrm Manhole 8-10" ~ 9 EAOI "·770.~ ....., 93-'i.41 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3064 SllormManhcle ~12' "-- 1 cAOI $5=66 ~5== 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3069 T·-D lnlet6-8'~ 1 EAOI $4=.38 <4."'4.38 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 

307◄ Yard Drain$ 9 EAOI 1~1 ,49.27 ~1, 'Ml .43 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3075 St0rm T- _..~ustments 45 EAOI $383.U •11,-.95 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3076 -- '16 cAOI •-7.84 $20600.64 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3077 Underdtam\ StlJbs From lnlels 600 LF .13 $17478.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3088 36"M'-EndSecllcn 2 EAOI ••• 60 $6 ,~,.20 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3089 '42"M-End5edion 2 EAOI 746.56 $13493.12 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3184 lS"RCPo-6'~ 385 LF .7◄ $21 ◄59.90 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3185 1S"RCP6-8'~ 789 LF 07 $45.817.23 0 0 so.co $0.00 .. 
3191 18" RCP o-6' ,.,._ - LF $62.37 $29 "' ... 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
3192 18" RCP 6-8' r - 189 LF $64.70 $12"""' 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

3193 18" RCP 8-10' 122 l.F .62 ""'469.64 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
3198 2◄"RCPo-6' 282 l.F $7◄.13 -~=.66 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

3199 24" RCP 6-8' 5il LF 76.◄7 $39-EJ 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3200 24" RCP &-10' 150 LF ""'G7 $1◄-"" 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3201 2-4" RCP 10-12' 0eeo - LF -38 $40 646.◄2 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
3206 30"RCP6-8'" 138 LF -.99 $13 798.62 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

3207 30" RCPS-111' 449 LF 113.90 .., ◄l.1O 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
3213 36"RCP6-8' ' - 29 LF 127.90 0 nM Q 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
321◄ 36" RCPS-1!1' 1-- LF 1•139.80 "" ,n,J!O 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
3215 36" RCP 10-12' ~ 141 LF 147.73 $20 829.93 0 0 so.oo $0-00 o, 
3216 36"RCP12-14" ~ 62 LF 157.65 $977◄.30 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

3219 '42" RCPD-6'' 66 LF ◄036 S9 
,.,,, 0 0 so.oo $0.00 o• 

3220 ◄r RCP 6-8' • 393 LF '1+!.94 $56 1.◄2 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 

3221 ◄r RCP &-10' 219 LF "6.&4 ... .96 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

3264 Undadra,\Oeancut 18 EAOI ln79.35 "' "" 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

3279 Pundl OUt Sb:,rm Drain SG09.00 LF $1.72 $10 ◄8 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
32S0 "IV Slx,nn Drain s-.oo LF $6.27 m .◄3 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 

TotalPrlcefor-031>12'-S-,-DIIIDS: S0.00 $0.00 •• 
I I I 

04 RoaclWay Un<l<nlrala I I I 

3253 I Road- uiderd01ln lioanoo 11.F l"2◄.83 =095.◄0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
I Total Prlcefor-04 RoadWay llndadralD DIIIDS: $59~= so.oo enoo .. 
I 

OSw.t>or-
701◄ 8" CR18 PVC warzr Main =oo l.F $19.25 ·-- 0 0 $0.00 :::o.oo •• 
7015 6" CIUS P\C-Maln 1=00 LF ~13.10 ... ~.50 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
7016 -4" CIUS PVC-Main 1, ....,.DO LF $9.16 •= 174.llO 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
7017 r watrr MaJn F« utt Sta- l ....... 00 LF $5.86 $9.024.◄0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
71)22 8"lointRl!5b'ainls 20 EAOI $170.01 !:3 ◄00.20 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
7023 6" Joint Reslrainls 30 EAOI S124.93 S3 '17.90 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
7053 8"x8" Ta• Slv. and VlllYe 1 EAOI $5'"".B!l $S ~-·.., 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 Ot 

7063 ◄-l<2"Tim saddleandY.,11/e 1 EAOI ll"'4.00 $1 574.00 • 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
708◄ 8" XS' Cross 2 EAOI •-.84 <2 =68 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
7fH7 8" GaleVOIYe 2 EACH '"l..08 '12:762.16 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
7098 6"Gall'!Va!Y1! 12 EAOI <>19.~ Sll.033.88 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 

710◄ vai.eeaxlnstallatlon 14 EAOI 165.21 ..,= 94 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
7105 Ausi'ino"'"'~nt 6 EAOI 1~ == .. 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
7106 -~~- 6 EAOI $2=.◄◄ 51720◄.64 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
7132 8x8"Tee 1 EAOI =.62 $559.62 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 

7140 6x6"Tee 6 EAOI ., 56.82 0 ◄0.92 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 0\ 

715◄ 6"90Bend 6 EAOI 
~~-80 

... = 80 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 0\ 

7161 •·◄sBend 2 cAOI $464.56 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 

7187 8x6" R!ducer 2 EAOI $302.96 $605.92 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
7189 6ot4" R!ducer 6 cAOI $214.18 n,-os 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 01 

7241 PolableWalz:rServla:s 139 EAOI n<I.JlO $101-44220 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
7243 W1b!:r5eMce At UftStatlon 1 EAOI $1. .20 ll.8272O 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
72◄6 Pund1 curorwater Main 6◄50.00 LF $1.91 <12319.50 • 0 $(1.00 so.oo o• 



n48 Fklshlno &. B'T"s rcr waie-Main 15 450.00 ILF $0.86 ~-..1.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
7249 1.0G!t!, Wire Test For- Main 16450.00 ILF $0.SO .... moo 0 0 $0.00 so.oo •• 
nso ~ Test rorw- Main 15 450.00 ILF Sl.91 ~, '19.50 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 

Total Price ro,-- 05 W- Dlsb1butlan Dans: -~•-a.OS SO.OD S0.00 .. 
06 Redalm DislrlDutloD 
9014 8"0Rl8PVCReuseMam 740 LF l<:t9.25 $14~5.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9015 5" DIUS PVC Reuse Main 360 LF $13.10 ~716.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9016 4" DIUS PVC Reuse Main 3 760.00 LF $9.16 $34441.60 0 0 $0.00 so.co •• 
9023 8" Joint R,straints 8 EAOi $153.49 $1 .92 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9024 5"JolntRe51ralnts 6 EAOi $124.93 "749.58 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9025 4• Jo;nt Restraints 24 LF $115.71 $2.777.04 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9084 8" X4"Cross 2 EAOi s1nn.n. nmc:.-t2 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9091 trsie- 1 EAOi IS540.15 $540.15 0 0 $D.OO $0.00 o• 
9097 8" Gote\lah,,e 1 EAOi $1402.43 ., 402.43 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9098 5" Gote\lah,,e 1 EAOi $968.38 $968.38 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9099 4" Gote\lah,,e 6 EAOi 054.90 u .... a.◄o 0 0 SO.OD $0.00 •• 
9100.1 -1.,,~--t 5 EAOi s1=02 $9.000.12 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 0\ 

9103 \lalve Box ~latlon 8 EAOi S2S9:77 $2.ll78.16 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9136 6x6"Te. 1 EAOi ~~.12 $385.12 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9155 8"45 Bend 4 EAOi $359.76 •1439.04 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o, 
9157 4"45Bend 2 EAOi $232.21! -~.56 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 n 
9183 8x5"Rtdua,, 1 EACH $302.96 $302.96 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
9185 6x4" Rtduce- 2 EACH $214.18 $428.36 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9214 8" Conflict 2 EACH .,,,, 18 $6 86.36 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
9215 6"Contrct 1 EACH .,.,0_43 ., ~g.43 0 0 $0.(10 $0.00 •• 
9216 4" Conlllct 3 EACH 1-854.44 .. =.32 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
9237 ReusewattrSerkes 139 EACH u35 = "'l.65 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
9239 PUndl Out for Reuse Main 4 oa .00 LF l.72 .. 59.20 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9240 ""'_....,. for Reuse Main 4860.00 LF 0.!16 ... 179.60 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
9241 I..OCate Wire Test For Reus!! Main 4m.1_00 LF $0.50 $2,430.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
9242 Prossune Test fa,- Moir\ 4111 ..... 00 LF ,-~ $9'=60 0 0 $0.00 SO.OD •• 

TOlal Pnce for above 06 R<dalm Distribution llems: ~-~•o so.oo $0.00 .. 
07 5ewer(GnvltyADd ForceM.ia) 
4003 Dewater Gravltv - 3 ..,5.00 LF $16.46 ...,. 124.10 0 0 so.co $0.00 •• 
4014 T- A Manhole o-6' n..- 9 EAOi szn,., .04492.33 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4015 T-A Manllole 6-8' - 5 EACH $3"" 65 •19=_90 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4016 T.- A Mmhote 8--10"- 3 EACH S3""•n - rr.7.16 0 0 $0.00 SO.OD .. 
4017 ~A Manhole 10-lZ'd- 2 EAOi l«.677.67 -•55.34 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
4018 T- A Manhole 12•1'!' •- 2 EACH lss...,.75 - 191.52 0 0 $0.00 so.oo •• 
4019 1~ A Manhole 14-16' "'_,.. 1 EAOi $6 175.42 $6175.42 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4036 '"""' Manhole 11-10' d- 1 EACH «412.59 $5 412.59 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4058 Uned Manhole 12·14' ~ 1 EACH - ""'46 $11681.46 0 0 $0.00 SO.OD o• 
4068 Manhole Too Out 25 EACH $235.76 ss-.oo 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4069 PC<Jrlnverts 25 EACH m4.2Z S5355.50 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 0\ 

4111 ~SOR.26Sewe'HUID-6'"'-- 1.039.00 LF $20.82 ·-=.99 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
4112 8" SOR26 S.-Makl 6-8' ~ 1 =•.oo lF $24.79 = ~.24 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4113 8" SOR26S.-Makl8-UY ~ 891 LF .27 $24 S1 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4114 8" SOR 26 S.-Maln 10-12' n.... 375 LF =.11 $13 16.25 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4115 8" SOR 26 S.- Maki 12·14' ~ 722 LF =.66 •= "'"' 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4116 8" SOR 25 S.-Makl 1+16' ~ 291 LF •="" ~· «35 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
2108 -··- 300.00 LF $284.61 -· ~- 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4143 {51 5" &. 8" Slandard Boots for Manholes 68 EACH $59.95 <A076.60 0 0 $0.00 so.oo •• 
4144 Puncl\OutS.- 5774.00 LF Sl.n '6Ml.28 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
4145 5ewer5er;laos 139 EACH <AA<.94 $92426.66 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
4146 1V Test SeM,r Main 5.774.00 LF "4.36 $25174.64 0 0 so.oo $0,00 •• 
5003 Dewater utt Station 1 l5 <..10-"'039 :t30 r.u '29 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 o• 
5019 ult Station 2&-28" 1 EACH $264 686.24 ~-686.24 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6013 10" PYC CR 18 R>rcJ, Ma,t 1480.00 LF $23.49 ~•755.20 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6022 10" .Joint R,stralnls 22 EACH .,,,,. $4=•• 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6071 >ir Release \lalveAss. 3 EAOf n "'6.73 $10-r,n,a 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6072 J>JrRdellSeManhole 3 EACH - IClJ.'41 S4-" 0 0 $0.00 $0.0C •• 
6075 10" GateV.11,,e 2 EACH sz-.21 $4-54 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6080 vai.e Box lnslallatlon 2 EAOi <165.21 $330.42 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6096 l0xlO-Tee 1 EAOi $1.263.94 -=.94 0 0 $0.00 SO.OD .. 
6112 10-90 Bend 2 EAOf $938.88 ~1..,.,.16 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6153 lO"C.o 1 EAOi l<4n.22 s-<77.22 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
6175.1 llirO<tional Drill 10" HOPE 770 LF ·~ 45 SSS.lll6.SO 0 • $Cl,00 $0.00 •• 



6183 Punch 0ut Forc:e Main 12N•,00 ILF IU.72 - .00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 •• 
6185 Locate Wire Test ror l'a<e Main 12=n.oo ILF IS0.55 .. 1 •=.so 0 0 $0.GO $0.00 •• 
6186 l're$$UreTestforForceMaln 12 •=.00 ILF 1<1.91 ••=.so 0 0 $0.00 ~.oo •• 

T_. Prtcefor-07 5ewer (GravttyAlld Fcrce MalD)Imas: ~977 "7'1RA"2 $0.00 $0.00 ., 
OSMobUlzatloa 
100 General COOdlticns 1 LS ~in1.ss ==.as o., 0.1 o.s $3.,n.i, $1'.'3s.,1 ... 
201 & Ptrfonnanc:e Bonds 1 LS $43602.00 ... .,.,,00 o., 0.1 o.s $4,3,0.20 $21.,801.00 ... 
104.0l C0nslnJc!lon Entrano!• - 1 EACH lil'.4:. ""7.24 "\207.24 1 1 $0.00 $6,201,24 100> 

400 =~- 1 LS ==''' m 0.3 0.1 o., ~.772.23 $1.S.1)8.8.91. ◄•• 

500 As8ullts 1 LS 11:<LAJtM.49 $34 700,-49 0.l 0.1 $0.00 $3,"-70.45 10• 

TotalPrtcefor_OS_Dems: ··~ 7.85 
,., .. a.61 ~-·"" ◄n 

OSM- I I I 

Order ca,,~·- Set 11 ILS ., .. 5496.73 , .. 5_73 0 $0.00 $0.00 .. 
TOlal Pr1Cietor-CIWl980rdas: $445 - $0.00 $0.00 n 

S',"l,822,7, $23&,ISl..08 $5'4..,51'1.H 12, 



WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 
CONDITIONAL UPON PROGRESS PAYMENT 

The undersigned llenor, upon payment from the llenee, of the sum of $ 214,965.97 , hereby waives and releases 
Its lien and right to claim a lien Including all claims, change orders, or demands whatsoever for labor, services, 

or materials furnished through Apl'II 20, 2021 on the Job of RolUn(l ums community Development District 
to the following described property: 

Project: Rolling Hills 139 Lots Phase A 

Locatlon: Bradley Creek Pkwy 
Invoice#: 7057-5 

This waiver and release does not cover any labor, services, or materials furnished after the date specified. The undersigned 

represents that he/she Is an authorized agent of Llenor and has authority to execute this Waiver and Release of Lien on 
behalfofLlenor. 

Dated on: April 20, 2021 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF CLAY 

Lienor's Name: Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. 
Address: P.O. Box 1889 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

Phone: 904-291-9330 

By,,q; 
Printed Name: Kyle Gammon 

• 

Title: ~c~h~le~f=F~ln_a_n_cl-a-1 o-r=n-c-er ___________ _ 

The foregoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this __ 2_0_th __ day of 

by ICyle Gammon ofVallencourt Constrnctlon Co., Inc., a Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 

April 2021 

Personally known ____ X ____ or Produced ldentlflcatlo_n ______ _ Type ofldentlflcatlon _______ _ 

NOTE: This Is er statutory form prescribed by Section 713.20, Florida Statutes (1996). 

Effective October 1, 1996, er person may not require a Uenorto furnish a waiver 

or release of I/en that Is different from the statutory form. 



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

021 

HADDEN ENGINEERING, INC. 

$6,322.85 

(D) Purpose for which paid 01· incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

~ obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incuned by 
the Distnct, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is he1·eby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DE OPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



lHfAIDDEN ENGJINEERIING, liNC. 

POST OFFICE BOX 9509 
FLEMING ISLAND, FL 32006 
(904) 269-9999 

-

BILL TO 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
C/O JIM OLIVER 
475 West Town Place, #114 
St. Augustine, FL. 32092 

-·· 
CONTRACT SERVICES 

TASI< 1-SURVEY SERVICES 
Task 1A & 18 (Owner to provide) 
Task lC (Plat Assistance) 

TASI( 2- ENGINEERING, CONSTRUCTION&, 
BID DOCUMENTS' 

Task 2A (Horizontal Control) 
Task 28 (Drainage Plan) 
Task 2C (Grading Plan) 
Task 2D (Roadway Plan Profiles) 
Task 2E (Construction Details) 
Task 2F (Construction Specifications 
Task 2G (Drainage Calculations) 
Task 2H (Water & Wastewater Utilities) 
Task 2 I (Plan Preparations) 

TASI< 3- PERMIT ASSISTANCE 

Task 3A - Submittal to Clay County Eng. 
Task 3B - Submittal to SJRWMD 
Task 3C -Submittals to CCUA 
Task 3D - Review & Approve Materials 

Submittals 
TASI< 4 - BIDDING PROCEDURES 

Task 4A-4C 

PAYMENT IS DUE UPON RECEIPT FOR 

Contract 

2,000.00 

9,000.00 
11,000.00 
11,000.00 
12,000.00 
4,000.00 
3,000.00 

12,000.00 
10,000.00 
3,000.00 

14,000.00 
12,000.00 
8,000.00 

3,000.00 

5,000.00 

SERVICES RENDERED 

Thanl< you for your business! 

DATE INVOICE# 

4/28/2021 5977 

PERIOD. COVERED IN BILLING 

Dec. 15 2020 
to April 26 

---

Prior Amt. 

800.00 

r 
9,000.00 

11,000.00 
11,000.00 
12,000.00 
4,000.00 
3,000.00 

12,000.00 
10,000.00 
3,000.00 

11,900.00 
10,200.00 
6,800.00 

1,500.00 

5,000.00 

TOTAL: 

PROJECT NO. • PROJECT 

HEI-19006 RH 11Cln·istmas Tre ... 

Prior% Current Total% Amt.DUE 

40% 40% 80% $ 800.00 

100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 
100% 0% 100% 0 

85% 15% 100% $ 2,100.00 
85% 15% 100% $ 1,800.00 
85% 0% 85% 0 

50% 0% 50% 0 

100% 0% 100% 0 
0 

ON PAGE 2 

, 

'fl-



lHIADDEN ENGThlElEfilNG? JlNC. 
' 

POST OFFICE BOX 9509 
FLEMING ISLAND, FL 32006 
(904) 269-9999 

BILL TO 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
C/O JIM OLIVER 
475 West Town Place, #114 
St. Augustine, FL. 32092 

,_ 

CONTRACT SERVICES 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

TASI< 5: CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

UNDER SEPARATE CONTRACT 

TASI< 6: MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

As requested. 

at HEI Standard Hourly Rates 

REIMBURSEABLES 
Clay County Plat fee 
Advanced Blue (print Services) 

PAYMENT IS DUE UPON RECEIPT FOR 

Contract 

SERVICES RENDERED 

Thanlc you for your business/ 

DATE INVOICE# 

4/28/2021 5977 

PERIOD COVERED IN BILLING 

Dec. 15 2020 
to April 26 

Prior Amt. 

r 

TOTAL: 

PROJECT NO. 

HEI-19006 

Prior% Current' 

I I 

/f;JL 

PROJECT 

RH "Christmas Tre ... 

Total% Amt.DUE 

0 

0 

$ 1,390.00 
$ 232.85 

0 

$ 6,322.85 



I-

DlffE 

__ { '"'.,J7 ;;.,1.,14, : "·" .,.,,.,,,., 
fl)Jl 11 ,,_ I• (y.a,. , / '3C{ (.,,/-,, 

14<>/J.l'.J i~,ti, U~r (, Z,. 

r 

TOYAL 

THIS 
CHECK 

OTHER 
TA.ANS+/· 

BALANCI: 

r 



Linda Hadden 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Notifications@claycountygov.com 
Tuesday, March 09, 202110:11 AM 
Keith Hadden 
Clay County Payment Receipt 

HADDEN ENGINEERING INC/ 3094 
keithhadden@haddeneng.com 

3/9/202110:10:37 AM 

PO BOX 9509 
FLEMING ISLAND FL, 32006 

l<ey Description 

PLAT-2021000009 Plat Review 

Checl<Number/ 
Payment Type Transaction ID Amount 

Check $1390.00 

Amount 

$1,390.00 

Convenience 
Fee(cc only) 

$.00 

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a 
public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. The 
information contained in this email and/or attachment(s) may be confidential and intended solely for the use of the 
individual or entity to whom it is addressed. This email and/or attachment(s) may contain material that is privileged or 
protected from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient or the individual responsible for 
delivering to the intended recipient, please notify sender immediately by telephone to obtain Instructions as to whether 
information in this email and/or attachment(s) is confidential and privileged or protected from disclosure under 
applicable law. 

1 



1031 Blanding Blvd. Suite 401 
Orange Park, FL 32065 

(904) 215-8743 

BIIITo 

Hadden Engineering, Inc. 
P.O. Box 9509 
Fleming Island, FL 
32006-0030 

Quantity Description 

38 Plotted Bond 24 x 36 
114 Bond Copies 24 x 36 

Rolling Hills CCUA 
Sales Tax 

Thank you for your business. 

Invoice 
Dale Invoice# 

4/5/2021 27048 

P.O. No. Terms 

Net30 

Rate Amount 

2.10 79.80T 
1.20 136.80T 

7.50% 16.25 

Total $232.85 





REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"T1·ustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust In.denture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

022 

HADDEN ENGINEERING, INC. 

$4,625.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

~ obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby fu1'ther certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: 
horized Office1 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such repo1-t shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



JHIA]))DJEN JENGJINJEJERJING? JrNC. 

POST OFFICE BOX 9509 
FLEMING ISLAND, FL 32006 
(904) 269-9999 

BILL TO 

Rolling Hills COD 
c/o Mr. Jim Oliver 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
World Gold Village 
St. Augustine, FL. 3209Z 

DESCRIPTION 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES FOR CDD ENGINEER: 

Construction site inspections 

Review, Approve and Certify Contractor 

Pay Requests and Invoices 

Produce Requisition(s) 

Review of SHOP DWGS> 

Handle Supplier Direct Payment Requests 

CDD Meeting 

Thanlc you for your business! 

PERIOD COVERED 

Feb 15, 2021 -
April 26, 2021 

DATE INVOICE# 

4/28/2021 5 97 4 

SCANNED 

PROJECT NO. PROJECT 

14201 RHCDD 

HOURS RATE AMOUNT 

37.00 125.00 $ 4,625.00 

r 

TOTAL: $ 4,G2s·.oo 





REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental' Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 028 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

FORTERRA Pipe & Precast 

~12~o-{fj2-il · 'Ut ~{)) 
(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 

amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

X obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



-II: FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP.COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLlNG HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No 

26-APR-21 10605 321.9.981 MISC 

42 11 RUBBER 

INVOICE 

Description 

GASKET PROFILE 

P-R-042"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611----GRANITE MIX-WITHOUT 
LIFT HOLE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

26-APR-21 10605 3219990 MISC 

P-R-042 11-PPL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX-WITHOUT 
LIFT HOLE 

STRUCTUR);! TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Tex-m: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEIN# Customer Service# 
54-0179210 469-458-7.973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

7 

56 

56 

119 

Remit 'l"o: 
Forterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 842401 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

:Cnvoioe Date Page Number 

26-APR-21 1 of 1 

:cnvoioe Number 

11788848 

Sales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo .00 

LIN.E:AR 65.08 
FEET 

3,644.48 

3,644.48 

LINEAR 65.08 
FEET 

3,644.48 

3 I 6 4.4-.-48.... 

~::: 

~V"t 
~ 

~ 

ti ~J>" 1· 

(Sales Tax: ------437 .,3'( 
Take Dii,count of IP~ON OR IIEPORB 

~ 0 
MO PAY 

t-i;w~ii4 .00 05 26 

s/.s/zr /1 Nl- d r-,v . r /at{__ 

) 





REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

024 

FOR.TERRA Pipe & Precast (Materials) 

Invoice # 117909 54 
Invoice #11790686 
Invoice # 11791064 
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 

$10,629.25 
$ 3,488.40 
$ 8,527.20 
$22,644.85 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incuned (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

Thv,<ndersigned hereby certifies that: 

M obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incuned in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP.COM 

Ship Toi 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PllA 
LAl<E ASBURl'. 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill Toi 

ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACB STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United Statea of Ameriaa 

Date Plant BOL No Deaoription 

06-Mll.Y-21 10605 3224346 MISC 
36" RUBBER GASI<ET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-036 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

06-MAY-21 10605 3224353 MISC 
36" RUBBER GASI<ET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"~---GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MI\Y-21 10605 3225068 MISC 
3 6" RUBBER GASI<ET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"~---GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TO!l'AL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

(118 

(118 

(118 

Totlll Qty 

FEINlt customer Servioel/ 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

aredit@forterrabp,00111 

Qty 

9 

72 

4 

32 

9 

72 

198 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 042481 
Dl\LLI\S TK 75204-2401 

Invoice Date Page Number 

07-l-lAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Number 

11791064 

sales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer 01:der 

TDD 

Unit Unit price Extended Prioe 

EACH .oo 
,00 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 3,488,40 

3,488,40 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 48,45 
FElilT 1,550.40 

1,550,40 

Ell.CH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 3,488.40 

~j-,488.40 

~,·:') 
c -;r t~XI /L. 

'roltu bJ.noount. of IF PIIID OH OR DBrORB / 111-SOUIIT DUG 

9,038.85 
110 DIIY 

.oo 06 06 



-•= FORTERRA 

Forterra Print Invoice Summary Page 

Total Numbe~ of Transactions Printed are 1 

Request Submitted By 

Requeat:: Id 

l 

MCJilRVAl/l 

218543711 



-Ill FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERltABP,COM 

Ship To1 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LO'.!.' 139 PHA 
LAICE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To1 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant DOL No 

05-MAY-21 10605 3223740 MISC 

INVOICE 

Description 

3 6" RUBBER GI\Sl<ET PROFILE ( 118 
1/8) 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 

WALL-096"----GRANITI!l MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term1 NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEINII Customer Se2:vicen 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

9 

72 

81 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Precaet, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
Dl\LLI\S TX 75284-2481 

Xnvoiae Date Page Number 

05-MAY-21 l of 1 

Invoice Nu1nbe1.· 

11790686 

Salos Contraot Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Orde1.· 

TDD 

Unit Unit pi:ice Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 48,45 
FEET 3,488,40 

3,488.40 

f~1 3,488.40 
~ ----

&i~r 
Salee Taxi 21.: 

'rnko Dlaoount of IP PJ\ID 011 OR DEFORB /1111ou111• DUD 

110 DJ\Y 
3,697.71 

.oo OG 04 



-II: FORTERRA 

Forterra Print Invoice Summary Page 

~otal Number of ~ransactions Printed are: 

Request Submitted By , 

Request Id i 

1 

MCERVAN 

218564698 



-1=: FORTERRA 
m·m, li'ORTERIUI.BP. COM 

Ship Toi 

INVOICE 

(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAlm ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of ,l\mericn 

Date Plant BOL No 

Pieces 

Description 

1/2 
060DIA X 06WALL X 08H,024DIA ECC, 
TOPSLAB 
Pieces 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-2071ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEIC 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-208 
060DIA X 06WALL X 048H, 
MONOBASEEXT 
Piece: 1/2 
060DIA X 06WALL X 08H,024DIA ECC, 
TOPSLAD 
Piece, 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-2081ACCY 
CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

RAMNEIC 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term1 NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEINII Customer Servicell 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
oredit@forterrnbp,oom 

Qty 

1 

1 

5 

1 

1 

1 

5 

38 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Preonst, LLC 
PO DOX 802401 
DALLAS TX 75204-2081 

Invoice Date Page Number 

07-MAY-21 3 of 3 

Invoice Number 

11790954 

Sales Contrnot Customer Humber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

'.CBD 

Unit unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

1,997,05 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 1,997.05 
1,997,05 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

1,997.05 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

r(A1 10,629.~ -- --

C -r 
~ax1 L. 

TQko Discount. of Jf' r1110 on OR DBFORE ,< IIHOUU'.I! DUil 

11,267 ,oo 
110 DIIY 

.oo 06 06 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
l'IWl'l,FORTmRIUUIP,COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Jlill To: 
ROLLING HlLLB COO 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE $TE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Deaoript.ion 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-204 

048DlA X 051'/ALL X 062H 1 

MONOBASllEXT 
Piadat 1/2 
058X058-SLllll-05-MTR-008-0CT 
Pieae1 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-2041ACCY 
CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

RAMNEK 2 PXECI' 

StcRUC~URE '1'O'.L1AL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-205 
060DIA X 06WALL X 042H, 
MONOBABEEXT 
Fiece, 1/2 
0600IA X 061'/ALL X 08H,024DIA 
TOPBLllll 
Piece1 2/2 

STRUCTllRE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-2051ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

RAMNEI< 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE ~OTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 BT6-207 

060DXA X 061'/ALL X 042H, 
MONOBASIDEXT 

'fermt NlllT 30 DAYS 

ECC, 

Total Qty 

FEIN# Customer Servioell 

54-0179210 469-458-797 3 

oredit@forterrabp.oom 

Qty 

l 

l 

l 

4 

l 

l 

1 

5 

1 

nemit '1'01 

Forterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 842491 
DALLAS TX 75284-248! 

Invoice Dai:;e Page Number 

01-MAY-21 2 of 3 

lnvoide Number 

n1909s4 

Sales Cont):'a'Ot C!ust::.omer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer O.rder 

"8n 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH 2,148.64 
2,148,64 

EACH .oo .oo 

2,148.64 

l!lMH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo ,oo 

.oo 

EACH 2,188,03 
2,188,03 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

2,188,03 

EACH .oo .oo 

li:ACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 1,997.05 
1,997 ,05 

!'akei Il:lo<1aunt of IP PAID 011 OR Dt':FOR& 

MO DAY 



-11ft FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship TOI 
(FL) noLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAl(E ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill 'l'OI 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WES'l' TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
united States of America 

Date Plant BOL No 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-151 

INVOICE 

Description 

021.lL X 024W X 06WALL X 040H, 
MONOBASE 
Piece: 1/1 

STRUC!CURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 S'l'6-1511ACCY 
CAST USF GRT 6217 

EYEBOLTS&CHAINS SET 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 STG-152 
024L X 024W X 06WALL X 044H, 
MONOBASE 
Piece1 1/1 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-1521ACCY 
EYEBOl..'l'S&CHAlNS SET 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

07-MAY-21 10611 3225134 ST6-154 
024L X 024W X 06WALL X 028H, 

MONOBASE 
Piece, 1/1 

S'.rRUC'l'URE 'l'O'l'AL 

07-MAll:-21 10611 3225134 S'l'6-1541ACCl! 
EYEBOL'l'S&CHAINS SET 

STRUCTURE TO'l'AL 

Term: NElT 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEit-tll Customer Servioell 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

oredit@forterrabp,aom 

Qty 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Jlemit To1 
Forterro Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 8'32481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

0'/-MllY-21 1 of 3 

Invoice Number 

ll'/90954 

Sales Contract Customex Numbex 

11013697 l.0036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit prioe Extended Price 

EACH 766.16 
766.16 

766.16 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH ,00 .oo 

.oo 

EACH 766,16 
766.16 

766. 16 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 766,16 
766. 16 

766,16 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

!l'nko Dinaounb af JI' 1'/111> 011 OR P~POR8 

HO l>l\Y 



-•= FORTERRA 

Forterra Print Invoice Summary Page 

Total Number of Transaations Printed are 1 l 

Request Submitted ay MCGRVJIN 

218564697 



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitali;z;ed terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

g 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

025 

FORTERRA Pipe & Precasti (Materials) 

Invoice #11791701 
Invoice #11791610 
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 

$ 8,556.95 
$10,465.20 
$19,022.15 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

:~ 0 14rsigned hereby certifies that: 

7u~:~ligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the Disti·ict, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 



claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



-1ft FORTERRA 
WWN,FOR'l'ERRABP,COM 

Ship To1 

INVOICE 

{FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAl<E ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill Toi 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WES'l' TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAIN'l' AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States ot America 

Date Plant BOL No 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-l06 

060DIA X 

Description 

06WALL X Oi.18H1 

MONOBASEL'JX'l' 
Pieoe1 1/2 
060DIA X 06WALL X 08H1 TOPSLAB 

Pieae1 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

11-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-1061ACC!Y 

CAS!C USF FGH 5145-6210 

IU\MNEI( 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-153 

02{U:. X 024W X 06WALL X 028H, 
MONOBASE 
Pieoe1 1/1 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-153:ACCY 

EYEBOLTS&CHAXNS SET 

STRUCTURE !rOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-201 
01.18DIA X 05\'lALL X 028H, 
MONOBASEEXT 
Pieoo1 1/2 
058X058-SL~B-05-MTR-008~0CT 
Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE! TOTAL 

Term: Nl!J'l' 30 DAYS 

!rotal Qty 

FEINll Customer Servioell 

51.1-0179210 469-458-7973 
oredit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

l 

5 

l 

l 

1 

1 

Remit TOI 
For~erra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
l'O BOX 042481 
PALLAS TX 752Bd-2481 

Invoice Date Pago Nmnber 

11-MAY-21 l of 3 

lnvoioe Number 

11791701 

Salos Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customo>: Order 

TDD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH 2,274.26 
2,274,26 

EACH .oo .oo 

2,274.26 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 623,86 
623,86 

623.86 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 1,649,88 
1,649,88 

F:ACH .oo .oo 

1,649.88 

Tako Dlaooun\;. of IP PJ\lD OH Oll DRFOllt 

HO 111\Y 



-In FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship !l'o: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAitE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill 'l'o1 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 1'/ES!l' TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United Statos of America 

Date Plant J30L No 

INVOICE 

Desorip~ion 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 S!l'6-2011ACCY 
CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

-

JOIN!!: SEALANT RAMNEI< l 1/4 PU!:Cl!l 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

11-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-215 

060DIA X 06WALL X 036H, 
MONOBASEEX'l' 
Piece, 1/2 
060DIA X 06WALL X OBH, TOPSLAB 
Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-2151ACCY 

CAST USF FGJI 5145-6210 

JOINT SEALANT RAHNEJI< l 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 S!1'6-300A 

060DIA X 06WALL X 054H, 
MONOBASEEXT 
Pieoe1 1/2 
060DIA X 06WAl'..L X 08H,024DIA ECC, 
TOPSLAB 
Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll~MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-300A1ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-~ S'l!ORM. 

Term: NEJ'l! 30 DAYS 

t,rotal Qty 

FiiJXNll Customer Service/I 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

ere di t@£01:terrabp, com 

Qty 

1 

4 

1 

l 

l 

5 

l 

l 

l 

Remit TOI 

Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 042401 
DALLAS TX 75204-2401 

Invoice Date Page Number 

11-MAY-21 2 of 3 

Invoice Number 

11791701 

Sales Conh·act CuRtomer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

'.l'BD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo .00 

J;:ACH .oo .oo 

,00 

EACH 2,274.26 
2,274.26 

EACH ,00 .oo 

2,274,26 

EACH .oo ,00 

EACH .oo .oo 

,00 

EACH 1,734.69 
1,734.69 

EACH ,00 

.oo 

1,734,69 

EACH .oo ,00 

!take nisco!Jnt: of IP l'/\1D OH on lU!FORE 

110 DJ\Y 



-II: FORTERRA 
mm. FORTERRABP. COM 

Ship TOI 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAl{E ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill TOI 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
united States of America 

Dato Plant BOL No 

INVOICE 

-

Description 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEI< 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Termt NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEINU Customer Servicelt 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

5 

' 

33 

Remit TOI 
Porterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 042401 
DALLJ\S TX 76204-2401 

Invoice Date Page Number 

ll-HAY-21 3 of 3 

Invoice Number 

11791701 

S11le11 Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036160 

Customer order 

'rBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo .oo 

~·· ~ 

--r~ ~~t- 5/4 

Toke t>isoount. of IF Pl\tD 011 on DEFOnG 

$" 110 DIIY ~ 40 

.oo 06 10 8.fS-l1. r 



-•= FORTERRA 

Forterra Print Invoice Sununary Page 

Total Number of Tranaadtions Printad are 1 

Reque~t Submitted By 1 

Request 'Id 1 

l 

MdEl!VAN 

218581152 



INVOICE 

-Ir: FORTERRA 
ffilW, FORTlilRRABP, COM 

Ship Tor 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAl(lil ASBURY 
GRlillilN covm SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill Toi 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLAClil STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINlil FL 32092 
united States of America 

Date Plant DOL No Description 

ll-MAY-21 10605 3225628 MISC 
P~R~036"~PFL-CL-3~B 
WALL-096"--~-GRA'NITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10605 3226085 MISC 
P-R-036"~PFL-CL-3~B 
WALL-096"~~-~GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10605 3226184 MISC 
P~R~036"~PFL~CL-3~B 
WALL-096"-~~-GRANITl!l MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATlilRIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Termr NElT 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FlilINII customer Servicelt 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credi t@_forterrabp.com 

-

Qty 

72 

72 

72 

216 

Remit TOI 

Fortorra Pipa & Preoaet, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DJ\LLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

ll-MAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Number 

11791610 

Salee Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

customer orde1: 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

LINlilAR 48.45 
FEET 3,488.40 

3,488,40 

LINEAR 48,45 
FEET 3,488.40 

3,488.40 

LINEAR 48,45 
FEET 3,488.40 

~····· ? 

-r-~ sf:~x~rr 62/4 

Take olecount of IP VAW 011 Oil DEFOI\E Aefouu~ DUE 

~ 
110 DAY 

.oo 06 10 $10,4t(of,1..~ 



-•= FORTERRA 

Forterra Print Invoice Summary Page 

~otal Number of ~ransadtions Printed are 

Request Submitted By 1 

Itequest. Id , 

1 

MCElRVAN 

218581153 



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development Dist1·ict (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental T1·ust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Re uisition Number: 026 

(B) 

(C) 

Name of Payee: FORTERRA Pipe & Precnst TAX EXEMPT (Mntel'ials) 

Amount Payable: Invoice #11791610 
Invoice #11791701 
Invoice # 11791857 
Invoice #11791876 
Invoice # 11792229 
Invoice# 11792351 
Invoice #11792359 
Invoice #11792612 
Invoice # 11792698 
Invoice #11792837 
Invoice # 11793 000 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 

$10,465.20 
$ 8,556.95 
$ 15,125.51 
$ 3,488.40 
$ 2,920.19 
$ 11,618.94 
$ 17,389.04 
$ 7,386.08 
$ 12,928.68 
$ 11,079.12 
$ 7,845.68 
$108,803.79 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

~ obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the Distnct, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 



2 of 2 FortenaXl 1 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is he1·eby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
ENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specificat_ions for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



-1r FORTERRA 
mm. FORTERRABP. COM 

Ship TOI 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LA'KE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To1 

ROLLU{G HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOI-IN PLACE STE: 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No 

11-MAY-21 10605 3225628 MISC 

INVOICE 

Description 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
lmLL-096 "----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10605 3226085 MISC 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

11-MAY-21 10605 3226184 MISC 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Terms NET 30 DAYS 

Tol:al Ql:y 

FEINII Customer Servicell 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp,com 

Qty 

72 

72 

72 

216 

Remit To1 

Fortorro Pipo & Proaost, LLC 
PO llOX 042481 
DJ\LLIIS TX 75204-2401 

Invoice Date Pogo Number 

11-HAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Number 

11791610 

Salee Contract Customer number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Orde~· 

TIID 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

LINEAR 48,45 
Fl!lE'l' 3,488,40 

3,488.40 

LINEAR 48,45 
FEET 3,488.40 

3,488.40 

LINEAR 48,45 
FEET 3,488,40 

~··'" 
'? 

[.~ s&:f ~x~ rr 6/4 

Toke Dl■aount of IP PAID OH on PEF'OHE Afiounr uus 

i¼;O~ 
llO DI\Y 

.oo 06 10 $ I il /t0, · L--~ 



INVOICE 

-1= FORTERRA 
Wl'll'I, FORTERRABP, COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAl<E ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill Toi 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United states of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

11-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-106 

060DIA X 06WALL X 048H, 
MONOBASEEXT 
Piece: 1/2 
060DXA X 06tlALL X 08H, TOPSLAB 

Pieces 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

11-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-1061ACCY 

CAST USF FGH 5146-6210 

RAMNEI( 2 PXECE 

Si'RUC'.CURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-153 

024L X 024W X 06WALL X 028H, 
MONOBASE 
Pieoe1 1/1 

STRUCTURE TOi'AL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-1531ACCY 

EYEBOLTS&CHAINS SEi' 

Si'RUCTURE TOTAL 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-201 

048DIA X 05WALL X 028H, 
MONOBAS1'1EXi' 
Piece: 1/2 
058X058-SLAB-05-MTR-008-0CT 
Piaoe1 2/2 

Si'RUCTUREl TOTAL 

Term: Nll:i' 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEXN!I Customer Servioe/1 

5!\-0179210 469-458-7973 
oredit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

l 

1 

l 

5 

l 

l 

1 

1 

Remit TOI 
Forl:orra Pipe & Preaast, LLC 
PO DOX 842481 
DJ\LLIIS TX 76284-2~81 

Invoiae Date Page Number 

11-MI\Y-21 l of 3 

Invoioo Number 

11791701 

Sales Contract Customer Numbor 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Prioo 

EACH 2,274.26 
2,274.26 

EACH .00 .oo 

2,274.26 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 623,86 
623, 86 

623.86 

EACH .oo ,00 

.oo 

EACH 1,649,88 
1,649,88 

EACH .oo .oo 

1,649.88 

Tako Dlaoount of IP PAID OH on DEFORE 

NO D~Y 



-1:: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

$hip To: 
(WL) ROLL!NG HILLS LOT 139 flm 

LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN covm SPRINGS FL 320a3 

Bill 'l'o: 
RO~LX~G HILLS CDD 
475 WES~ TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

u-nited States of America 

Date Plant l30L }lo 

INVOICE 

Desorip~ion 

ll~MnY-21 10611 32256'13 ST6-2011ACCY 

CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

aoxN~ SE~L~NT RAMNEK 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE 'l'O'J!At 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 ST6-2i5 

060DIA X 06WAl,1, X 036H, 

MONOSASEEXT 

Pieoei l/2 

060D!A X OGWALL X 08:H., 'J.'Ol?SLAB 

P.ieaa, 2/2 

STRUCTURE TO'rAL 

ll-MA~-21 10611 3225673 S'.r6-2151ACCY' 

CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

JOililT SEALANT RAMNEK l 1/4 PIECE 

STRUC'.l:UltE ":COTA'L 

ll-MAY-21 10611 3225673 $~6-30011 

OllODXA X 06WAL'L X 054H, 
MONOBASEEXT 
Pieoe: l/2 

060'D!A X 06WJH,L X 08H 1 024DIA ECC, 

9:0PSJ..aB 

Pieoe: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

11-MA'lt-Zl 10611 3225673 S';e6,~300A l ACCY 

CAST usr R&C ),70-F. STORM 

Term; NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FlilXllll Cust:.omet: Servicel/ 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
c~eait@£orterrabp.oom 

Qty 

1 

4 

l 

1 

l 

s 

1 

1 

1 

Remit To: 

Forterra Fipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 1342'181 
DALLaAS rx 75284~2~81 

Invoioe Date Page Number 

11~t.U\')(~2l 2 of 3 

:Invoice Number 

11791701 

Sale,s contract. customer Numbe1: 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

~BD 

Unit Unit prioe Extended Price 

EACH ,00 .oo 

EACH .oo ,00 

.oo 

EACH 2,274.26 
2,27<1,26 

EA.CH ,oo ,00 

.21274 • .26 

EACH ,00 .oo 

El\.CH ,00 , 00 

,00 

EACH 1,734,69 
1,734.69 

EACH ,OD 

.OD 

1,734.69 

EACH ,OD ,00 

Toke llhoounl: of IF PAID 0)1 OR JlflrOR~ 

"' on, 



-II: FORTERRA 
Wl'lW,F'ORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To1 
(F'L) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAl(E ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS F'L 32043 

Bill To1 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United states of America 

Dato Plant BOL No 

INVOICE 

Description 

JOINT SE:ALMIT RAMNEI< l 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

F'EINfl Customer Servicell 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

01.·odit@forterrabp. oom 

Qty 

5 

33 

Remit To, 
Fortorra Pipo & Preoast, LLC 
PO llOX 042401 
DALLAS TX 75204-2401 

Invoioe Date Page Number 

11-MAY-21 3 of 3 

Invoioe Number 

11791701 

Salos Contract Customer Numbe1.· 

11013697 10036150 

customer Orde1.· 

TDD 

Unit Unit pdce Extended Price 

EACH .oo .oo 

~ . 

--rOvf fi~~ 5/4 
Toke Diuoount of tr PACl) 011 on REFOlll: 

??"' 110 D•Y ~ 40 
.oo 06 10 8,rr&, ~ 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship Tot 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To 1 

ROLLING HILLS COD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226212 ST6-309 

072L X 060W X 06WALL X 075H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece1 1/2 

072L X 060W X 06WALL X 08H, 

TOPSLAB 

Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226212 ST6-3091ACCY 

CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEK 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226658 ST6-103 

037L X 049W X 06WALL X 018H, 

RISER 

Piece: 2/2 

037L X 049W X 06WALL X 066H, 

MONOBASE 

Piece1 1/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226658 ST6-1031ACCY 

CAST USF GRT 6626-PTD D STLPTDH20 

EYEBOLTS&CHAINS SET 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226658 ST6-104 

060DIA X 06WALL X 072H, 

Terrn1 NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEINII Customer Servicell 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

l 

l 

1 

6 

1 

1 

l 

l 

1 

Remit To: 

Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2401 

Invoice Date Page Number 

12-MAY-21 l of 4 

Invoice Number 

11791857 

Sales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH 3,661.04 
3,661.04 

EACH ,00 
,00 

3,661,04 

EACH .oo ,00 

EACH ,00 ,00 

.oo 

EACH ,00 

,00 

EACH 1,911.18 
1,911.18 

1,911.18 

EACH .oo .00 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 1,649.88 1,649.88 

Take Dhcount of IP PAID OH OR BBPORE 

HO DAY 



-•= FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To: 
{FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 FHA 

LARE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

B:lll To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant :SOL No 

INVOICE 

Description 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece1 1/2 
060DIA X 06WALL X 08H,024DIA ECC, 

TOPSLAB 

Pieae: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226658 ST6-l041ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEK l 1/4 PlECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226665 ST6-300 

060D!A X 06WALL X 048H, 

MON013ASEEXT 
Piece: 1/2 

060D!A X 06WALL X 08H,024DIA ~cc, 

TOPSLAB 

)?;lece1 2/2 

S'l'RUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY••21 10611 3226665 ST6-300:ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

RAMNEK 2 J?IECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 32215668 ST6-308 

060L X 060W X 06WALL X 060H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEIN:ff Customer Service#; 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 

oredit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

5 

1 

1 

1 

5 

1 

Remit To: 

Forterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 

PO DOX 84.2481 

DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

12-MAY-21 2 of 4 

Invoice Number 

11791857 

Sales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .00 
.oo 

1,649.88 

EACH .00 .oo 

EACH .00 .00 

.00 

EACH 1,734.69 

1,734.69 

EACH .oo 
.00 

1,734.69 

EACH .00 .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

J;!ACH 4,082.70 

4,082.70 

Takg OhtQoUn.t of. :rF ~AtO OIi OR llllFORE 

"' "" 



INVOICE 

-1:: FORTERRA 
www.FonTEnRABP,COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

Piece 1 1/2 
060L X 060W X 06WALL X 08H, 

TOPSLAB 
Pieoe1 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226668 ST6-308:ACCY 

CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

JOINT SEALANT R~K l 1/4 HECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226668 STG-352 

MES,JAX-434,RCP36,4:l-SLOPE 

Piece: 1/1 

STllUC'I'UilE ·ro·rAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226668 ST6-353 

024L X 024W X 06WALL X 028H, 

MONOBASE 
Piece: 1/1 

STRUCTURE TO'l'AL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226668 ST6-353:ACCY 

EY.ElBOt.'I'S&CHAINS SET 

STllUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10611 3226668 STfS-354 

024L X 024W X 06WALL X 044H, 

MONOBASE 
l?ieoe~ 1/1 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEIN# Customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

12 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Remit To1 
Forterra Pipe & Praoaat, LLC 
:Po nox 042401 

bAttAS TX 75284-2461 

Invoice bate Page Number 

12-MAY-21 3 of ' 
:Cnvoice Number 

1179185'1 

Sales Contract cuatome:r Number 

11013697 10036150 

Cuatomar order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH . 00 

.00 

4,082.70 

EACH .00 .00 

l!lACH .oo .00 

.00 

EACH 696.00 696.00 

696.00 

EACH 623. 86 
623.86 

623.86 

EACH ,00 .oo 

.oo 

EACH 766.16 
766.16 

T<tlce Discount of IF PAIO 011 OR DS!.'OR.B 

HO '" 



INVOICE 

-1:: FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship Toi 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 
12-MAY-21 10611 3226669 ST6-354:ACCY 

EYEBOLTS&CHAINS SET 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Terms NET 30 DAYS 

Total 

FEINII Customer Servicefl 
54-0179210 469-45B-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

Qty 

l 

49 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 

DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

12-MAY-21 4 ot 4 

Invoice Nwnber 

11791857 

Sales Contract Customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

766.16 

EACH .00 .oo 

.oo 

15,125.51 

Sales Taxi .00 
Take Dhcount of IP PAID OH OR llBPORB AHOUHT DUB 

MO PAY 
15,125.51 

.oo 06 11 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA. 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship TOI 

(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

12-MAY-21 10605 3226591 MISC 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

12-MAY-21 10605 3226848 MISC 

36" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/8) 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

(118 

Total Qty 

FEIN/I Customer servicell 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

72 

36 

108 

Remit To: 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 

DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

12-MAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Number 

11791876 

Sales Contract customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 3,488.40 

3,488.40 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

.oo 

3,488.40 

Sales Taxi .oo 
r•k• Dlocount of XP PAID OH OR DBPORE AUO\IHT DUB 

3,488.40 
}10 DAY 

.00 06 11 



INVOICE 

-1:: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To, 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

14-MAY-21 10611 3227120 ST6-206 

060L X 060W X 06WALL X 068H, 
MONOBASEEXT 
Piece, 1/2 
060L X 060W X 06WALL X 08H, 
TOPSLAB 
Piece, 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

14-MAY-21 10611 3227120 ST6-2061ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEK 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEINU Customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-450-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

1 

7 

10 

Remit To, 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 042481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

14-MAY-21 l of l 

Invoice Nwnber 

11792229 

Sales Contract Customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Px-ice 

EACH 2,920.19 
2,920.19 

EACH .00 
.oo 

2,920.19 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .00 

.oo 

2,920.19 

Sales Tax, .oo 
Take Dhciount of IP PAID OH OR BBPORli: AHOUllT DOB 

2,920.19 
110 DAY 

.oo 06 13 



-Ir: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To: 

INVOICE 

(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To1 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-202 

048DIA 

Description 

X 05WALL X 054H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece: 1/2 

048DIA X 05WALL X 08H,024DIA ECC, 

TOPSLAB 

Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-202:ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEK l 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-203 

048DIA X 05WALL X 064H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Pieces 1/2 

058X058-SLAB-05-MTR~008-0CT 

Pieces 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-203:ACCY 

CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

RAMNEK 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-203A 

048DIA X OSWALL X 060H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEIN# Customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

1 

7 

1 

1 

1 

4 

1 

Remit 'J.'o: 

Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2401 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

16-MAY-21 1 of 3 

Invoice Number 

11792351 

Sales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH 1,450.61 
1,450.61 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

1,450.61 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 2,148,64 

2,148.64 

EACH .oo .oo 

2,148.64 

EACH .oo ,00 

EACH .oo .00 

.oo 

EACH 1,426.58 
1,426,58 

Tak• Diacount of IP PAID ON OR BBPORB 

MO DAY 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

.Ship To: 
{FL) ROLLING HILLS LO~ 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill Tos 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 wmsT TOWN PLACE STE ll4 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

United States of America 

Date Plant BOt No Descr;iption 

Piece: 1/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-203A:ACCY 

RAMNEK 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-211 

048DIA X 05WALL X 028H, 

MONOBASBEXT 
Piece: 1/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-2ll1ACCY 

RAMNEK 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-212 

048DJ;A X 05WALL X 040li, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece: 1/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-2121ACCY 

RAMNEK 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 l0611 3227763 ST6-306 

048L X 072W X 06WALL X 048H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece; 1/2 

Tenn: NET 30 DAYS 

Total 

FEIN# customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

Qty 

4 

1 

4 

1 

5 

1 

Remit To: 

Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 8424B1 

DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoioe Pate Page Nwnber 

16-MAY-?.l 2 of 3 

Invoice Numl;,er 

11792351 

Sales Contradt Customer Number 

1101.3697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBO 

Unit Unit p;dce Extended Price 

1,426.58 

EACH ,00 .00 

.00 

EACH 1,426.58 

1,426.58 

1,426.58 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 1,110.28 
1,110.28 

1,110.28 

EACH .00 .oo 

.oo 

EACH 3,121.01 
3,121.01 

Take DiDUOUnt of :CF l'J\.ID ON OR BEFORE 

MO '" 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

048L X 072W X 06WALL X 08H, 
TOPSLAB 
Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE 'rOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-306:ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEI< 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-350 

024L X 024W X 06WALL X 043H, 
MONOBASE 

Piece: 1/1 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10611 3227763 ST6-350:ACCY 

CAST USF GRT 6217 

EYEBOLTS&CHAINS SET 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEINII Customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

7 

1 

1 

1 

46 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
'FO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

16-MAY-21 3 of 3 

Invoice Nwnber 

11792351 

Sales Contract customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

customer order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.00 

3,121.01 

EACH .oo .oo 

J;:ACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH 935,24 
935.24 

935.24 

EACH .00 .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

11,618.94 

Sales Tax, .oo 
Tako Ditlcount ot IP PAID ON OR BBPORB AMOtlltT DUB 

11,618.94 
MO DAY 

.oo 06 15 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWl'l'.FORTERRABP.COM 

Ship To1 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAICE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

16-MAY-21 10605 3227188 MISC 

36 11 RUBBER GASICET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-036 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10605 3227204 MISC 

36" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-036 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10605 3227602 MISC 
36" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-036 00-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10605 3227603 MISC 

36 11 RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 

1/0) 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL•096"----GRANITE MIX 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

(118 

(118 

(110 

(118 

Total Qty 

FEIN# Customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

9 

72 

9 

72 

9 

72 

9 

72 

Remit To: 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842401 
DALLAS TX 75204-2481 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

16-MAY-21 1 of 2 

Invoice Nwnber 

11792359 

Sales Contract customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 48.45 

FEET 3,488.40 

3,488.40 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 3,488.40 

3,488.40 

BACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 3,488.40 

3,488.40 

EACH .00 
.oo 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 3,480.40 

Tak• Dlacount of :IP J>AIO OH OR BBPORI 

HO DAY 



INVOICE 

-Ir' FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship Toi 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

16-MAY-21 10605 3227604 MISC 

30" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/2) 

36" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/8) 

P-R-030"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611-----GRANITE MIX 

P-R-036"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Terms NET 30 DAYS 

(98 

(118 

Total Qty 

FEINfl Customer ServiceO 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

8 

3 

64 

24 

423 

Remit To: 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2401 

Invoice Date Page Number 

16-MAY-21 2 of 2 

Invoice Number 

11792359 

Bales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

3,488.40 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 35.51 
FEET 2,272.64 

LINEAR 48.45 
FEET 1,162.80 

3,435.44 

17,389.04 

Sales Tax, .oo 
T•k• Dhcount of IP PAID OH OR BEPORB AMOVUT DUB 

17,389.04 
MO DAY 

.oo 06 15 



INVOICE 

-1:: FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To1 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS COO 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

18-MAY-21 10605 3228179 MISC 

30" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 

1/2) 

P-R-030"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"-----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10605 3228501 MISC 

30" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 

1/2) 

P-R-030 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"-----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term1 NE'r 30 DAYS 

(90 

(98 

Totel Qty 

FEINII Customer Servicell 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

13 

104 

13 

104 

234 

Remit Toi 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

18-MAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Nwnber 

11792612 

Sales Contract customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 35.51 
FEET 3,693.04 

3,693.04 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 35.51 
FEET 3,693.04 

3,693.04 

7,386.08 

Sales Tax, .oo 
T&ke Dh<1ount of JF PAID OU OR BIFORB MIOUUT DUB 

7,386.08 
l<O DAY 

.oo 06 17 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,PORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To: 
(PL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE PL 32092 

United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228343 ST6-107 

060L X 060W X 06WALL X 060H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece, 1/2 
060L X 060W X 06WALL X 08H, 

TOPSLAB 

Piece, 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228343 ST6-1071ACCY 

CAST USP PGH 5145-6210 

RAMNEJ< 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228347 ST6-109 

060L X 060W X OOWALL X 060H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece: 1/2 

060L X 060W X 08WALL X OOH, 

TOPSLAB 

Pieces 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228347 ST6-1091ACCY 

CAST USF R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEI< 1 1/4 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228347 ST6-ll2 

048DIA X 05WALL X 028H, 

Term1 NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

PEINII Customer Service# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

1 

1 

6 

1 

1 

l 

10 

l 

Remit Toi 

Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Dat:e Page Number 

18-MAY-21 l of! 4 

Invoice Number 

11792698 

Bales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH 3,083.54 

3,083.54 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

3,083.54 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .00 

.oo 

EACH 2,489.13 

2,489.13 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

2,489.13 

EACH .oo .00 

EACH .oo .oo 

.00 

EACH 1,649.88 1,649.88 

T•k.• Discount of IP PAID OH OR BIPORZ 

HO DAY 



-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP.COM 

Ship TOI 

(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

united Statee of America 

Date Plant BOL No 

INVOICE 

Descrir,tion 

MONOBASEEXT 
Piece: 1/2 
058X058~SLAB~05~MTR~008~0CT 

Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY"21 10611 3228347 ST6-112:ACC;t 
CAST USF FGM 5145-6210 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEK 1 1/4 P!l!:CE 

STRUCTURl!: ·roTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-152:ACCY 

CAST USF GRT 6217 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAX-21 10611 3228349 ST6-1531ACCY 

CAST USF GRT 6217 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-154:ACCY 

CAST USF GRT 6217 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-214 

048DIA X 05WALL X 028H, 

MONOBASEEXT 

Piece: 1/2 

058X058-SLAB~05NMTR~008NOCT 

Term1 NET 30 DAYS 

Total Qty 

FEIN# Customer Sarviceff 

54-0179210 469M458-7973 

credit@forterrabp,com 

Qty 

1 

1 

4 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Preonst, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 

DALLAS TX 75284~2481 

Invoice bate Page Number 

18-MAY-21 2 of 4 

Invoice Number 

11792698 

Sales contraat Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH ,00 .oo 

1,649.88 

EACH .00 ,00 

EACH .00 .00 

.00 

EACH .00 .oo 

.oo 

EACH .00 .oo 

.00 

EACH ,00 .oo 

.oo 

EACH 1,649.88 
1,649.88 

EACH .oo .00 

Take Dieeount of '.U' PAIO 011 OR BBl'ORB 

"° DA> 



-1:: FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABF,COM 

Ship To: 

INVOICE 

(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 

United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No 

Piece: 

Desc,;.i.ption 

2/2 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-214:ACCY 

CAST USF FGH 5145-6210 

RAMNEK 2 PIECE 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-250 

024L X 024W X 06WALL X 044H, 

MONOBASE 

Piece: 1/1 

STRUCTURE TO'rAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-250:ACCY 

CAST us~ GRT 6217 

EYEBOLTS&CHAINS SET 

STllUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-305 

072t. X 048W X 06WALL X 050H, 

MONOBASEJ.i:XT 
Piece: 1/2 
072L X O':l8W X 06WALL X 08H, 

TOPSLAB 
Piece: 2/2 

STRUCTURE 'r◊TAL 

18HMAYH21 1061l 3228349 ST6-305:ACCY 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

•rotal 

l'~XN# customer Se;r;v.i.ce# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 
credit@farterrabp.com 

Qty 

Qty 

1 

• 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Remit To: 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 

DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

18-MAY-21 3 of • 
Invoice Number 

11792698 

Sales Contract CustomeX' Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Px-ice 

1,649.88 

EACH .oo .00 

EACll .oo .00 

.00 

EACH 935.24 

935.24 

935.24 

EACH .00 .oo 

l!ACH ,00 .00 

,00 

EACH 3,121.01 
3,121,01 

EACH .00 
.00 

3,121.01 

Take Di11count of ):P PAID 011 OR BHPORB 

MO '" 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW.FORTERRABP.COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 

LAKE ASBURY 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To1 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 

475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 

SAINT AUGUSTINE PL 32092 

United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

CAST USP R&C 170-E STORM 

JOINT SEALANT RAMNEK 1 1/4 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-3531ACCY 

CAST USF ORT 6217 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

18-MAY-21 10611 3228349 ST6-3541ACCY 

CAST USF GRT 6217 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term, NET 30 DAYS 

PIECE 

Total Qty 

FEIN!# customer Service!# 

54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

1 

10 

1 

1 

57 

Remit To: 

Forterra Pipe & Preoast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

18-MAY-21 4 of 4 

Invoice Number 

11792690 

Sales Contract Customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo .oo 

EACH .oo .oo 

.00 

EACH .oo .oo 

.oo 

EACH .00 .oo 

.oo 

12,928.68 

Sales Tax: .oo 
Take Di•count of XP PAID OH OR 8BPORI AMOtJHr DUB 

12,928.68 
HO DAY 

.00 06 17 



INVOICE 

-1:: FORTERRA 
WWW.PORTERRABP.COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS PL 32043 

Bill TOI 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE PL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

19-MAY-21 10605 3229116 MISC 

30" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/2) 

P-R-030"-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611-----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

19-MAY-21 10605 3229132 MISC 

30 11 RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/2) 

P-R-030"-PPL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"-----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

19-MAY-21 10605 3229133 MISC 

30" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/2) 

P-R-030 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"-----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Terms NET 30 DAYS 

(96 

(98 

(98 

Total Qty 

PEIN# Customer Service# 
54-0179210 469-456-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

13 

104 

13 

104 

13 

104 

351 

Remit TOI 
Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 042401 

DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

19-MAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Nwnber 

11792837 

Sales Contract Customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 35,51 
FEET 3,693.04 

3,693.04 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 35.51 
FEET 3,693.04 

3,693.04 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 35.51 
FEET 3,693.04 

3,693.04 

11,079.12 

Sales Tax, .oo 
Take Discount of IP PAID OH OR DBPORB AMOUNT DUB 

11,079.12 
MO DAY 

.oo 06 18 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship TOI 

(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

20-MAY-21 10605 3229446 MISC 

24 11 RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
"X505CC) 

30 11 RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
1/2) 

P-R-024 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

P-R-030 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-09611-----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAI, 

20-MAY-21 10605 3229449 MISC 

24 11 RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
11X505CC) 

P-R-024 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

(3/4 

(98 

(3/4 

Total Qty 

FEINlt Customer Servicelt 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

18 

1 

144 

8 

16 

128 

315 

Remit To: 
Forterra Pipe & Preaaet, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2481 

Invoice Date Page Number 

20-MAY-21 1 of 1 

Invoice Number 

11793000 

Sales Contract Customer Number 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 27.80 
FEET 4,003.20 

LINEAR 35,51 
FEET 284.08 

4,287.28 

EACH .oo 
.00 

LINEAR 27.80 
FEET 3,558.40 

3,558.40 

7,845,68 

Sales Tax, .oo 
'take Dhcount of :IP PAID OH OR BBFORE 11.MOUHT DUB 

7,845.68 
MO DAY 

.oo 06 19 



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November I, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

027 

FORTERRA Pipe & Pmnst TAX EXEMPT (Mnterinls) 

Invoice # 11793244 $5,337.60 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments 01· 
state Costs oflssuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

J;8( obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

2 of 2 ForterraXIO 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby furthel' certifies that there has not been filed with or 
sel'ved upon the District notice of any lien, 1·ight to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the l'ight to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 



Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DE PMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



INVOICE 

-II: FORTERRA 
WWW,FORTERRABP,COM 

Ship To: 
(FL) ROLLING HILLS LOT 139 PHA 
LAKE ASBURY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS FL 32043 

Bill To: 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE STE 114 
SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092 
United States of America 

Date Plant BOL No Description 

21-MAY-21 10605 3229874 MISC 

24" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
"X505CC) 

P-R-024"-PPL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096"----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 
21-MAY-21 10605 3229879 MISC 

24" RUBBER GASKET PROFILE 
11X505CC) 

P-R-024 11-PFL-CL-3-B 
WALL-096 11----GRANITE MIX 

STRUCTURE TOTAL 

MATERIAL SUB-TOTAL 

Term: NET 30 DAYS 

(3/4 

(3/4 

Total Qty 

FEINII Customer Service fl 
54-0179210 469-458-7973 

credit@forterrabp.com 

Qty 

14 

112 

10 

80 

216 

Remit To: 

Forterra Pipe & Precast, LLC 
PO BOX 842481 
DALLAS TX 75284-2401 

Invoice Date Page Nwnber 

21-MAY-21 l of 1 

Invoice Number 

11793244 

Sales Contract Customer Nwnber 

11013697 10036150 

Customer Order 

TBD 

Unit Unit price Extended Price 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR 27,80 
FEET 3,113.60 

3,113.60 

EACH .oo 
.oo 

LINEAR. 27.80 
FEET 2,224.00 

2,224.00 

5,337,60 

sales Tax, .oo 
Take Discount of IP l>AID ON OR DEFORE ~- AMOUllt DUE 

5,337.60 
110 DAY 

.oo 06 20 
---;::i ~ 

-



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Ti·ust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Ti·ustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

028 

CORE & MAIN TAX EXEMPT (Mntel'ials) 

Invoice #0281964 $1,756.80 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

'12'.( obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the nf~£Hct, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set fo1·th above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DE OPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



1830 Craig Park Court 

st. Louis, MO 63146 

INVOICE 

Baokordered from, 

Invoice fl 
Invoice Date 
Account lJ 
Sales Rep 
Phone# 

0281964 
5/24/21 
251473 

CHRISTOPHER VAUSE 
904-268-7007 

Branch #035 Jacksonville, FL 
Total Amount Due $1,756.80 

Remit To: 

2/11/21 N556082 
CORR r,. MAIN LP 
PO BOX 28330 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
475 W TOWN PL STE 114 
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3649 

000/0000 
00000 

ST, LOUIS, MO 63146 

Shipped To: 
ROLLING HILLS S/D 
C/O VALLENCOURT CONSTRUSTION 
BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 

CUSTOMER JOB- PO #001 ROLLING HILLS A 

Thank you for the opportunity to oerve youl We appreciate your prompt payment. 

Date Ordered Date Shipped Cu11tomer PO II Job Name 
1/05/21 5/19/21 SEE BELOW ROLLING HILLS A 

Job II 
PO #001 

Bill of Lading Shipped Via 
BEST WAY 

Invoice II 
0281964 

Product Code De11cription Ordered Shipped B/O 
Quantity 

Price UM Extended Price 

020618P 

Freight 

Terms: NBT 30 

CUSTOMER PO#- #001/PVC PIPE 

CORE & MAIN PO#- 0118248 

6 PVC C900 DR18 PIPE (G) 20' 
PURP PC235 
BID SEQ# 170 

Delivery Handling Restock 

360 360 

Miao 

4.88000 FT 

Subtotal, 
Other, 
Tax, 

Invoice Total: 

1,756.80 

1,756.80 
.oo 
.00 

$1,756.80 

This transaction is governed by and subject to Core &. Main•• standard terms and conditions, whioh are incorporated by r•ferenoe and aooepted. 
To review thel'le terms •nd oondltiona, plea11e via it I https//tandc .coreand.tnain ,co111/ 

00000 Page: 1 



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
11Trustee 11

), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 
(C) Amount Payable: 

029 

ETM 
Invoice #0197881 $3,858.54 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is clue and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs oflssuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

~ obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting· the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby fmther certifies that such requisition contains no 
item representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is he1·eby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DE PMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



Hadden Engineering, Inc. 
P.O. Box 9509 
Fleming Island, FL 32003 

Project 17186.27000 Rolling Hills - GEi 
Professional Services rendered through May 1, 2021 

Total Fee 

Percent Complete 

77,170.87 

20.00 Total Earned 
Previous Fee Billing 
Current Fee Billing 

Total Fee 

May 7, 2021 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 

15,434.17 
11,575.63 
3,858.54 

17186.27000 
0197881 

3,858.54 

Invoice Total this Period ====$=3=,8=5=8=.5=4 

Outstanding Invoices 

Number 
0197456 
Total 

Date 
4/7/2021 

Balance 
3,858.54 
3,858.54 

Engl~nd• Thim)& millar,lnc. 
~lGIHWIS•PW!litRS•SO~•O!S•W.'!IOC.l.fEAl\CITTl'ClS 

!ln5CilSlA,.,pm&.,J,Jo:~1'.fu'.d,:lliM•~IOl~Nml•lllOOl-615-m'i 

~A«'.(l:!i~ lC{(((.Lll~ 



REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated 
as of October 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

030 

HADDEN ENGINEERING, INC. 

Invoice #5978 $2,625.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pm·suant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to 
be made: 

~e undersigned hereby certifies that: 

~ obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been .incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a prope1· charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 
2020 Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account; 

OR 

D this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or 
claim affecting· the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the 
Payee set forth above, which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment hereof. 



The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no 
item 1·epresenting payment on account of any retained percentage which the 
District is at the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is he1·eby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
• LOPMENT DISTRICT 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for 
the portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is 
being made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to 
the Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified 
on the date hereof. 



HADDEN ENGINEERING, INC. 

POST OFFICE BOX 9509 
FLEMING ISLAND, FL 32006 
(904) 269-9999 

BILL TO 

Rolling Hills CDD 
c/o Mr. Jim Oliver 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
World Gold Village 
St. Augustine, FL. 32092 

DESCRIPTION 

CDD ENGINEER 
CONSTRUCTION SITE INSPECTION(s) 
Review, Approve and Certify Contractor Pay 
Requests-Create Requisitions and 
forward to Jim Oliver, etc. 
Handle Supplier Direct Payment Requests 
Communication(s) and coordination with 
Contractor(s) and CDD Mngr. 

Invoice Due and Payable Upon Receipt 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Invoice 

DATE INVOICE# 

5/25/2021 5978 

PERIOD COVERED 

April 27, 2021 
May 24,2021 

HOURS 

21 

PROJECT NO. 

14201 

RATE 

125.00 

0.00 

Total 

jlJL 

PROJECT 

RHCDD 

AMOUNT 

2,625.00 

0.00 

$2,625.00 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Ability of Personnel Proposer's Experience Understanding of Scope 
of Work

Ability to Furnish the 
Required Services Price

(e.g., geographic locations 
of the firm's headquarters 

or permanent office in 
relation to the project; 

capabilities and experience 
of key personnel; present 

ability to manage this 
project; evaluation of 

existing workload; 
proposed staffing levels, 

etc.)

(e.g., past record and 
experience of the Proposer 
in similar projects; volume 

of work previously 
performed by the firm; past 

performance for other 
Community Development 

Districts in other contracts; 
character; integrity; 

reputation of respondent, 
etc.)

Extent to which the 
proposal demonstrates an 

understanding of the 
District's needs for the 

services requested.

Extent to which the 
proposal demonstrates the 

adequacy of proposer's 
financial resources and 
stability as a business 

entity necessary to 
complete the services 

required (e.g., the 
existence of any natural 

disaster plan for business 
operations).

Points will be awarded 
based upon the price bid 
for the rendering of the 

services and 
reasonableness of the price 

to services.

Point Total

Proposer 20 20 20 20 20 100

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank

Grau & Associates

Rolling Hills Community Development District
Auditor Selection Evaluation Criteria



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
  PROPOSAL FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED BY: 
 
 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PL 
 
 
 
 

600 Citrus Avenue, Suite 200            (772) 461-6120 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

 
 

CONTACT PERSON: 
 

J. W. Gaines, CPA, Director 
 
 

DATE OF PROPOSAL: 
 
 

May 27, 2021



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SECTION PAGE 
 
 
 A. Letter of Transmittal 1-2 
 

B. Profile of the Proposer 
   
  Description and History of Audit Firm 3 
 
  Professional Staff Resources  4-5 
 
  Ability to Furnish the Required Services 5 
 
  Arbitrage Rebate Services 6 
 
A. Governmental Auditing Experience 7-16 

 
B. Fee Schedule 17  

 
C. Scope of Work to be Performed 17 

 
D. Resumes 18-33 

 
E. Peer Review Letter 34 

 
Instructions to Proposers 35-36 
 
Evaluation Criteria 37 
 
 

 
 



- 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 27, 2021 
 
 
 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
Governmental Management Services 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
 
Dear District Manager: 
 
Thank you very much for the opportunity to present our professional credentials to provide audit 
services for Rolling Hills Community Development District. 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has assembled a 
team of governmental and nonprofit specialists second to none to serve our clients.  Our firm 
has the necessary qualifications and experience to serve as the independent auditors for Rolling 
Hills Community Development District.  We will provide you with top quality, responsive service. 
 
Experience 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is a recognized leader 
in providing services to governmental and nonprofit agencies throughout Florida.  We have 
been the independent auditors for a number of local governmental agencies and through our 
experience in performing their audits, we have been able to increase our audit efficiency and; 
therefore, reduce costs.  We have continually passed this cost savings on to our clients and will 
continue to do so in the future.  As a result of our experience and expertise, we have developed 
an effective and efficient audit approach designed to meet or exceed the performance 
specifications in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the standards for 
financial and compliance audits.  We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; “Government Auditing 
Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act, Subpart F of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,  
with minimal disruption to your operations.  Our firm has frequent technical updates to keep our 
personnel informed and up-to-date on all changes that are occurring within the industry.  
 
 
 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 

600 Citrus Avenue 
Suite 200 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

7721461-6120 II 461-1155 
FAX: 7721468-9278 

Member AICPA 

Fort Pierce I Stuart 

Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms 
Private Companies practice Section 

Member FICPA 



- 2 -

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
May 27, 2021 

Our firm is a member of the Government Audit Quality Center, an organization dedicated to 
improving government audit quality.  We also utilize the audit program software of a nationally 
recognized CPA firm to assure us that we are up to date with all auditing standards and to assist 
us maintain maximum audit efficiencies. 

To facilitate your evaluation of our qualifications and experience, we have arranged this 
proposal to include a resume of our firm, including our available staff, our extensive prior 
governmental and nonprofit auditing experience and clients to be contacted. 

You need a firm that will provide an efficient, cost-effective, high-quality audit within critical time 
constraints.  You need a firm with the prerequisite governmental and nonprofit experience to 
perform your audit according to stringent legal and regulatory requirements, a firm that 
understands the complex nature of community development districts and their unique 
compliance requirements.  You need a firm with recognized governmental and nonprofit 
specialists within the finance and governmental communities.  And, certainly, you need a firm 
that will provide you with valuable feedback to enhance your current and future operations.  
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is that firm.  J. W. 
Gaines is the person authorized to make representations for the firm. 

Thank you again for the opportunity to submit this proposal to Rolling Hills Community 
Development District. 

Very truly yours, 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 

r ... ~rp Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
-OJ Gaines & Frank 

Certified PublicAccountants Pl 

audit
BTEGF



- 3 - 

PROFILE OF THE PROPOSER 
 
Description and History of Audit Firm 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is a Treasure 
Coast public accounting firm, which qualifies as a small business firm, as established by the 
Small Business Administration (13 CFR 121.38), with offices in Fort Pierce and Stuart.  We are a 
member of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants.  The firm was formed from the merger of Edwards, Berger, Harris & 
Company (originated in 1972) and McAlpin, Curtis & Associates (originated in 1949).  J. W. 
Gaines and Associates (originated in 1979) merged with the firm in 2004.  Our tremendous 
growth rate experienced over the last 71 years is directly attributable to the firm’s unrelenting 
dedication to providing the highest quality, responsive professional services attainable to its 
clients. 
 
We are a member of the Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) to assure we meet the highest standards.  Membership in 
this practice section requires that our firm meet more stringent standards than standard AICPA 
membership.  These rigorous requirements include the requirement of a triennial peer review of 
our firm’s auditing and accounting practice and annual Continuing Professional Education (CPE) 
for all accounting staff (whether CPA or non-CPA).  For standard AICPA membership, only a 
quality review is required and only CPAs must meet CPE requirements. 
 
We are also a member of the Government Audit Quality Center (“the Center”) of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants to assure the quality of our government audits.  
Membership in the Center, which is voluntary, requires our firm to comply with additional 
standards to promote the quality of government audits.   
 
We have been extensively involved in serving local government entities with professional 
accounting, auditing and consulting services throughout the entire 71 year history of our firm.  
Our substantial experience over the years makes us uniquely qualified to provide accounting, 
auditing, and consulting services to these clients.  We are a recognized leader in providing 
services to governmental and nonprofit agencies on the Treasure Coast and in Central and 
South Florida, with extensive experience in auditing community development districts and water 
control districts.  We were the independent auditors of the City of Fort Pierce for over 37 years 
and currently, we are the independent auditors for St. Lucie County since 2002, and for 38 of the 
42 years that the county has been audited by CPA firms.  Additionally, we have performed audits 
of the City of Stuart, the City of Vero Beach, Indian River County and Martin County.  We also 
presently audit over 75 Community Development Districts throughout Florida. 
 
Our firm was founded on the belief that we are better able to respond to our clients needs 
through education, experience, independence, quality control, and personal service.  Our firm’s 
commitment to quality is reflected in our endeavor of professional excellence via continuing 
education, the use of the latest computer technology, professional membership in PCPS and 
peer review. 
 
We believe our approach to audit engagements, intelligence and innovation teamed with sound 
professional judgment enables us to explore new concepts while remaining sensitive to the 
fundamental need for practical solutions.  We take pride in giving you the assurance that the 
personal assistance you receive comes from years of advanced training, technical experience 
and financial acumen. 



- 4 - 

Professional Staff Resources 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has a total of 
32 professional and administrative staff (including 14 professional staff with extensive 
experience servicing government entities).  The work will be performed out of our Fort 
Pierce office with a proposed staff of one senior accountant and one or two staff 
accountants supervised by an audit manager and audit partner.  With the exception of the 
directors of the firm’s offices, the professional staff is not specifically assigned to any of our 
individual offices.  The professional and administrative staff resources available to you 
through Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL are as 
follows: 
   Total 
Partners/Directors (CPA’s) 5 
Principals (CPA) 1 
Managers (CPA) 1 
Senior/Supervisor Accountants (2 CPA’s) 3 
Staff Accountants (1 CPA) 9 
Computer Specialist 1 
Paraprofessional 8 
Administrative   4 
 Total – all personnel 32 
 
Following is a brief description of each employee classification: 
 
Staff Accountant – Staff accountants work directly under the constant supervision of the 
auditor-in-charge and, are responsible for the various testing of documents, account 
analysis and any other duties as his/her supervisor believes appropriate.  Minimum 
qualification for a staff accountant is graduation from an accredited university or college with 
a degree in accounting or equivalent. 
 
Senior Accountant – A senior accountant must possess all the qualifications of the staff 
accountant, in addition to being able to draft the necessary reports and financial statements, 
and supervise other staff accountants when necessary. 
 
Managers – A manager must possess the qualifications of the senior accountant, plus be 
able to work without extensive supervision from the auditor-in-charge.  The manager should 
be able to draft audit reports from start to finish and to supervise the audit team, if 
necessary. 
 
Principal – A principal is a partner/director in training.  He has been a manager for several 
years and possesses the technical skills to act as the auditor–in-charge.  A principal has no 
financial interest in the firm. 
 
Partner/Director – The director has extensive governmental auditing experience and acts 
as the auditor-in-charge.  Directors have a financial interest in the firm. 
 
 
 



- 5 - 

Professional Staff Resources (Continued) 
 
Independence – Independence of the public accounting firm, with respect to the audit 
client, is the foundation from which the public gains its trust in the opinion issued by the 
public accounting firm at the end of the audit process.  This independence must be in 
appearance as well as in fact.  The public must perceive that the accounting firm is 
independent of the audit entity to ensure that nothing would compromise the opinion issued 
by the public accounting firm. Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public 
Accountants, PL is independent of Rolling Hills Community Development District, including 
its elected officials and related parties, at the date of this proposal, as defined by the 
following rules, regulations, and standards: 
 

AuSection 220 – Statements on Auditing Standards issued by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 
 
ET Sections 101 and 102 – Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 
 
Chapter 21A-1, Florida Administrative Code; 
 
Section 473.315, Florida Statutes; and, 
 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

 
On an annual basis, all members of the firm are required to confirm, in writing, that they have no 
personal or financial relationships or holding that would impair their independence with regard to 
the firm’s clients. 
 
Independence is a hallmark of our profession.  We encourage our staff to use professional 
judgment in situations where our independence could be impaired or the perception of a conflict 
of interest might exist.  In the governmental sector, public perception is as important as 
professional standards.  Therefore, the utmost care must be exercised by independent auditors 
in the performance of their duties. 
 
Ability to Furnish the Required Services 
 
As previously noted in the Profile of the Proposer section of this document, our firm has been in 
existence for over 69 years.  We have provided audit services to some clients for over 30 years 
continually.  Our firm is insured against physical loss through commercial insurance and we also 
carry liability insurance.  The majority of our audit documentation is stored electronically, both 
on our office network and on each employee laptop or computer assigned to each specific job.  
Our office computer network is backed up on tape, so in the event of a total equipment loss, we 
can restore all data as soon as replacement equipment is acquired.  In addition, our field laptop 
computers carry the same data and can be used in the event of emergency with virtually no 
delay in completing the required services.   



- 6 - 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES PROVIDED  
 
Arbitrage Rebate Services 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL also provides 
arbitrage rebate compliance and related services to governmental issuers.  The Tax Reform Act 
of 1986 requires issuers of most tax-exempt obligations to pay (i.e., “rebate”) to the United 
States government any arbitrage profits.  Arbitrage profits are earnings on the investment of 
bond proceeds and certain other monies in excess of what would have been earned had such 
monies been invested at a yield equal to the yield on the bonds. 
 
Federal tax law requires that interim rebate calculations and payments are due at the end of 
every fifth bond year.  Final payment is required upon redemption of the bonds.  More frequent 
calculations may be deemed advisable by an issuer’s auditor, trustee or bond counsel or to 
assure that accurate and current records are available.  These more frequent requirements are 
usually contained in the Arbitrage or Rebate Certificate with respect to the bonds. 
 
Our firm performs a comprehensive rebate analysis and includes the following: 
 

• Verifying that the issue is subject to rebate; 
• Calculating the bond yield; 
• Identifying, and separately accounting for, all “Gross Proceeds” (as that term is defined 

in the Code) of the bond issue, including those requiring analysis due to “transferred 
proceeds” and/or “commingled funds” circumstances; 

• Determining what general and/or elective options are available to Gross proceeds of the 
issue; 

• Calculating the issue’s excess investment earning (rebate liability), if any; 
• Delivering appropriate documentation to support all calculations;  
• Providing an executive summary identifying the methodology employed, major 

assumptions, conclusions, and any other recommendations for changes in 
recordkeeping and investment policies; 

• Assisting as necessary in the event of an Internal Revenue Service inquiry; and, 
• Consulting with issue staff, as necessary, regarding arbitrage related matters. 



- 7 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has been 
practicing public accounting in Florida for 69 years.  Our success over the years has been the 
result of a strong commitment to providing personalized quality service to our clients. 
 
The current members of our firm have performed audits of over 900 community development 
districts, and over 1,800 audits of municipalities, counties and other governmental entities such 
as the City of Fort Pierce and St. Lucie County. 
 
Our firm provides a variety of accounting, auditing, tax litigation support, and consulting 
services.  Some of the professional accounting, auditing and management consulting services 
that are provided by our firm are listed below: 
 

• Performance of annual financial and compliance audits, including Single Audits of state 
and federal financial assistance programs, under the provisions of the Single Audit Act, 
Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance), with minimal disruptions to your operations; 

• Performance of special compliance audits to ascertain compliance with the applicable 
local, state and federal laws and regulations; 

• Issuance of comfort letters and consent letters in conjunction with the issuance of tax-
exempt debt obligations, including compiling financial data and interim period financial 
statement reviews; 

• Calculation of estimated and actual federal arbitrage rebates; 
• Assistance in compiling historical financial data for first-time and supplemental 

submissions for GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting; 
• Preparation of indirect cost allocation systems in accordance with Federal and State 

regulatory requirements; 
• Providing human resource and employee benefit consulting; 
• Performance of automation feasibility studies and disaster recovery plans; 
• Performance feasibility studies concerning major fixed asset acquisitions and utility plant 

expansion plans (including electric, water, pollution control, and sanitation utilities); and 
• Assistance in litigation, including testimony in civil and criminal court. 
• Assist clients who utilize QuickBooks software with their software needs.  Our Certified 

QuickBooks Advisor has undergone extensive training through QuickBooks and has 
passed several exams to attain this Certification. 

 
Continuing Professional Education 
 
All members of the governmental audit staff of our firm, and audit team members assigned to 
this engagement, are in compliance with the Continuing Professional Education (CPE) 
requirements set forth in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  In addition, our firm is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Florida Statutes that require CPA’s to have met certain CPE requirements prior to proposing on 
governmental audit engagements. 
 
 



- 8 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
The audit team has extensive experience in performing governmental audits and is exposed to 
intensive and continuing concentration on these types of audits.  Due to the total number of 
governmental audits our team performs, each member of our governmental staff must 
understand and be able to perform several types of governmental audits.  It is our objective to 
provide each professional employee fifty hours or more of comprehensive continuing 
professional education each year.  This is accomplished through attending seminars throughout 
Florida and is reinforced through in-house training. 
 
Our firm has made a steadfast commitment to professional education.  Our active attendance 
and participation in continuing professional education is a major part of our objective to obtain 
the most recent knowledge on issues which are of importance to our clients.  We are growing on 
the reputation for work that our firm is providing today. 
 
Quality Control Program 
 
Quality control requires continuing commitment to professional excellence.  Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is formally dedicated to that 
commitment. 
 
To ensure maintaining the standards of working excellence required by our firm, we joined the 
Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA).  To be a participating member firm of this practice section, a firm must 
obtain an independent Peer Review of its quality control policies and procedures to ascertain 
the firm’s compliance with existing auditing standards on the applicable engagements. 
 
The scope of the Peer Review is comprehensive in that it specifically reviews the following 
quality control policies and procedures of the participating firm: 
 

• Professional, economic, and administrative independence; 
• Assignment of professional personnel to engagements; 
• Consultation on technical matters; 
• Supervision of engagement personnel; 
• Hiring and employment of personnel; 
• Professional development; 
• Advancement; 
• Acceptance and continuation of clients; and, 
• Inspection and review system. 

 
We believe that our commitment to the program is rewarding not only to our firm, but primarily to 
our clients. 
 
The external independent Peer Review of the elements of our quality control policies and 
procedures performed by an independent certified public accountant, approved by the PCPS of 
the AICPA, provides you with the assurance that we continue to conform to standards of the 
profession in the conduct of our accounting and auditing practice. 
 



- 9 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Our firm is also a member of Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC), a voluntary 
membership center for CPA firms that perform governmental audits.  This center promotes the 
quality of governmental audits. 
 
Our firm has completed successive Peer Reviews.  These reviews included a representative 
sample of our firm’s local governmental auditing engagements.  As a result of these reviews, 
our firm obtained an unqualified opinion on our quality control program and work procedures.  
On page 31 is a copy of our most recent Peer Review report.  It should be noted that we 
received a pass rating. 
 
Our firm has never had any disciplinary actions by state regulatory bodies or professional 
organizations. 
 
As our firm performs approximately one hundred fifty audits each year that are reviewed by 
federal, state or local entities, we are constantly dealing with questions from these entities about 
our audits.  We are pleased to say that any questions that have been raised were minor issues 
and were easily resolved without re-issuing any reports. 
 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (CAFR) 
 
We are proud and honored to have been involved with the City of Fort Pierce and the Fort 
Pierce Utilities Authority when they received their first Certificates of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal years ended September 30, 1988 and 1994, 
respectively.  We were also instrumental in the City of Stuart receiving the award, in our first 
year of performing their audit, for the year ended September 30, 1999.   
 
We also assisted St. Lucie County, Florida for the year ended September 30, 2003, in preparing 
their first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, and St. Lucie County has received their 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting every year since.    
 
As continued commitment to insuring that we are providing the highest level of experience, we 
have had at least one employee of our firm serve on the GFOA – Special Review Committee 
since the mid-1980s.  This committee is made up of selective Certified Public Accountants 
throughout the United States who have demonstrated their high level of knowledge and 
expertise in governmental accounting.  Each committee member attends a special review 
meeting at the Annual GFOA Conference.  At this meeting, the committee reports on the 
Certificate of Achievement Program’s most recent results, future goals, and common reporting 
deficiencies. 
 
We feel that our previous experience in assisting the City of Fort Pierce, the Fort Pierce Utilities 
Authority and St. Lucie County obtain their first CAFRs, and the City of Stuart in continuing to 
receive a CAFR and our firm’s continued involvement with the GFOA, and the CAFR review 
committee make us a valued asset for any client in the field of governmental financial reporting. 
 
 
 



- 10 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
References 
 
Terracina Community Development   Gateway Community Development   
    District      District 
Jeff Walker, Special District Services Stephen Bloom, Severn Trent Management 
(561) 630-4922 (954) 753-5841 
 
The Reserve Community Development District Port of the Islands Community Development  
         District 
Darrin Mossing, Governmental Management Cal Teague, Premier District Management  
     Services LLC      
(407) 841-5524 (239) 690-7100 ext 101 
 
In addition to the above, we have the following additional governmental audit experience: 
 
Community Development Districts 
 
Aberdeen Community Development Beacon Lakes Community

 District  Development District

Alta Lakes Community Development Beaumont Community Development
  District    District

Amelia Concourse Community Bella Collina Community Development
Development District    District

Amelia Walk Communnity Bonnet Creek Community 
Development District    Development District

Aqua One Community Development Buckeye Park Community
   District    Development District

Arborwood Community Development Candler Hills East Community 
District Development District

Arlington Ridge Community Cedar Hammock Community
   Development District  Development District

Bartram Springs Community Central Lake Community
   Development District Development District

Baytree Community Development Channing Park Community 
   District  Development District



- 11 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Cheval West Community Evergreen Community Development

 Development District    District

Coconut Cay Community Forest Brooke Community 
    Development District  Development District

Colonial Country Club Community Gateway Services Community
 Development District    Development District

Connerton West Community Gramercy Farms Community
   Development District  Development District

Copperstone Community Greenway Improvement District
   Development District

Creekside @ Twin Creeks Community Greyhawk Landing Community
 Development District    Development District

Deer Run Community Development Griffin Lakes Community Development 
 District District

Dowden West Community Habitat Community Development 
   Development District District

DP1 Community Development Harbor Bay Community Development
   District    District

Eagle Point Community Development Harbourage at Braden River
 District    Community Development District

East Nassau Stewardship District Harmony Community Development 
District

Eastlake Oaks Community
 Development District Harmony West Community  

Development District
Easton Park Community Development 

 District Harrison Ranch Community
Development District

Estancia @ Wiregrass Community
 Development District Hawkstone Community 

Development District
 



- 12 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Heritage Harbor Community Madeira Community Development

Development District District

Heritage Isles Community Marhsall Creek Community
Development District Development District

Heritage Lake Park Community Meadow Pointe IV Community
Development District Development District

Heritage Landing Community Meadow View at Twin Creek 
Development District Community Development District

Heritage Palms Community Mediterra North Community
Development District Development District

Heron Isles Community Midtown Miami Community
Development District Development District

Heron Isles Community Development Mira Lago West Community
District Development District

Highland Meadows II Community Montecito Community 
Development District Development District

Julington Creek Community Narcoossee Community
Development District Development District

Laguna Lakes Community Naturewalk Community 
Development District Development District

Lake Bernadette Community New Port Tampa Bay Community
Development District Development District

Lakeside Plantation Community Overoaks Community Development
Development District District

Landings at Miami Community Panther Trace II Community
Development District Development District

Legends Bay Community Paseo Community Development
Development District District

Lexington Oaks Community Pine Ridge Plantation Community
Development District Development District

Live Oak No. 2 Community Piney Z Community Development
Development District District  



- 13 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED)  
 
Poinciana Community Sampson Creek Community

Development District Development District

Poinciana West Community San Simeon Community
Development District Development District

Port of the Islands Community Six Mile Creek Community
Development District Development District

Portofino Isles Community South Village Community
Development District Development District

Quarry Community Development Southern Hills Plantation I
District Community Development District

Renaissance Commons Community Southern Hills Plantation III
Development District Community Development District

Reserve Community South Fork Community
Development District Development District

Reserve #2 Community St. John's Forest Community
Development District Development District

River Glen Community Stoneybrook South Community
Development District Development District

River Hall Community Stoneybrook South at ChampionsGate
Development District Community Development District

River Place on the St. Lucie Stoneybrook West Community
Community Development District Development District

Rivers Edge Community Tern Bay Community
Development District Development District

Riverwood Community Terracina Community Development
Development District District

Riverwood Estates Community Tison's Landing Community
Development District Development District

Rolling Hills Community TPOST Community Development
Development District District

Rolling Oaks Community
Development District  



- 14 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED)  
 
Triple Creek Community Vizcaya in Kendall

Development District Development District

TSR Community Development Waterset North Community
District Development District

Turnbull Creek Community Westside Community Development
Development District District

Twin Creeks North Community WildBlue Community Development
Development District District

Urban Orlando Community Willow Creek Community
Development District Development District

Verano #2 Community Willow Hammock Community
Development District Development District

Viera East Community Winston Trails Community
Development District Development District

VillaMar Community Zephyr Ridge Community
Development District Development District

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 15 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Other Governmental Organizations 
 
City of Westlake 
 
 
Florida Inland Navigation District 
 
Fort Pierce Farms Water Control 
 District 
 
Indian River Regional Crime 
   Laboratory, District 19, Florida 
 
Viera Stewardship District 

 
 
Office of the Medical Examiner, 
   District 19 
 
Rupert J. Smith Law Library  
   of St. Lucie County 
 
St. Lucie Education Foundation 
 
Seminole Improvement District 
 
Troup Indiantown Water  
   Control District 

 
Current or Recent Single Audits, 

 
St. Lucie County, Florida 
Early Learning Coalition, Inc. 
Treasure Coast Food Bank, Inc. 

Gateway Services Community Development 
District

 
Members of our audit team have acquired extensive experience from performing or participating 
in over 2,100 audits of governments, independent special taxing districts, school boards, and 
other agencies that receive public money and utilize fund accounting. 
 
Much of our firm’s auditing experience is with compliance auditing, which is required for publicly 
financed agencies.  In this type of audit, we do a financial examination and also confirm 
compliance with various statutory and regulatory guidelines. 
 
Following is a summary of our other experience, including Auditor General experience, as it 
pertains to other governmental and fund accounting audits. 
 
Counties  
(Includes elected constitutional officers, utilities and dependent taxing districts) 
 
Indian River 
Martin 
Okeechobee 
Palm Beach 
 
Municipalities 
 
City of Port St. Lucie 
City of Vero Beach 
Town of Orchid 



- 16 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Special Districts 
 
Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
Boggy Creek Community Development District 
Capron Trail Community Development District 
Celebration Pointe Community Development District 
Coquina Water Control District 
Diamond Hill Community Development District 
Dovera Community Development District 
Durbin Crossing Community Development District  
Golden Lakes Community Development District 
Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 
Martin Soil and Water Conservation District 
Meadow Pointe III Community Development District 
Myrtle Creek Community Development District 
St. Lucie County – Fort Pierce Fire District 
The Crossings at Fleming Island 
St. Lucie West Services District 
Indian River County Mosquito Control District 
St. John’s Water Control District 
Westchase and Westchase East Community Development Districts 
Pier Park Community Development District 
Verandahs Community Development District 
Magnolia Park Community Development District 
 
Schools and Colleges 
 
Federal Student Aid Programs – Indian River Community College 
Indian River Community College 
Okeechobee County District School Board 
St. Lucie County District School Board 
 
State and County Agencies 
 
Central Florida Foreign-Trade Zone, Inc. (a nonprofit organization affiliated with the St. Lucie     
    County Board of County Commissioners) 
Florida School for Boys at Okeechobee 
Indian River Community College Crime Laboratory 
Indian River Correctional Institution 
 
 



- 17 - 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
We propose the fee for our audit services described below to be $3,650 for the year ended 
September 30, 2021, $3,750 for the year ended September 30, 2022, $3,850 for the year ended 
September 30, 2023, and $3,975 for the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2025. The fee is 
contingent upon the financial records and accounting systems of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District being “audit ready” and the financial activity for the District is not materially 
increased.  If we discover that additional preparation work or subsidiary schedules are needed, 
we will consult with your authorized representative.  We can assist with this additional work at 
our standard rates should you desire. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED 
 
If selected as the District's auditors, we will perform a financial and compliance audit in 
accordance with Section 11.45, Florida Statutes, in order to express an opinion on an annual 
basis on the financial statements of Rolling Hills Community Development District as of 
September 30, 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. The audits will be performed to the extent 
necessary to express an opinion on the fairness in all material respects with which the financial 
statements present the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to determine whether, for 
selected transactions, operations are properly conducted in accordance with legal and 
regulatory requirements.  Reportable conditions that are also material weaknesses shall be 
identified as such in the Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters.  Other (non-reportable) conditions discovered during the course 
of the audit will be reported in a separate letter to management, which will be referred to in the 
Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters. 
 
Our audit will be performed in accordance with standards for financial and compliance audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, as well as in compliance with rules and 
regulations of audits of special districts as set forth by the State Auditor General in 
Chapter 10.550, Local Governmental Entity Audits, and other relevant federal, state and county 
orders, statutes, ordinances, charter, resolutions, bond covenants, Administrative Code and 
procedures, or rules and regulations which may pertain to the work required in the engagement. 
 
The primary purpose of our audit will be to express an opinion on the financial statements 
discussed above.  It should be noted that such audits are subject to the inherent risk that errors 
or irregularities may not be detected.  However, if conditions are discovered which lead to the 
belief that material errors, defalcations or other irregularities may exist or if other circumstances 
are encountered that require extended services, we will promptly notify the appropriate 
individual. 
 
 
 



- 18 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
J. W. Gaines, CPA, CITP 
Director – 41 years 
 
Education 
♦ Stetson University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Registrations 
♦ Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
♦ Certified Information Technology Professional (CITP) – American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
♦ Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Affiliate member Government Finance Officers Association 
♦ Past President, Vice President-Campaign Chairman, Vice President and Board Member of 

United Way of St. Lucie County, 1989 - 1994 
♦ Past President, President Elect, Secretary and Treasurer of the Treasure Coast Chapter of 

the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1988 - 1991 
♦ Past President of Ft. Pierce Kiwanis Club, 1994 - 95, Member/Board Member since 1982 
♦ Past President, Vice President and Treasurer of St. Lucie County Chapter of the American 

Cancer Society, 1980 -1986 
♦ Member of the St. Lucie County Chamber of Commerce, Member Board of Directors, 

Treasurer, September 2002 - 2006, Chairman Elect 2007, Chairman 2008, Past Chairman 
2009  

♦ Member Lawnwood Regional Medical Center Board of Trustees, 2000 – Present, Chairman 
2013 - Present 

♦ Member of St. Lucie County Citizens Budget Committee, 2001 – 2002 
♦ Member of Ft. Pierce Citizens Budget Advisory Committee, 2010 – 2011 
♦ Member of Ft. Pierce Civil Service Appeals Board, 2013 - Present 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Miles Grant Development/Country Club – Stuart, Florida, July 1975 – October 1976 
♦ State Auditor General’s Office – Public Accounts Auditor – November 1976 through 

September 1979 
♦ Director - Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants PL, 

responsible for numerous government and nonprofit audits. 
♦ Over 40 years experience in all phases of public accounting and auditing experience, with a 

concentration in financial and compliance audits.  Mr. Gaines has been involved in all 
phases of the audits listed on the preceding pages. 



- 19 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
J. W. Gaines, CPA, CITP (Continued) 
Director 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Has participated in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors over the last two years to keep abreast of the latest 
developments in accounting and auditing such as: 

Governmental Accounting Report and Audit Update 
Analytical Procedures, FICPA 
Annual Update for Accountants and Auditors 
Single Audit Sampling and Other Considerations 



- 20 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David S. McGuire, CPA, CITP 
Accounting and Audit Principal – 18 years 
Accounting and Audit Manager – 4 years 
Staff Accountant  – 11 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of Central Florida, B.A. – Accounting 
♦ Barry University – Master of Professional Accountancy 
 
Registrations 
♦ Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
♦ Certified Information Technology Professional (CITP) – American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants 
♦ Certified Not-For-Profit Core Concepts 2018 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
♦ Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Associate Member, Florida Government Finance Office Associates 
♦ Assistant Coach – St. Lucie County Youth Football Organization (1994 – 2005) 
♦ Assistant Coach – Greater Port St. Lucie Football League, Inc. (2006 – 2010) 
♦ Board Member – Greater Port St. Lucie Football League, Inc. (2011 – 2017) 
♦ Treasurer, AIDS Research and Treatment Center of the Treasure Coast, Inc. (2000 – 

2003) 
♦ Board Member/Treasurer, North Treasure Coast Chapter, American Red Cross  

(2004 – 2010) 
♦ Member/Board Member of Port St. Lucie Kiwanis (1994 – 2001) 
♦ President (2014/15) of Sunrise Kiwanis of Fort Pierce (2004 – 2017) 
♦ St. Lucie District School Board Superintendent Search Committee (2013 – present) 
♦ Board Member – Phrozen Pharoes (2019-2021) 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Twenty-eight years public accounting experience with an emphasis on nonprofit and 

governmental organizations.  
♦ Audit Manager in-charge on a variety of audit and review engagements within several 

industries, including the following government and nonprofit organizations: 
  St. Lucie County, Florida 
  19th Circuit Office of Medical Examiner 
  Troup Indiantown Water Control District 
  Exchange Club Center for the Prevention of Child Abuse, Inc. 
  Healthy Kids of St. Lucie County 
  Mustard Seed Ministries of Ft. Pierce, Inc. 
  Reaching Our Community Kids, Inc. 
  Reaching Our Community Kids - South 
  St. Lucie County Education Foundation, Inc. 
  Treasure Coast Food Bank, Inc. 
  North Springs Improvement District 
♦ Four years of service in the United States Air Force in computer operations, with a top 

secret (SCI/SBI) security clearance. 



- 21 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David S. McGuire, CPA, CITP (Continued) 
Accounting and Audit Principal  
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. McGuire has attended numerous continuing professional education courses and 

seminars taught by nationally recognized sponsors in the accounting auditing and single 
audit compliance areas.  He has attended courses over the last two years in those areas as 
follows: 

  Not-for-Profit Auditing Financial Results and Compliance Requirements 
  Update:  Government Accounting Reporting and Auditing 
  Annual Update for Accountants and Auditors 
 
 



- 22 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David F. Haughton, CPA 
Accounting and Audit Manager – 30 years 
 
Education 
♦ Stetson University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Registrations 
♦ Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
♦ Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Former Member of Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants Committee on State and 

Local Government 
♦ Affiliate Member Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for over 10 years 
♦ Affiliate Member Florida Government Finance Officers Association (FGFOA) for over 10 

years 
♦ Technical Review – 1997 FICPA Course on State and Local Governments in Florida 
♦ Board of Directors – Kiwanis of Ft. Pierce, Treasurer – 1994-1999; Vice President – 1999-

2001 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Twenty-seven years public accounting experience with an emphasis on governmental and 

nonprofit organizations. 
♦ State Auditor General’s Office – West Palm Beach, Staff Auditor, June 1985 to September 

1985 
♦ Accounting and Audit Manager of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public 

Accountants PL, responsible for audit and accounting services including governmental and 
not-for-profit audits. 

♦ Over 20 years of public accounting and governmental experience, specializing in 
governmental and nonprofit organizations with concentration in special districts, including 
Community Development Districts which provide services including water and sewer utilities.  
Governmental and non-profit entities served include the following: 

 
Counties: 

  St. Lucie County 
 
  Municipalities: 
  City of Fort Pierce 
  City of Stuart 
 
 



- 23 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David F. Haughton, CPA (Continued) 
Accounting and Audit Manager 
 
Professional Experience (Continued) 

Special Districts: 
Bluewaters Community Development District 
Country Club of Mount Dora Community Development District 
Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District #1 and #2 
Indigo Community Development District 
North Springs Improvement District 
Renaissance Commons Community Development District 
St. Lucie West Services District 
Stoneybrook Community Development District 
Summerville Community Development District 
Terracina Community Development District 
Thousand Oaks Community Development District 
Tree Island Estates Community Development District 
Valencia Acres Community Development District 

 
Non-Profits: 
The Dunbar Center, Inc. 
Hibiscus Children’s Foundation, Inc. 
Hope Rural School, Inc. 
Maritime and Yachting Museum of Florida, Inc. 
Tykes and Teens, Inc. 
United Way of Martin County, Inc. 
Workforce Development Board of the Treasure Coast, Inc. 
 

♦ While with the Auditor General’s Office he was on the staff for the state audits of the Martin 
County School District and Okeechobee County School District. 

♦ During 1997 he performed a technical review of the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants state CPE course on Audits of State and Local Governments in Florida.  His 
comments were well received by the author and were utilized in future updates to the 
course. 

 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ During the past several years, he has participated in numerous professional development 

training programs sponsored by the AICPA and FICPA, including state conferences on 
special districts and governmental auditing in Florida.  He averages in excess of 100 hours 
bi-annually of advanced training which exceeds the 80 hours required in accordance with the 
continuing professional education requirements of the Florida State Board of accountancy 
and the AICPA Private Companies Practice Section.  He has over 75 hours of governmental 
CPE credit within the past two years. 

 
 



- 24 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Matthew Gonano, CPA 
Senior Staff Accountant – 10 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of North Florida, B.B.A. – Accounting 
♦ University of Alicante, Spain – International Business 
♦ Florida Atlantic University – Masters of Accounting 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
 
♦ American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 
Professional Experience 
 
♦ Senior Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
♦ Performed audits of nonprofit and governmental organizations in accordance with 

Governmental Accounting Auditing Standards (GAAS) 
♦ Performed Single Audits of nonprofit organizations in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, 

Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
 

Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Gonano has participated in numerous continuing professional education courses. 



- 25 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Paul Daly 
Staff Accountant – 9 years 
 
Education 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, B.S. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Working to attain the requirements to take the Certified Public Accounting (CPA) exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 26 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Melissa Marlin 
Senior Staff Accountant – 7 years 
 
Education 
♦ Indian River State College, A.A. – Accounting 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mrs. Marlin participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Mrs. Marlin is currently studying to pass the CPA exam. 

 
 



- 27 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Bryan Snyder 
Staff Accountant – 5 years 
 
Education 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Accountant beginning his professional auditing career with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, 

& Frank. 
♦ Mr. Snyder is gaining experience auditing governmental & nonprofit entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Snyder participates in numerous continuing education courses and plans on working to 

acquire his CPA certificate. 
♦ Mr. Snyder is currently studying to pass the CPA exam. 

 
 



- 28 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Maritza Stonebraker 
Staff Accountant – 4 years 
 
Education 
♦ Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff Accountant beginning her professional auditing career with Berger, Toombs, Elam, 

Gaines, & Frank. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mrs. Stonebraker participates in numerous continuing education courses and plans on 

acquiring her CPA. 
♦ Mrs. Stonebraker is currently studying to pass the CPA exam. 



- 29 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Jonathan Herman, CPA 
Senior Staff Accountant – 7 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of Central Florida, B.S. – Accounting 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, MACC  
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Accounting graduate with five years experience with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & 

Frank providing professional services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Herman participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 



- 30 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Sean Stanton, CPA 
Staff Accountant – 4 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of South Florida, B.S. – Accounting 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, M.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank auditing governmental and 

non-profit entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Stanton participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 31 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Taylor Nuccio 
Staff Accountant – 3 years 
 
Education 
♦   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Ms. Nuccio participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Ms. Nuccio is currently working towards completing an additional 30 hours of education to 

qualify to sit for CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 32 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Kirk Vasser 
Staff Accountant – 1 year 
 
Education 
♦   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Vasser participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Mr. Vasser is currently working towards completing an additional 30 hours of education to 

qualify to sit for CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 33 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Madison Ballash 
Staff Accountant – 1 year 
 
Education 
♦   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting (May 2020) 
 
Professional Experience 
♦    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Ms. Ballash participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Ms. Ballash is currently working towards completing an additional 30 hours of education to 

qualify to sit for CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 34 - 
 

 
 

 
 

BAGGETT 
REUTIMANN 
&ASSOC(ATES, CPAS, PA 

Judson B. Baggett 
MBA, CPA, CVA, Partner 

Marci Reutimann 
CPA, Partner 

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Control 

11 6815 Dairy Road 
Zephyrhills, FL 33542 

') (813) 788-2155 
~ (813) 782-8606 

To the Partners October 30, 2019 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL 
and the Peer Review Committee of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL, (the firm), in effect for the year ended May 31, 2019. Our peer review 
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews 
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System 
Review as described in the Standards may be found at aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes 
an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm's Responsibility 

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate 
engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when 
appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any. 

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control, and the firm's 
compliance therewith based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing 
Standards, including a compliance audit under the Single Audit Act. 

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL, in effect for the year ended May 31, 2019, has been 
suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and 
reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a 
rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies}, or fail. Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs, PL has 
received a peer review rating of pass. 

-:bo..ti.....~ 1'~~--- d' OJJocu~~c- 1 Cf Pb. PA 
B,\GGifr, RElTD-tANi\ .'fl,. ASS(){:IKn:s, CPA:,i, PA 
>~ :.J 11-. .tri"u,··, h" ii.,.,,-; j,ll;;:2.Jt11111.;i,n,,.. -·;i,i.,_,1/·• 1 i'h ·•"",. \ 1t:1 · -~_,;1j 

·-llilllllllai..-
Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and Florido Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FICPA) 

National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts (NACVA) 



- 35 - 
 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
Annual Audit Services for Fiscal Year 2021 

Clay County, Florida 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 
 
  SECTION 1. DUE DATE. Proposers must provide one electronic copy of their proposal 
to the District Recording Secretary Sarah Sweeting at ssweeting@gmsnf.com and seven (7) 
hard copies of their proposal to GMS, LLC, District Manager, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092, telephone (904) 940-5850, in an envelope marked on the outside 
“Auditing Services – Rolling Hills Community Development District.” Proposals must be received 
by 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, May 27, 2021.  
 
  SECTION 2. FAMILIARITY WITH THE LAW. By submitting a proposal, the Proposer is 
assumed to be familiar with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
that in any manner affect the work. Ignorance on the part of the Proposer will in no way relieve it 
from responsibility to perform the work covered by the proposal in compliance with al such laws, 
ordinances and regulations.  
 
  SECTION 3. QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSER. The contract, if awarded, will only be 
awarded to a responsible Proposer who is qualified by experience and licensing to do the work 
specified herein. The Proposer shall submit with its proposal satisfactory evidence of experience 
in similar work and show that it is fully prepared to complete the work to the satisfaction of the 
District.  
 
  SECTION 4. SUBMISSION OF ONLY ONE PROPOSAL. Proposers shall be 
disqualified and their proposals rejected if the District has reason to believe that collusion may 
exist among the Proposers, the Proposer has defaulted on any previous contract or is in arrears 
on any previous or existing contract, or for failure to demonstrate proper licensure and business 
organization.  
 
  SECTION 5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL. Submit an electronic copy of the Proposal 
Documents, and other requested attachments at the time and e-mail address indicated herein, 
which shall include the subject line, “Auditing Services - Rolling Hills Community Development 
District”.  
 
  SECTION 6. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL. Proposals may be modified or 
withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed and delivered to the e�mail address 
where proposals are to be submitted at any time prior to the time and date the proposals are 
due. No proposal may be withdrawn after opening for a period of ninety (90) days.  
 
  SECTION 7. PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS. The proposal documents shall consist of the 
notice announcing the request for proposals, these instructions, the 2 Evaluation Criteria Sheet 
and a proposal with all required documentation pursuant to Section 12 of these instructions (the 
“Proposal Documents”).  
 
  SECTION 8. PROPOSAL. In making its proposal, each Proposer represents that it has 
read and understands the Proposal Documents and that the proposal is made in accordance 
therewith.  



- 36 - 
 

  SECTION 9. BASIS OF AWARD/RIGHT TO REJECT. The District reserves the right to 
reject any and all proposals, make modifications to the work, and waive any informalities or 
irregularities in proposals as it is deemed in the best interests of the District.  
 
  SECTION 10. CONTRACT AWARD. Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Notice of 
Award from the District, the Proposer shall enter into and execute a Contract (engagement 
letter) with the District.  
 
  SECTION 11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Nothing herein shall be construed as or 
constitute a wavier of District’s limited waiver of liability contained in section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or any other statute or law.  
 
  SECTION 12. MISCELLANEOUS. All proposals shall include the following information in 
addition to any other requirements of the proposal documents.  
 

A. List position or title of all personnel to perform work on the District audit. Include 
resumes for each person listed: list years of experience in present position for each party 
listed and years of related experience.  
 

B. Describe proposed staffing levels, including resumes with applicable certifications.  
 

C. Three references from projects of similar size and scope. The Proposer should include 
information relating to the work it conducted for each reference as well as a name, 
address and phone number of a contact person.  
 

D. The lump sum cost of the provision of the services under the proposal.  
 
  SECTION 13. PROTESTS. Any protest regarding the Proposal Documents, must be 
filed in writing, at the offices of the District Manager, GMS, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 
114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092, within seventy-two (72) hours after the receipt of the 
proposed project plans and specifications or other contract documents. The formal protest 
setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based shall be filed 
within seven (7) calendar days after the initial notice of protest was filed. Failure to timely file a 
notice of protest or failure to timely file a formal written protest shall constitute a waiver of any 
right to object or protest with respect to aforesaid plans, specifications or contract documents.3  
 
  SECTION 14. EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS. The criteria to be used in the evaluation 
of proposals are presented in the Evaluation Criteria Sheet, contained within the Proposal 
Documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 37 - 
 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
AUDITOR SELECTION 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
 

 
1. Ability of Personnel.   (20 Points)  
 
(E.g., geographic locations of the firm’s headquarters or permanent office in relation to the 
project; capabilities and experience of key personnel; present ability to manage this project; 
evaluation of existing work load; proposed staffing levels, etc.)  
 
2. Proposer’s Experience.   (20 Points)  
 
(E.g. past record and experience of the Proposer in similar projects; volume of work previously 
performed by the firm; past performance for other Community Development Districts in other 
contracts; character, integrity, reputation, or respondent, etc.)  
 
3. Understanding of Scope of Work.   (20 Points)  
 
Extent to which the proposal demonstrates an understanding of the District’s needs for the 
services requested.  
 
4. Ability to Furnish the Required Services.   (20 Points)  
 
Extent to which the proposal demonstrates the adequacy of Proposer’s financial resources and 
stability as a business entity necessary to complete the services required. (E.g., the existence of 
any natural disaster plan for business operations)  
 
5. Price.    (20 Points)  
 
Points will be awarded based upon the price bid for the rendering of the services and 
reasonableness of the price to the services. 



    

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
  
 
 

Proposal to Provide 
Financial Auditing 

Services: 
 

ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

Proposal Due: May 27, 2021  
5:00PM 
 
Submitted to: 
Rolling Hills  
Community Development District 
c/o District Manager  
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092                                                            

 
Submitted by: 
Antonio J. Grau, Partner 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Road, Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
Tel  (561) 994-9299 

(800) 229-4728 
Fax  (561) 994-5823 
tgrau@graucpa.com  
www.graucpa.com 
 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com
http://www.graucpa.com/


 

    

   
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Table of Contents                                                                         Page 

  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY / TRANSMITTAL LETTER .................................................................................. 1 

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS..........................................................................................................................................3 

FIRM & STAFF EXPERIENCE ............................................................................................................................. 6 

REFERENCES……………….. ................................................................................................................................ 11 

SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH.......................................................................................................................... 13 

COST OF SERVICES ............................................................................................................................................ 17 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ................................................................................................................. 19 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 
 
 

    

 
 
 
 
May 27, 2021 
 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
c/o District Manager  
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092   
 
Re: Request for Proposal for Professional Auditing Services for the fiscal year ended September 30, 

2021, with an option for four (4) additional annual renewals. 
 

 Grau & Associates (Grau) welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Rolling Hills Community 
Development District’s (the “District”) Request for Proposal (RFP), and we look forward to working with 
you on your audit. We are an energetic and robust team of knowledgeable professionals and are a 
recognized leader of providing services to Community Development Districts. As one of Florida’s few firms 
to primarily focus on government, we are especially equipped to provide you an effective and efficient audit.  

 
 Special district audits are at the core of our practice: we have a total of 360 clients, 329 or 91% of which 

are special districts. We know the specifics of the professional services and work products needed to meet 
your RFP requirements like no other firm. With this level of experience, we are able to increase efficiency, 
to provide immediate and continued savings, and to minimize disturbances to client operations. 

 
 Why Grau & Associates: 
 

Knowledgeable Audit Team  
Grau is proud that the personnel we assign to your audit are some of the most seasoned auditors in the 
field. Our staff performs governmental engagements year round. When not working on your audit, your 
team is refining their audit approach for next year’s audit. Our engagement partners have decades of 
experience and take a hands-on approach to our assignments, which all ensures a smoother process for 
you.  
 
Servicing your Individual Needs 
Our clients enjoy personalized service designed to satisfy their unique needs and requirements. 
Throughout the process of our audit, you will find that we welcome working with you to resolve any issues 
as swiftly and easily as possible. In addition, due to Grau’s very low turnover rate for our industry, you 
also won’t have to worry about retraining your auditors from year to year. 
 
Developing Relationships 
We strive to foster mutually beneficial relationships with our clients. We stay in touch year round, 
updating, collaborating and assisting you in implementing new legislation, rules and standards that affect 
your organization. We are also available as a sounding board and assist with technical questions.  
 
Maintaining an Impeccable Reputation 
We have never been involved in any litigation, proceeding or received any disciplinary action. 
Additionally, we have never been charged with, or convicted of, a public entity crime of any sort. We are 
financially stable and have never been involved in any bankruptcy proceedings. 
 
 
 
 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

2 

Complying With Standards 
Our audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Rules of the Auditor General of 
the State of Florida, and any other applicable federal, state and local regulations. We will deliver our 
reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
 This proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer for 90 days. We certify this proposal is made without previous 

understanding, agreement or connection either with any previous firms or corporations offering a proposal 
for the same items. We also certify our proposal is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, 
fraud, or otherwise illegal action, and was prepared in good faith. Only the person(s), company or parties 
interested in the project as principals are named in the proposal. Grau has no existing or potential conflicts, 
and anticipates no conflicts during the engagement. Our Federal I.D. number is 20-2067322. 

 
 We would be happy to answer any questions or to provide any additional information. We are genuinely 

excited about the prospect of serving you and establishing a long-term relationship. Please do not hesitate 
to call or email either of our Partners, Antonio J. Grau, CPA (tgrau@graucpa.com) or Racquel McIntosh, CPA 
(rmcintosh@graucpa.com) at 561.994.9299. We thank you for considering our firm’s qualifications and 
experience. 

 
Very truly yours, 
Grau & Associates 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Antonio J. Grau

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com
mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

3 

 

 

 

 
 

Firm Qualifications 
 
 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
4 

Grau’s Focus and Experience 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Community Development 
Districts Served 

Properly registered 
and  
licensed professional 
corporation by the 
state of FLORIDA 

Year founded 

Our Team 

3 
Partners 

10 
Professional  

Staff 

2 
Administrative 
Professionals 

 

⇒ External quality review 
program: consistently 
receives a pass 

⇒ Internal: ongoing 
monitoring to maintain 
quality 

9 
Professional 

Groups 

AICPA | FICPA | GFOA | FASD | FGFOA 
 

We are proud Members of 
the American Institute of 

Certified Public 
Accountants 

& 
the Florida Institute of 

Certified Public 
Accountants 

 

297  
 

9/13 
 Auditors are 

CPAS 

Services Provided 

See next page for 
report and certificate 

- - -MMM 

~ Grau & Associat ~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTA:! 

2005 

D 



 

 
5 

 
 
 

• 
Florida Institute of Certified Public Aa:ountants 

FICPA Peer Review Program 
Admlntstered In Florida 
bv The Florida I nstltute of CPAs 

February 20, 2020 

Antonio Grau 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Rd Ste 280 
Boca Raton, FL 33431-1809 

Dear Antonio Grau 

@AICPA. Peer Review 
Program 

AICPA Peer Review Program 
Administered n Florida 

by the Florida Institute of CPAs 

It is my pleasure to notify you that on February 20, 2020, the Florida Peer Review Committee accepted the 
report on the most recent Sy stem Review of your firm The due date for your next review is December 31 , 
2022. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted to the administering 
entity. 

As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committee asked me to convey its 
con gratu lat ions to the firm. 

Th an k you for your cooperation 

Sincerely, 

ftcPA1 P.,,. ~~ 

Peer Review Team 
Fl CPA Peer Review Committee 
pau l@fi cpa org 
800-342-3197 ext 251 

Florida Institute of CPAs 

cc Daniel Hevia, Racquel McIntosh 

Firm Number 900004390114 Review Number 571202 

3800 Esplanade Way, Suite 210 I Tallahassee, FL 3231 ll 800.342.3197. In Florida 1 B50.224.2727 I Fax: 850.222.8190 I www.licpa.org 



 

 
6 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Firm & Staff Experience 

 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PFM
12

GMS
78

MERITUS
23RIZZETTA

47
SDS
60

INFRAMARK
38

WRATHELL
30

OTHER
19

GRAU AND ASSOCIATES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EXPERIENCE 

BY MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Racquel McIntosh, CPA 
(Partner) 
Years Performing 
Audits: 14+ 
CPE (last 2 years): 
Government 
Accounting, Auditing: 
47 hours; Accounting, 
Auditing and Other:  
58 hours 
Professional 
Memberships: AICPA, 
FICPA, FGFOA, FASD 
 

Antonio J GRAU, CPA  
(Partner) 
Years Performing  
Audits: 30+ 
CPE (last 2 years):  
Government  
Accounting, Auditing:  
24 hours; Accounting,  
Auditing and Other:  
56 hours 
Professional  
Memberships: AICPA,  
FICPA, FGFOA, GFOA 
 

“Here at Grau  & Associates, staying up to date with the 
current technological landscape is one of our top 
priorities. Not only does it provide a more positive 
experience for our clients, but it also allows us to perform 
a more effective and efficient audit.  With the every 
changing technology available and utilized by our clients, 
we are constantly innovating our audit process.” 

- Tony Grau 

“Quality audits and exceptional client service are at the 
heart of every decision we make. Our clients trust us to 
deliver a quality audit, adhering to high standards and 

assisting them with improvements for their 
organization.” 

-Racquel McIntosh 

Profile Briefs: 



 

 
8 

YOUR ENGAGEMENT TEAM 
 

Grau’s client-specific engagement team is meticulously organized in order to meet the unique 
needs of each client.  Constant communication within our solution team allows for continuity of 

staff and audit team. 
 
 Grau contracts with an 

outside group of IT 
management consultants to 
assist with matters 
including, but not limited to; 
network and database 
security, internet security 
and vulnerability testing. 
 

The Engagement Partner will 
participate extensively during 
the various stages of the 
engagement and has direct 
responsibility for engagement 
policy, direction, supervision, 
quality control, security, 
confidentiality of information 
of the engagement and 
communication with client 
personnel. The engagement 
partner will also be involved 
directing the development of 
the overall audit approach 
and plan; performing an 
overriding review of work 
papers and ascertain client 
satisfaction. 

The assigned personnel will 
work closely with the partner 
and the District to ensure that 
the financial statements and all 
other reports are prepared in 
accordance with professional 
standards and firm policy. 
Responsibilities will include 
planning the audit; 
communicating with the client 
and the partners the progress 
of the audit; and 
determining that financial 
statements and all reports 
issued by the firm  are accurate, 
complete and are prepared in 
accordance with professional 
standards and firm policy. 
 

An advisory consultant will 
be available as a sounding 
board to advise in those 
areas where problems are 
encountered.  
 
 



 

 
9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Clients Served (partial list) 

 
Professional Associations/Memberships 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants    Florida Government Finance Officers Association 
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants      Government Finance Officers Association Member 
City of Boca Raton Financial Advisory Board Member 

 
Professional Education (over the last two years) 

 Course     Hours 
 Government Accounting and Auditing     24 
 Accounting, Auditing and Other      56  
          Total Hours     80 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 

 
 

(>300) Various Special Districts, including:  
 

 Bayside Improvement Community Development District 
 Dunes  Community Development District 
 Fishhawk Community Development District (I,II,IV) 
 Grand Bay at Doral  Community Development District 
 Heritage Harbor North Community Development District 
 

St. Lucie West Services District  
Ave Maria Stewardship Community District 
Rivers Edge II  Community Development District 
Bartram Park  Community Development District 
Bay Laurel Center  Community Development District 

 Boca Raton Airport Authority 
 Greater Naples Fire Rescue District 
 Key Largo Wastewater Treatment District 
 Lake Worth Drainage District 
 South Indian River Water Control 

 

Antonio ‘Tony ‘ J. Grau, CPA 
Partner 

Contact: tgrau@graucpa.com | (561) 939-6672 
Experience 
For over 30 years, Tony has been providing audit, accounting 
and consulting services to the firm’s governmental, non-profit, 
employee benefit, overhead and arbitrage clients. He provides 
guidance to clients regarding complex accounting issues, 
internal controls and operations.  
As a member of the Government Finance Officers Association 
Special Review Committee, Tony participated in the review 
process for awarding the GFOA Certificate of Achievement in 
Financial Reporting. Tony was also the review team leader for 
the Quality Review of the Office of Management Audits of 
School Board of Miami-Dade County. Tony received the AICPA 
advanced level certificate for governmental single audits.  
 
Education 

University of South Florida (1983) 
 Bachelor of Arts 
 Business Administration 

 

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com


 

 
10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Clients Served (partial list) 

 Professional Associations/ Memberships 

 
  Professional Education (over the last two years) 
 
 
 
 
 
  

(>300) Various Special Districts, including: 
 

 

Carlton Lakes  Community Development District 
Golden Lakes  Community Development District 
Rivercrest  Community Development District 
South Fork III  Community Development District 
TPOST  Community Development District 

Westchase  Community Development District 
Monterra  Community Development District 
Palm Coast Park  Community Development District 
Long Leaf  Community Development District 
Watergrass  Community Development District  
 

East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
Indian Trail Improvement District 
Pinellas Park Water Management District 
Ranger Drainage District 
South Trail Fire Protection and Rescue Service District 

 

 
 

  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants FICPA State & Local Government Committee 
  Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants   FGFOA Palm Beach Chapter 
    

Course Hours 
Government Accounting and Auditing 47 
Accounting, Auditing and Other  58 

      Total Hours  105 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 

 
Racquel C. McIntosh, CPA 

Partner 
Contact : rmcintosh@graucpa.com | (561) 939-6669 

Experience 
Racquel has been providing government audit, accounting and 
advisory services to our clients for over 14 years. She serves as 
the firm’s quality control partner; in this capacity she closely 
monitors engagement quality ensuring standards are followed 
and maintained throughout the audit.  
Racquel develops in-house training seminars on current 
government auditing, accounting, and legislative topics and also 
provides seminars for various government organizations. In 
addition, she assists clients with implementing new accounting 
software, legislation, and standards. 
 
 Education 

Florida Atlantic University (2004) 
Master of Accounting 
Florida Atlantic University (2003) 
Bachelor of Arts:  
Finance, Accounting 

 

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

11 

 
 

 

 

 

 
References 

 
 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
12 

We have included three references of government engagements that require compliance with laws 
and regulations, follow fund accounting, and have financing requirements, which we believe are 
similar to the District. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Dunes Community Development District  
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 1998 
Client Contact Darrin Mossing, Finance Director 

475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
904-940-5850 

Two Creeks Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 2007 
Client Contact William Rizzetta, President 

3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200 
Tampa, Florida 33614 
813-933-5571 

Journey’s End Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 2004 
Client Contact Todd Wodraska, Vice President 

2501 A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
561-630-4922 



 

13 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Specific Audit  
Approach 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Grau & Associates 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
14 

AUDIT APPROACH 
 
Grau’s Understanding of Work Product / Scope of Services: 
We recognize the District is an important entity and we are confident our firm is eminently qualified 
to meet the challenges of this engagement and deliver quality audit services. You would be a valued 
client of our firm and we pledge to commit  all  firm resources to provide the level and quality of 
services (as described below) which not only meet the requirements set forth in the RFP but will 
exceed those expectations. Grau & Associates fully understands the scope of professional services and 
work products requested. Our audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and 
the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and any other applicable Federal, State of Local 
regulations. We will deliver our reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
Proposed segmentation of the engagement 
Our approach to the audit engagement is a risk-based approach which integrates the best of traditional 
auditing techniques and a total systems concept to enable the team to conduct a more efficient and 
effective audit. The audit will be conducted in three phases, which are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Phase I - Preliminary Planning 
 
A thorough understanding of your organization, service objectives and operating environment is 
essential for the development of an audit plan and for an efficient, cost-effective audit.  During this 
phase, we will meet with appropriate personnel to obtain and document our understanding of your 
operations and service objectives and, at the same time, give you the opportunity to express your 
expectations with respect to the services that we will provide.  Our work effort will be coordinated so 
that there will be minimal disruption to your staff.  

 
During this phase we will perform the following activities:  

» Review the regulatory, statutory and compliance requirements. This will include a review of 
applicable federal and state statutes, resolutions, bond documents, contracts, and other 
agreements; 

» Read minutes of meetings; 
» Review major sources of information such as budgets, organization charts, procedures, 

manuals, financial systems, and management information systems; 
» Obtain an understanding of fraud detection and prevention systems; 
» Obtain and document an understanding of internal control, including knowledge about the 

design of relevant policies, procedures, and records, and whether they have been placed in 
operation;   

» Assess risk and determine what controls we are to rely upon and what tests we are going to 
perform and perform test of controls; 

» Develop audit programs to incorporate the consideration of financial statement assertions, 
specific audit objectives, and appropriate audit procedures to achieve the specified objectives; 

» Discuss and resolve any accounting, auditing and reporting matters which have been 
identified. 

  

PHASE III: 
Completion and 

Delivery 

PHASE II: 
Execution of the 

Audit Plan 

PHASE I: 
Preliminary 

Planning 

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
15 

Phase II – Execution of Audit Plan 
 

The audit team will complete a major portion of transaction testing and audit requirements during this 
phase.  The procedures performed during this period will enable us to identify any matter that may 
impact the completion of our work or require the attention of management.  Tasks to be performed in 
Phase II include, but are not limited to the following: 

» Apply analytical procedures to further assist in the determination of the nature, timing, and 
extent of auditing procedures used to obtain evidential matter for specific account balances or 
classes of transactions; 

» Perform tests of account balances and transactions through sampling, vouching, confirmation 
and other analytical procedures; and 

» Perform tests of compliance. 
 
Phase III - Completion and Delivery 

 
In this phase of the audit, we will complete the tasks related to year-end balances and financial 
reporting. All reports will be reviewed with management before issuance, and the partners will be 
available to meet and discuss our report and address any questions. Tasks to be performed in Phase 
III include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
» Perform final analytical procedures; 
» Review information and make inquiries for subsequent events; and 
» Meeting with Management to discuss preparation of draft financial statements and any 

potential findings or recommendations. 
 

You should expect more from your accounting firm than a signature in your annual financial report. 
Our concept of truly responsive professional service emphasizes taking an active interest in the issues 
of concern to our clients and serving as an effective resource in dealing with those issues. In following 
this approach, we not only audit financial information with hindsight but also consider the foresight 
you apply in managing operations. 
 
Application of this approach in developing our management letter is particularly important given the 
increasing financial pressures and public scrutiny facing today’s public officials.  We will prepare the 
management letter at the completion of our final procedures. 

 
In preparing this management letter, we will initially review any draft comments or recommendations 
with management. In addition, we will take necessary steps to ensure that matters are communicated 
to those charged with governance. 
 
In addition to communicating any recommendations, we will also communicate the following, if any: 
 

» Significant audit adjustments; 
» Significant deficiencies or material weaknesses; 
» Disagreements with management; and 
» Difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 

  

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
16 

Our findings will contain a statement of condition describing the situation and the area that needs 
strengthening, what should be corrected and why. Our suggestions will withstand the basic tests of 
corrective action: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To assure full agreement with facts and circumstances, we will fully discuss each item with 
Management prior to the final exit conference. This policy means there will be no “surprises” in the 
management letter and fosters a professional, cooperative atmosphere. 
 
Communications 
We emphasize a continuous, year-round dialogue between the District and our management team. We 
regularly communicate through personal telephone calls and electronic mail throughout the audit and 
on a regular basis.  
Our clients have the ability to transmit information to us on our secure client portal with the ability to 
assign different staff with separate log on and viewing capability.  This further facilitates efficiency as 
all assigned users receive electronic mail notification as soon as new information has been posted into 
the portal.    
 
 

Is the recommendation cost effective? 
 
Is the recommendation the simplest to effectuate in 
order to correct a problem? 
 
Is the recommendation at the heart of the problem 
and not just correcting a symptomatic matter? 
 
Is the corrective action taking into account why the 
deficiency occurred? 

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

17 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Cost of Services 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
18 

Our proposed all-inclusive fees for the financial audit for the fiscal years ended September 30, 
2021-2025 are as follows: 
 
 

Year Ended September 30,  Fee 

2021  $3,200 

2022  $3,300 

2023  $3,400 

2024  $3,500 

2025  $3,600 

TOTAL (2021-2025)  $17,000 
 
The above fees are based on the assumption that the District maintains its current level of 
operations. Should conditions change or additional Bonds are issued the fees would be adjusted 
accordingly upon approval from all parties concerned. 

 

~ Grau& Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

19 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 Supplemental Information 
 
 

 

Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
20 

PARTIAL LIST OF CLIENTS 
 

 

  
 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

 

Boca Raton Airport Authority      9/30 
Captain's Key Dependent District       9/30 
Central Broward Water Control District       9/30 
Collier Mosquito Control District       9/30 
Coquina Water Control District       9/30 
East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility       9/30 
Florida Green Finance Authority        9/30 
Greater Boca Raton Beach and Park District       9/30 
Greater Naples Fire Control and Rescue District      9/30 
Green Corridor P.A.C.E. District       9/30 
Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District         9/30 
Indian River Mosquito Control District        9/30 
Indian Trail Improvement District       9/30 
Key Largo Waste Water Treatment District     9/30 
Lake Padgett Estates Independent District       9/30 
Lake Worth Drainage District        9/30 
Lealman Special Fire Control District       9/30 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District        9/30 
Old Plantation Control District       9/30 
Pal Mar Water Control District       9/30 
Pinellas Park Water Management District       9/30 
Pine Tree Water Control District (Broward)       9/30 
Pinetree Water Control District (Wellington)        9/30 
Ranger Drainage District      9/30 
Renaissance Improvement District       9/30 
San Carlos Park Fire Protection and Rescue Service District       9/30 
Sanibel Fire and Rescue District       9/30 
South Central Regional Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Board       9/30 
South-Dade Venture Development District       9/30 
South Indian River Water Control District      9/30 
South Trail Fire Protection & Rescue District       9/30 
Spring Lake Improvement District       9/30 
St. Lucie West Services District      9/30 
Sunshine Water Control District       9/30 
West Villages Improvement District       9/30 
Various Community Development Districts (297)       9/30 

TOTAL 333 5 3 328   

  

SPBCIAL DISTRICI'S 

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



 

 
21 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

CONSULTING / MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES 
 
Grau & Associates also provide a broad range of other management consulting services.  Our 
expertise has been consistently utilized by Governmental and Non-Profit entities throughout 
Florida.  Examples of engagements performed are as follows: 
 
• Accounting systems 
• Development of budgets 
• Organizational structures 
• Financing alternatives 
• IT Auditing 
 

• Fixed asset records 
• Cost reimbursement  
• Indirect cost allocation 
• Grant administration and compliance 
 

 
ARBITRAGE 

 
The federal government has imposed complex rules to restrict the use 
of tax-exempt financing. Their principal purpose is to eliminate any 
significant arbitrage incentives in a tax-exempt issue. We have 
determined the applicability of these requirements and performed the 
rebate calculations for more than 150 bond issues, including both 
fixed and variable rate bonds.  
 
 
 
 

We look forward to providing Rolling Hills Community Development District 
with our resources and experience to accomplish not only those minimum 
requirements set forth in your Request for Proposal, but to exceed those 
expectations! 

 
 

For even more information on Grau & Associates  
please visit us on www.graucpa.com. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Current 
Arbitrage 
Calculations 

73 

~ Grau & Associates 
~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

http://www.graucpa.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West - Building 300 - Suite 305 - Jacksonville. Florida - 32257 

May 17, 2021 

Jim Oliver 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
World Golf Village 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Re: Amenity Manager, Operations Manager, Pool Service, Janitorial, and Lifeguard/Deck Monitor 
Services. 

Dear Jim: 

Please consider this proposal for Riverside Management Services, Inc. to continue providing the 
following services for the Rolling Hills Community Development District: 

Services 

Amenity Manager 
Operations Manager 
Pool Service 
Janitorial Service 

Adopted Budget 
FY 2021 

Lifeguards & Deck Monitors (2,187.5 hrs) 

$56,210 
$21,525 
$13,650 
$12,840 
$35,000 

Actual Fee 
FY 2021 

$56,210 
$21,525 
$13,650 
$12,840 
$31,888 

Proposed Fee 
FY2022 

$59,021 
$22,171 
$13,650 
$12,840 
$37,735 

The proposed fees will remain static for Pool Service and Janitorial Service, but we are asking for a 
cost of living increase for the Amenity Manager and Operations Manager. The amounts for 
Lifeguards and Deck Monitors reflect a $1.25 per hour to offset the impact of the mandated 
minimum wage increase of $1.00 plus taxes, insurance and cost of living increase. The ownership 
and management at Riverside Management Services, Inc. would like to thank the Board of 
Supervisors in advance for your consideration of our request to help offset the continued rise in 
cost to operate in these unprecedented times. Should you have any questions or comments, please 
feel free to give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

0ic/2md .JI!/. </Plzet.reb 

Rich Whetsel 
President 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2021-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING PROPOSED BUDGET(S) FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA LAW; ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING AND PUBLICATION 
REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors (“Board”) of the Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) prior to 
June 15, 2021, proposed budget(s) (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 
2021 and ending September 30, 2022 (“Fiscal Year 2021/2022”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget and desires to set the required 
public hearing thereon.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:  

 
1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED.  The Proposed Budget prepared by the District 

Manager for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the basis 
for conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget.  

 
2. SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing on said approved Proposed Budget is 

hereby declared and set for the following date, hour and location:  
 
  DATE:    _________________________, 2021 
 
  HOUR:    _________________________ 
 
  LOCATION:   _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 

 
3. TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE GOVERNMENT.  

The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the Proposed Budget to Clay County 
at least 60 days prior to the hearing set above.  

 
4. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET.  In accordance with Section 189.016, Florida 

Statutes, the District’s Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed Budget on the 
District’s website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in Section 2, and 
shall remain on the website for at least 45 days.  

 



5. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE.  Notice of this public hearing shall be published in the 
manner prescribed in Florida law.  

 
6. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of this 

Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 8TH DAY OF JUNE, 2021.  
 

ATTEST:      ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY  
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________   By:___________________________ 
Secretary      Its:____________________________ 



Proposed Budget
Fiscal Year 2022

Rolling Hills Community
Development District

June 8, 2021

 



Rolling Hills
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022
  

Revenues    
Assessments - On Roll $348,975 $345,206 $3,769 $348,975 $385,247
Assessments - Direct Platted $269,409 $202,057 $67,352 $269,409 $297,411
Swim & Tennis Revenue $800 $0 $800 $800 $0
Interest/Misc Income $0 $491 $50 $541 $0
Facility Rental Fees $3,500 $450 $200 $650 $3,500
Non-Resident Memberships $1,980 $0 $0 $0 $0

 
     Total Revenues $624,664 $548,203 $72,172 $620,375 $686,158

Expenditures

Administrative
Supervisor Fees $6,000 $4,000 $2,000 $6,000 $6,000
FICA Expense $459 $306 $153 $459 $459
Engineering $5,000 $688 $2,500 $3,188 $5,000
Arbitrage $1,200 $1,200 $0 $1,200 $1,200
Dissemination Agent $3,500 $2,792 $2,083 $4,875 $5,000
Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $5,000
Attorney $22,500 $10,872 $10,872 $21,745 $22,500
Annual Audit $3,800 $0 $3,800 $3,800 $4,000
Trustee $8,081 $8,081 $0 $8,081 $8,085
Management Fees $41,200 $24,033 $17,167 $41,200 $41,200
Computer Time $1,000 $583 $417 $1,000 $1,000
Website Compliance $2,500 $1,458 $1,042 $2,500 $2,500
Telephone $150 $193 $138 $332 $150
Postage $500 $298 $213 $511 $500
Printing & Binding $1,250 $1,172 $837 $2,009 $1,250
Travel & Per Diem $100 $0 $100 $100 $100
Insurance $8,427 $8,639 $0 $8,639 $9,503
Legal Advertising $1,000 $700 $500 $1,200 $1,000
Other Current Charges $1,500 $620 $443 $1,062 $1,400
Office Supplies $100 $159 $114 $273 $100
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $0 $175 $175

     Administrative Expenses $113,442 $70,970 $42,378 $113,349 $116,122

Field
Operations Management $21,525 $12,556 $8,969 $21,525 $22,171
Utilities - Irrigation & Streetlights $35,000 $11,816 $9,284 $21,101 $30,000
Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $18,897 $16,198 $35,095 $40,000
Landscape  $74,800 $44,615 $31,868 $76,484 $74,800
Landscape - Contingency $6,800 $0 $6,800 $6,800 $15,000
Mulch $13,500 $1,070 $10,530 $14,000 $16,000
Lake Maintenance $4,800 $2,940 $2,100 $5,040 $5,000
Irrigation Repairs $7,500 $545 $389 $934 $5,000
Miscellaneous $1,264 $103 $500 $603 $1,000

     Field Expenses $205,189 $92,544 $86,638 $181,582 $208,971

1



Rolling Hills
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022

Amenity Center
Facility Management $56,210 $32,789 $23,421 $56,210 $59,021
Pool Attendants $35,000 $2,680 $30,000 $32,680 $37,735
Refuse Service $8,300 $6,656 $4,754 $11,410 $10,000
Security $15,000 $8,603 $6,145 $14,747 $15,000
Utilities $45,000 $24,794 $19,481 $44,275 $45,000
Recreation Passes $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $21,443 $16,848 $38,291 $40,000
Janitorial $12,840 $6,420 $4,586 $11,006 $12,840
Pool Maintenance $13,650 $7,963 $5,688 $13,650 $13,650
Special Events $6,000 $1,035 $5,000 $6,035 $6,000
Operating Supplies $6,000 $3,298 $5,688 $8,985 $8,000
Pool Chemicals $9,000 $4,645 $5,688 $10,332 $10,000
Permit $375 $0 $375 $375 $375
Insurance $23,121 $24,949 $0 $24,949 $27,444
Capital Reserve $34,537 $34,537 $0 $34,537 $75,000

     Amenity Center $306,033 $179,810 $127,672 $307,482 $361,065

Total Expenses $624,664 $343,324 $256,688 $602,412 $686,158

ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE $0 $204,879 -$184,517 $17,962 $0

FY 2021 FY 2022
Platted Lots:
Assessments - Platted Lots On Roll 375 375
Net-Assessment Rate $930.60 $1,027.33
Total Net Assessments $348,975.00 $385,247.25
Gross Assessment (6% Discount) $371,250.00 $409,837.50
Gross Assessment - Per Unit $990.00 $1,092.90

Planned Lots: 
Assessments - Direct Billed 386 386
Net-Assessment Rate per Unit (75%) $697.95 $770.49
Total Net Assessments $269,408.70 $297,410.88
Gross Assessment (6% Discount) $280,185.05 $309,307.31
Gross Assessment - Per Unit $725.87 $801.31

2



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 

 

REVENUES: 
 
Assessments – Platted Lots 
 
The District will assess the platted lots within the District to fund a portion of the District’s operating budget 
for the fiscal year. 
 
Swim & Tennis Revenue 
 
Fees collected for swim lessons, guest fees, room rentals and programs. 
 
Facility Rental Fees 
 
The residents may rent the facilities for personal use. 
 
Non-Resident Membership Fees 
 
Non-Resident have the opportunity to purchase access to the Amenity Center facilities.  The annual cost is 
$1,980. 
        
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative: 
 
Supervisors Fees 
 
The District may compensate supervisors up to $200 per meeting with a maximum amount of $4,800 per 
year. 
 
FICA Expense 
 
Represents District’s share of Social Security and Medicare Taxes withheld from supervisor’s fees. 
 
Engineering 
 
The District will contract with an engineering firm to provide general engineering services to the District, 
including attendance and preparation for monthly board meetings, review invoices, etc. 
 
Arbitrage 
 
The District is required to annually have an arbitrage rebate calculation on the District’s Series 2015 
A1/A2/A3 and 2020 A1/A2 Bonds.  The District will contract with a certified public accounting firm to 
calculate the rebate liability and submit reports to the District.  
  
Dissemination Agent 
 
The District is required by the Security and Exchange Commission to comply with Rule 15(c)(2)-12(b)(5), 
which relates to additional reporting requirements for unrelated bond issues.  The District has contracted 
with GMS, LLC to provide this service. 
 

3 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 

 

 
Assessment Roll  
 
The District has contracted with Governmental Management Services for the certification of the District’s 
annual maintenance and debt service assessments to the County Tax Collector. 
 
Attorney 
 
The District's legal counsel, Hopping Green & Sams, will be providing general legal services to the District, 
including attendance and preparation for monthly meetings, preparation and review of agreements, 
resolutions, etc. 
 
Annual Audit 
 
The District is required annually to conduct an audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified 
Public Accounting Firm.  Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank currently serves as the District’s 
Independent Auditor.  
 
Trustee 
 
The District issued $2,500,000 of Series 2015A-1, $1,930,000 of Series 2015A-2, $3,850,000 of Series 
2015A-3, $2,245,000 of Series 2015B and $4,465,000 of Series 2020A1/A2 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Refunding Bonds which are held by a Trustee at U.S. Bank.   
 
Management Fees   
 
The District receives Management, Accounting and Administrative services as part of a Management 
Agreement with Governmental Management Services, LLC. 
 
Travel & Per Diem   
 
Represents mileage reimbursement to Supervisors for use of their private vehicle to travel to Board of 
Supervisors meetings. 
 
Computer Time    
 
The District processes all of its financial activities, including accounts payable, financial statements, etc. on 
a main frame computer leased by Governmental Management Services, LLC.    
 
Telephone 
 
Telephone and fax machine. 
 
Postage 
 
Mailing of agenda packages, overnight deliveries, correspondence, etc. 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 

 

Printing & Binding 
 
Printing and Binding agenda packages for board meetings, printing of computerized checks, stationary, 
envelopes etc. 
 
Insurance-Liability 
 
The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust (PGIT).  PGIT specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. 
 
Legal Advertising 
 
The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings, public hearings etc in the 
Florida Times Union. 
 
Other Current Charges  
 
Bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenses incurred during the year. 
 
Office Supplies 
 
Miscellaneous office supplies. 
 
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 
 
The District is required to pay an annual fee to the Department of Economic Opportunity for $175.  This is 
the only expense under this category for the District. 
 
 
 
 
Field: 
 
Operations Management 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to provide oversight of daily operations of 
the common areas, irrigation and maintenance contracts. 
 
Landscape Maintenance 
 
This represents landscape maintenance of all the District property, to include mowing, weeding, trimming, 
pruning etc. The District is contracted with Tree Amigos. 
 
Landscape Contingency 
 
Represents a contingency for mulch installation, sod repairs/replacement, plant replacements and new 
common areas to maintain. 

 
5 

 
 

 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 

 

Utilities- Irrigation and Streetlights 
 
The District has utility accounts with the following providers for irrigation and lighting: 
  
Account No. Description Monthly Annually 

    
Clay Electric     
    
7182249 2404-1 Rolling View Blvd  $         55   $                  660  
7755259 3236-1 Bradley Creek Dr  $         35   $                  420  
7755275 3314-1 Bradly Creek Dr  $         33   $                  396  
7755283 2448 Rolling View Blvd  $         75   $                  900  

    
Clay County Utility Authority   
    
244686 3212-1 Bradley Creek Reclaim  $    1,422   $            17,064  
244869 3212-2 Bradley Creek Reclaim  $       128   $              1,536  
256584 3215-2 Bradley Creek Reclaim  $       301   $              3,612  
253042 3212-3 Bradley Creek Irrigation  $       630   $              7,560  
    
Contingency    $        2,852.00  

    
Total      $     35,000.00  
 
 
Lake Maintenance 
 
The District has contracted with The Lake Doctors for more aquatic plant management of the community’s 
lakes. Services provide labor, equipment, herbicides and technology to control invasive plants and algae.  
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Any unforeseen expense that is not included in the previous categories.  
 
Amenity Center: 
 
 
Facility Management 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to staff the amenity center and manage the 
day to day operations in accordance with their contract.   
 
 
 
 

6 
 
 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 

 

Pool Attendants 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to provide pool attendants for the District’s 
water slide, safety and enforcement of pool rules adopted by the District.  
 
Refuse Service 
 
The District has contracted with GFL Environmental for the refuse container removal. The contract is for one 2 
yard front load dumpster to be emptied once a week.  
 
Security 
 
The District has contracted with the Clay County Sheriff’s Office to provide part time security covering the 
community. 
 
Utilities- Electric, Water, Cable, Internet & Telephone 
 
The District has the following utility accounts for the Amenity Center: 
 

 
 
 
Repairs and Maintenance 
 
The District will incur various cost associated with the overall maintenance of the District’s amenity center to 
include: 
 
 •A/C unit quarterly maintenance by Mechanical Solutions 
 •Light repairs and new bulbs/ballasts 
 •Annual installation 
 •Quarterly pressure wash all facility areas 
 •Pumps and motor maintenance and repairs 
 •Painting 
 
 
 
 

7 
 

Account Number Description Monthly Annually

Clay Electric Cooperative
7751951 3212 Bradley Creek Dr 3,000.00$        36,000.00$  

Clay County Utility Authority
00260347 3212-4 Bradley Creek Dr 300.00$           3,600.00$    

Comcast
8495741231221030 Cable/Internet/Telephone 300.00$           3,600.00$    

Contingency 1,800.00$    

,.. 

,.. 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 

 

Janitorial 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services for the monthly cleaning of the clubhouse.   
 
Pool Maintenance 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services for the weekly cleaning and maintenance of 
the pools.   
 
Special Events 
 
The District will host certain special events throughout the year for the residents of the community.   
 
Operating Supplies 
 
Any supplies and chemicals needed for the daily upkeep and operation of the Amenity Center. 
 
Pool Chemicals 
 
The District purchases all necessary chemicals from Hawkins, Inc. for the swimming pool. 
 
Permits 
 
Represents cost for the various permits required for the operation of the amenity center. 
 
Insurance - Property 
 
The District’s Property Insurance policy is with Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (PGIT). PGIT 
specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 



Rolling Hills
Community Development District Capital Reserve

Adopted Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022
  

Revenues    
Interest Income $0 $41 $10 $51 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $0 $38,260 $0 $38,260 $62,598

 
     Total Revenues $0 $38,301 $10 $38,311 $62,598

Expenditures

Capital Outlay $0 $10,250 $0 $10,250 $137,598

Total Expenses $0 $10,250 $0 $10,250 $137,598

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
 

Interfund Transfer In $34,537 $34,537 $0 $34,537 $75,000

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES/(USES) $34,537 $34,537 $0 $34,537 $75,000

ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE $34,537 $62,588 $10 $62,598 $0

9



Rolling Hills
Community Development District Debt Service Fund

Series 2015 A1

Adopted Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022

Revenues    

Assessments $174,001 $172,121 $0  $172,121 $174,001
Interest Income $0 $6 $50 $56 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $58,614 $55,170 $0 $55,170 $54,560

Total Revenues $174,001 $227,297 $50 $227,347 $228,560

Expenditures

Series 2015 A-1

Interest 11/1 $51,394 $51,394 $0 $51,394 $49,784
Interest 5/1 $70,000 $0 $70,000 $70,000 $75,000
Principal 5/1 $51,394 $0 $51,394 $51,394 $49,784

Total Debt Service Expenditures $172,788 $51,394 $121,394 $172,788 $174,568

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $1,213 $175,903 -$121,344 $54,560 $53,993

11/1/22 Interest 47,861.88$          

10



       DATE  RATE  INTEREST  
11/01/20 1,900,000.00$                                 4.30% 51,393.75$                         51,393.75$                   
05/01/21 1,900,000.00$                                 4.60% 70,000.00$                        51,393.75$                         
11/01/21 1,830,000.00$                                 4.60% 49,783.75$                         171,177.50$                 
05/01/22 1,830,000.00$                                 5.13% 75,000.00$                        49,783.75$                         
11/01/22 1,755,000.00$                                 5.13% 47,861.88$                         172,645.63$                 
05/01/23 1,755,000.00$                                 5.13% 80,000.00$                        47,861.88$                         
11/01/23 1,675,000.00$                                 5.13% 45,811.88$                         173,673.76$                 
05/01/24 1,675,000.00$                                 5.13% 85,000.00$                        45,811.88$                         
11/01/24 1,590,000.00$                                 5.13% 43,633.75$                         174,445.63$                 
05/01/25 1,590,000.00$                                 5.13% 95,000.00$                        43,633.75$                         
11/01/25 1,495,000.00$                                 5.13% 41,199.38$                         179,833.13$                 
05/01/26 1,495,000.00$                                 5.13% 95,000.00$                        41,199.38$                         
11/01/26 1,400,000.00$                                 5.13% 38,765.00$                         174,964.38$                 
05/01/27 1,400,000.00$                                 5.45% 105,000.00$                      38,765.00$                         
11/01/27 1,295,000.00$                                 5.45% 35,903.75$                         179,668.75$                 
05/01/28 1,295,000.00$                                 5.45% 110,000.00$                      35,903.75$                         
11/01/28 1,185,000.00$                                 5.45% 32,906.25$                         178,810.00$                 
05/01/29 1,185,000.00$                                 5.45% 115,000.00$                      32,906.25$                         
11/01/29 1,070,000.00$                                 5.45% 29,772.50$                         177,678.75$                 
05/01/30 1,070,000.00$                                 5.45% 120,000.00$                      29,772.50$                         
11/01/30 950,000.00$                                    5.45% 26,502.50$                         176,275.00$                 
05/01/31 950,000.00$                                    5.45% 130,000.00$                      26,502.50$                         
11/01/31 820,000.00$                                    5.45% 22,960.00$                         179,462.50$                 
05/01/32 820,000.00$                                    5.60% 120,000.00$                      22,960.00$                         
11/01/32 700,000.00$                                    5.60% 19,600.00$                         162,560.00$                 
05/01/33 700,000.00$                                    5.60% 125,000.00$                      19,600.00$                         
11/01/33 575,000.00$                                    5.60% 16,100.00$                         160,700.00$                 
05/01/34 575,000.00$                                    5.60% 130,000.00$                      16,100.00$                         
11/01/34 445,000.00$                                    5.60% 12,460.00$                         158,560.00$                 
05/01/35 445,000.00$                                    5.60% 140,000.00$                      12,460.00$                         
11/01/35 305,000.00$                                    5.60% 8,540.00$                           161,000.00$                 
05/01/36 305,000.00$                                    5.60% 150,000.00$                      8,540.00$                           
11/01/36 155,000.00$                                    5.60% 4,340.00$                           162,880.00$                 
05/01/37 155,000.00$                                    5.60% 155,000.00$                      4,340.00$                           159,340.00$                 

1,900,000.00$                   1,055,068.78$                    2,955,068.78$              
**Revised as of 6/25/20

Rolling Hills
Community Development District

Series 2015 A-1 Special Assessment Bonds
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

11



Rolling Hills
Community Development District Debt Service Fund

Series 2015 A2, 2015 B

Adopted Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022

Revenues    

Assessments $136,800 $135,323 $0 $135,323 $136,800
Interest Income $0 $5 $0 $5 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $42,693 $49,581 $0 $49,581 $53,722

Total Revenues $179,493 $184,909 $0 $184,909 $190,522

Expenditures

Series 2015 A-2
Interest - 11/1 $40,731 $40,594 $0 $40,594 $39,175
Principal - 5/1 $50,000 $0 $50,000 $50,000 $55,000
Interest - 5/1 $40,731 $0 $40,594 $40,594 $39,175

Total Debt Service Expenditures $131,463 $40,594 $90,594 $131,188 $133,350

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $48,031 $144,315 -$90,594 $53,722 $57,172

11/1/22 Interest - 2015 A-2 $37,766

12



       DATE  RATE  INTEREST  
11/01/21 1,445,000.00$                                 5.13% 39,175.00$                         39,175.00$                   
05/01/22 1,445,000.00$                                 5.13% 55,000.00$                        39,175.00$                         
11/01/22 1,390,000.00$                                 5.13% 37,765.63$                         131,940.63$                 
05/01/23 1,390,000.00$                                 5.13% 55,000.00$                        37,765.63$                         
11/01/23 1,335,000.00$                                 5.13% 36,356.25$                         129,121.88$                 
05/01/24 1,335,000.00$                                 5.13% 60,000.00$                        36,356.25$                         
11/01/24 1,275,000.00$                                 5.13% 34,818.75$                         131,175.00$                 
05/01/25 1,275,000.00$                                 5.13% 65,000.00$                        34,818.75$                         
11/01/25 1,210,000.00$                                 5.13% 33,153.13$                         132,971.88$                 
05/01/26 1,210,000.00$                                 5.13% 65,000.00$                        33,153.13$                         
11/01/26 1,145,000.00$                                 5.13% 31,487.50$                         129,640.63$                 
05/01/27 1,145,000.00$                                 5.50% 80,000.00$                        31,487.50$                         
11/01/27 1,065,000.00$                                 5.50% 29,287.50$                         140,775.00$                 
05/01/28 1,065,000.00$                                 5.50% 85,000.00$                        29,287.50$                         
11/01/28 980,000.00$                                    5.50% 27,087.50$                         141,375.00$                 
05/01/29 980,000.00$                                    5.50% 85,000.00$                        27,087.50$                         
11/01/29 895,000.00$                                    5.50% 24,750.00$                         136,837.50$                 
05/01/30 895,000.00$                                    5.50% 90,000.00$                        24,750.00$                         
11/01/30 805,000.00$                                    5.50% 22,275.00$                         137,025.00$                 
05/01/31 805,000.00$                                    5.50% 100,000.00$                      22,275.00$                         
11/01/31 705,000.00$                                    5.50% 19,662.50$                         141,937.50$                 
05/01/32 705,000.00$                                    5.50% 105,000.00$                      19,662.50$                         
11/01/32 600,000.00$                                    5.50% 16,775.00$                         141,437.50$                 
05/01/33 600,000.00$                                    5.50% 110,000.00$                      16,775.00$                         
11/01/33 490,000.00$                                    5.50% 13,750.00$                         140,525.00$                 
05/01/34 490,000.00$                                    5.50% 115,000.00$                      13,750.00$                         
11/01/34 375,000.00$                                    5.50% 10,587.50$                         139,337.50$                 
05/01/35 375,000.00$                                    5.50% 120,000.00$                      10,587.50$                         
11/01/35 255,000.00$                                    5.50% 7,287.50$                           137,875.00$                 
05/01/36 255,000.00$                                    5.50% 130,000.00$                      7,287.50$                           
11/01/36 125,000.00$                                    5.50% 3,712.50$                           141,000.00$                 
05/01/37 125,000.00$                                    5.50% 135,000.00$                      3,712.50$                           138,712.50$                 

1,455,000.00$                   775,862.52$                       2,230,862.52$              

** Revised 3/23/21

Rolling Hills
Community Development District

Series 2015 A-2 Special Assessment Bonds
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

13



Rolling Hills
Community Development District  Debt Service Fund

Series 2015 A3

Adopted Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022

Revenues    

Assessments - Tax Roll $41,481 $41,032 $0 $41,032 $41,481
Assessments - Direct $302,118 $215,327 $86,791 $302,118 $194,436
Interest Income $0 $3 $0 $3 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $128,383 $151,571 $0 $151,571 $108,800

Total Revenues $471,982 $407,933 $86,791 $494,724 $344,718

Expenditures

Series 2015 A-3

Special Call - 10/20 $0 $1,100,000 $0 $1,100,000 $0
Interest 11/1 $116,245 $113,993 $0 $113,993 $76,883
Interest 5/1 $116,245 $0 $79,395 $79,395 $76,883
Principal 5/1 $115,000 $0 $75,000 $75,000 $85,000

Total Debt Service Expenditures $347,490 $1,213,993 $154,395 $1,368,388 $238,765

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Interfund Transfer In $0 $982,465 $0 $982,465 $0

Total Other $0 $982,465 $0 $982,465 $0

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $124,492 $176,405 -$67,604 $108,800 $105,953

 11/1/22 Interest $74,035

14



       DATE  RATE  INTEREST  
05/01/21 2,370,000.00$                                 6.70% 75,000.00$                        79,395.00$                         
11/01/21 2,295,000.00$                                 6.70% 76,882.50$                         231,277.50$                 
05/01/22 2,295,000.00$                                 6.70% 85,000.00$                        76,882.50$                         
11/01/22 2,210,000.00$                                 6.70% 74,035.00$                         235,917.50$                 
05/01/23 2,210,000.00$                                 6.70% 90,000.00$                        74,035.00$                         
11/01/23 2,120,000.00$                                 6.70% 71,020.00$                         235,055.00$                 
05/01/24 2,120,000.00$                                 6.70% 95,000.00$                        71,020.00$                         
11/01/24 2,025,000.00$                                 6.70% 67,837.50$                         233,857.50$                 
05/01/25 2,025,000.00$                                 6.70% 100,000.00$                      67,837.50$                         
11/01/25 1,925,000.00$                                 6.70% 64,487.50$                         232,325.00$                 
05/01/26 1,925,000.00$                                 6.70% 110,000.00$                      64,487.50$                         
11/01/26 1,815,000.00$                                 6.70% 60,802.50$                         235,290.00$                 
05/01/27 1,815,000.00$                                 6.70% 115,000.00$                      60,802.50$                         
11/01/27 1,700,000.00$                                 6.70% 56,950.00$                         232,752.50$                 
05/01/28 1,700,000.00$                                 6.70% 125,000.00$                      56,950.00$                         
11/01/28 1,575,000.00$                                 6.70% 52,762.50$                         234,712.50$                 
05/01/29 1,575,000.00$                                 6.70% 130,000.00$                      52,762.50$                         
11/01/29 1,445,000.00$                                 6.70% 48,407.50$                         231,170.00$                 
05/01/30 1,445,000.00$                                 6.70% 140,000.00$                      48,407.50$                         
11/01/30 1,305,000.00$                                 6.70% 43,717.50$                         232,125.00$                 
05/01/31 1,305,000.00$                                 6.70% 150,000.00$                      43,717.50$                         
11/01/31 1,155,000.00$                                 6.70% 38,692.50$                         232,410.00$                 
05/01/32 1,155,000.00$                                 6.70% 160,000.00$                      38,692.50$                         
11/01/32 995,000.00$                                    6.70% 33,332.50$                         232,025.00$                 
05/01/33 995,000.00$                                    6.70% 175,000.00$                      33,332.50$                         
11/01/33 820,000.00$                                    6.70% 27,470.00$                         235,802.50$                 
05/01/34 820,000.00$                                    6.70% 185,000.00$                      27,470.00$                         
11/01/34 635,000.00$                                    6.70% 21,272.50$                         233,742.50$                 
05/01/35 635,000.00$                                    6.70% 200,000.00$                      21,272.50$                         
11/01/35 435,000.00$                                    6.70% 14,572.50$                         235,845.00$                 
05/01/36 435,000.00$                                    6.70% 210,000.00$                      14,572.50$                         
11/01/36 225,000.00$                                    6.70% 7,537.50$                           232,110.00$                 
05/01/37 225,000.00$                                    6.70% 225,000.00$                      7,537.50$                           232,537.50$                 

2,370,000.00$                   1,598,955.00$                    3,968,955.00$              
**Revised 4/22/21

Rolling Hills
Community Development District

Series 2015 A-3 Special Assessment Bonds
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

15



Rolling Hills
Community Development District  Debt Service Fund

Series 2020 A-1/A-2

Proposed Actual Projected Total Proposed
Budget thru Next Projected at Budget

Description FY2021 4/30/21 5 Months 9/30/21 FY2022

Revenues    

Assessments - A-1 $165,981 $162,557 $3,521 $166,078 $165,981
Assessments - A-2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $87,400
Interest Income $0 $6 $0 $6 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0 $272,319

Total Revenues $165,981 $162,563 $3,521 $166,084 $525,700

Expenditures

Series 2020 A1

Interest 11/1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $59,116
Interest 5/1 $63,445 $0 $63,445 $63,445 $59,116
Principal 5/1 $40,000 $0 $40,000 $40,000 $45,000

Series 2020 A2

Interest 11/1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $43,700
Interest 5/1 $43,700 $0 $43,700 $43,700 $43,700
Principal 5/1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Debt Service Expenditures $147,145 $0 $147,145 $147,145 $250,631

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Refunding Proceeds $1,235,847 $1,235,847 $0 $1,235,847 $0
Interfund Transfer Out ($982,468) ($982,468) $0 ($982,468) $0

Total Other $253,379 $253,379 $147,145 $253,379 $0

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $272,215 $415,942 $3,521 $272,319 $275,068

A111/1/22 Interest $58,356
A211/1/22 Interest $43,700

$102,056

16



Rolling Hills Series 2020A-1
Community Development District Amortization Schedule

2025 Maturity

PRINCIPAL   
DATE BALANCE RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL

1-May-21 $235,000.00 3.375% $3,965.63 $40,000.00  
1-Nov-21 $195,000.00 3.375% $3,290.63 $0.00  
1-May-22 $195,000.00 3.375% $3,290.63 $45,000.00 $51,581.25
1-Nov-22 $150,000.00 3.375% $2,531.25 $0.00
1-May-23 $150,000.00 3.375% $2,531.25 $50,000.00 $55,062.50
1-Nov-23 $100,000.00 3.375% $1,687.50 $0.00
1-May-24 $100,000.00 3.375% $1,687.50 $50,000.00 $53,375.00
1-Nov-24 $50,000.00 3.375% $843.75 $0.00
1-May-25 $50,000.00 3.375% $843.75 $50,000.00 $51,687.50

 
Total $16,706.25 $235,000.00 $211,706.25

 

 

17



Rolling Hills Series 2020A-1
Community Development District Amortization Schedule

2030 Maturity

PRINCIPAL   
DATE BALANCE RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL

1-May-21 $285,000.00 3.875% $7,362.50 $0.00  
1-Nov-21 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00 $12,884.38
1-May-22 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00
1-Nov-22 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00 $11,043.75
1-May-23 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00
1-Nov-23 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00 $11,043.75
1-May-24 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00
1-Nov-24 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00 $11,043.75
1-May-25 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00
1-Nov-25 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $0.00 $11,043.75
1-May-26 $285,000.00 3.875% $5,521.88 $55,000.00
1-Nov-26 $230,000.00 3.875% $4,456.25 $0.00 $64,978.13
1-May-27 $230,000.00 3.875% $4,456.25 $55,000.00
1-Nov-27 $175,000.00 3.875% $3,390.63 $0.00 $62,846.88
1-May-28 $175,000.00 3.875% $3,390.63 $55,000.00
1-Nov-28 $120,000.00 3.875% $2,325.00 $0.00 $60,715.63
1-May-29 $120,000.00 3.875% $2,325.00 $60,000.00
1-Nov-29 $60,000.00 3.875% $1,162.50 $0.00 $63,487.50
1-May-30 $60,000.00 3.875% $1,162.50 $60,000.00

$0.00
Total $85,250.00 $285,000.00 $309,087.50

18



Rolling Hills Series 2020A-1
Community Development District Amortization Schedule

2040 Maturity

PRINCIPAL   
DATE BALANCE RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL

1-May-21 $805,000.00 4.625% $24,820.83 $0.00  
1-Nov-21 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $43,436.46
1-May-22 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-22 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-23 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-23 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-24 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-24 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-25 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-25 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-26 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-26 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-27 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-27 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-28 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-28 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-29 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-29 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-30 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00
1-Nov-30 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $0.00 $37,231.25
1-May-31 $805,000.00 4.625% $18,615.63 $65,000.00
1-Nov-31 $740,000.00 4.625% $17,112.50 $0.00 $100,728.13
1-May-32 $740,000.00 4.625% $17,112.50 $70,000.00
1-Nov-32 $670,000.00 4.625% $15,493.75 $0.00 $102,606.25
1-May-33 $670,000.00 4.625% $15,493.75 $70,000.00
1-Nov-33 $600,000.00 4.625% $13,875.00 $0.00 $99,368.75
1-May-34 $600,000.00 4.625% $13,875.00 $75,000.00
1-Nov-34 $525,000.00 4.625% $12,140.63 $0.00 $101,015.63
1-May-35 $525,000.00 4.625% $12,140.63 $75,000.00
1-Nov-35 $450,000.00 4.625% $10,406.25 $0.00 $97,546.88
1-May-36 $450,000.00 4.625% $10,406.25 $80,000.00

 1-Nov-36 $370,000.00 4.625% $8,556.25 $0.00 $98,962.50
1-May-37 $370,000.00 4.625% $8,556.25 $85,000.00
1-Nov-37 $285,000.00 4.625% $6,590.63 $0.00 $100,146.88
1-May-38 $285,000.00 4.625% $6,590.63 $90,000.00
1-Nov-38 $195,000.00 4.625% $4,509.38 $0.00 $101,100.00
1-May-39 $195,000.00 4.625% $4,509.38 $95,000.00
1-Nov-39 $100,000.00 4.625% $2,312.50 $0.00 $101,821.88
1-May-40 $100,000.00 4.625% $2,312.50 $100,000.00

$0.00
Total $200,609.38 $805,000.00 $903,296.88

19



Rolling Hills Series 2020A-1
Community Development District Amortization Schedule

2050 Maturity

PRINCIPAL   
DATE BALANCE RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL

1-May-21 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $42,250.00 $0.00  
1-Nov-21 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $73,937.50
1-May-22 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-22 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-23 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-23 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-24 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-24 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-25 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-25 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-26 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-26 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-27 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-27 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-28 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-28 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-29 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-29 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-30 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-30 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-31 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-31 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-32 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-32 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-33 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-33 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-34 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-34 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-35 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-35 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-36 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00

 1-Nov-36 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-37 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-37 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-38 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-38 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-39 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-39 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-40 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00
1-Nov-40 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $63,375.00
1-May-41 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $105,000.00
1-Nov-41 $1,195,000.00 4.875% $29,128.13 $0.00 $165,815.63
1-May-42 $1,195,000.00 4.875% $29,128.13 $110,000.00
1-Nov-42 $1,085,000.00 4.875% $26,446.88 $0.00 $165,575.00
1-May-43 $1,085,000.00 4.875% $26,446.88 $115,000.00
1-Nov-43 $970,000.00 4.875% $23,643.75 $0.00 $165,090.63
1-May-44 $970,000.00 4.875% $23,643.75 $120,000.00
1-Nov-44 $850,000.00 4.875% $20,718.75 $0.00 $164,362.50
1-May-45 $850,000.00 4.875% $20,718.75 $125,000.00
1-Nov-45 $725,000.00 4.875% $17,671.88 $0.00 $163,390.63
1-May-46 $725,000.00 4.875% $17,671.88 $130,000.00
1-Nov-46 $595,000.00 4.875% $14,503.13 $0.00 $162,175.00
1-May-47 $595,000.00 4.875% $14,503.13 $140,000.00
1-Nov-47 $455,000.00 4.875% $11,090.63 $0.00 $165,593.75
1-May-48 $455,000.00 4.875% $11,090.63 $145,000.00
1-Nov-48 $310,000.00 4.875% $7,556.25 $0.00 $163,646.88
1-May-49 $310,000.00 4.875% $7,556.25 $150,000.00
1-Nov-49 $160,000.00 4.875% $3,900.00 $0.00 $161,456.25
1-May-50 $160,000.00 4.875% $3,900.00 $160,000.00

$163,900.00
Total $974,756.25 $1,300,000.00 $2,274,756.25

20



Rolling Hills Series 2020A-1
Community Development District Amortization Schedule

Summary

PRINCIPAL   
DATE BALANCE RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL

1-May-21 $2,585,000.00 3.375% $63,444.50 $40,000.00  
1-Nov-21 $2,585,000.00 3.375% $59,115.63 $0.00 $162,560.13
1-May-22 $2,540,000.00 3.375% $59,115.63 $45,000.00
1-Nov-22 $2,540,000.00 3.375% $58,356.25 $0.00 $162,471.88
1-May-23 $2,490,000.00 3.375% $58,356.25 $50,000.00
1-Nov-23 $2,490,000.00 3.375% $57,512.50 $0.00 $165,868.75
1-May-24 $2,440,000.00 3.375% $57,512.50 $50,000.00
1-Nov-24 $2,440,000.00 3.375% $56,668.75 $0.00 $164,181.25
1-May-25 $2,390,000.00 3.375% $56,668.75 $50,000.00
1-Nov-25 $2,390,000.00 3.875% $55,825.00 $0.00 $162,493.75
1-May-26 $2,390,000.00 3.875% $55,825.00 $55,000.00
1-Nov-26 $2,335,000.00 3.875% $54,759.38 $0.00 $165,584.38
1-May-27 $2,335,000.00 3.875% $54,759.38 $55,000.00
1-Nov-27 $2,280,000.00 3.875% $53,693.75 $0.00 $163,453.13
1-May-28 $2,280,000.00 3.875% $53,693.75 $55,000.00
1-Nov-28 $2,225,000.00 3.875% $52,628.13 $0.00 $161,321.88
1-May-29 $2,225,000.00 3.875% $52,628.13 $60,000.00
1-Nov-29 $2,165,000.00 3.875% $51,465.63 $0.00 $164,093.75
1-May-30 $2,165,000.00 3.875% $51,465.63 $60,000.00
1-Nov-30 $2,105,000.00 4.625% $50,303.13 $0.00 $161,768.75
1-May-31 $2,105,000.00 4.625% $50,303.13 $65,000.00
1-Nov-31 $2,040,000.00 4.625% $48,800.00 $0.00 $164,103.13
1-May-32 $2,040,000.00 4.625% $48,800.00 $70,000.00
1-Nov-32 $1,970,000.00 4.625% $47,181.25 $0.00 $165,981.25
1-May-33 $1,970,000.00 4.625% $47,181.25 $70,000.00
1-Nov-33 $1,900,000.00 4.625% $45,562.50 $0.00 $162,743.75
1-May-34 $1,900,000.00 4.625% $45,562.50 $75,000.00
1-Nov-34 $1,825,000.00 4.625% $43,828.13 $0.00 $164,390.63
1-May-35 $1,825,000.00 4.625% $43,828.13 $75,000.00
1-Nov-35 $1,750,000.00 4.625% $42,093.75 $0.00 $160,921.88
1-May-36 $1,750,000.00 4.625% $42,093.75 $80,000.00

 1-Nov-36 $1,670,000.00 4.625% $40,243.75 $0.00 $162,337.50
1-May-37 $1,670,000.00 4.625% $40,243.75 $85,000.00
1-Nov-37 $1,585,000.00 4.625% $38,278.13 $0.00 $163,521.88
1-May-38 $1,585,000.00 4.625% $38,278.13 $90,000.00
1-Nov-38 $1,495,000.00 4.625% $36,196.88 $0.00 $164,475.00
1-May-39 $1,495,000.00 4.625% $36,196.88 $95,000.00
1-Nov-39 $1,400,000.00 4.625% $34,000.00 $0.00 $165,196.88
1-May-40 $1,400,000.00 4.625% $34,000.00 $100,000.00
1-Nov-40 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $0.00 $165,687.50
1-May-41 $1,300,000.00 4.875% $31,687.50 $105,000.00
1-Nov-41 $1,195,000.00 4.875% $29,128.13 $0.00 $165,815.63
1-May-42 $1,195,000.00 4.875% $29,128.13 $110,000.00
1-Nov-42 $1,085,000.00 4.875% $26,446.88 $0.00 $165,575.00
1-May-43 $1,085,000.00 4.875% $26,446.88 $115,000.00
1-Nov-43 $970,000.00 4.875% $23,643.75 $0.00 $165,090.63
1-May-44 $970,000.00 4.875% $23,643.75 $120,000.00
1-Nov-44 $850,000.00 4.875% $20,718.75 $0.00 $164,362.50
1-May-45 $850,000.00 4.875% $20,718.75 $125,000.00
1-Nov-45 $725,000.00 4.875% $17,671.88 $0.00 $163,390.63
1-May-46 $725,000.00 4.875% $17,671.88 $130,000.00
1-Nov-46 $595,000.00 4.875% $14,503.13 $0.00 $162,175.00
1-May-47 $595,000.00 4.875% $14,503.13 $140,000.00
1-Nov-47 $455,000.00 4.875% $11,090.63 $0.00 $165,593.75
1-May-48 $455,000.00 4.875% $11,090.63 $145,000.00
1-Nov-48 $310,000.00 4.875% $7,556.25 $0.00 $163,646.88
1-May-49 $310,000.00 4.875% $7,556.25 $150,000.00
1-Nov-49 $160,000.00 4.875% $3,900.00 $0.00 $161,456.25
1-May-50 $160,000.00 4.875% $3,900.00 $160,000.00

$163,900.00
Total $2,289,163.25 $2,625,000.00 $4,914,163.25

21



Rolling Hills Series 2020A-2
Community Development District Amortization Schedule

2030 Maturity

PRINCIPAL   
DATE BALANCE RATE INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL

1-May-21 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $46,370.56 $0.00  
1-Nov-21 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $90,070.56
1-May-22 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-22 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-23 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-23 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-24 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-24 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-25 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-25 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-26 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-26 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-27 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-27 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-28 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-28 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-29 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00
1-Nov-29 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $0.00 $87,400.00
1-May-30 $1,840,000.00 4.750% $43,700.00 $1,840,000.00 $1,883,700.00

 
Total $832,970.56 $1,840,000.00 $2,672,970.56

22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Page 1 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Company ID Number: 

THE E-VERIFY  
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR EMPLOYERS  

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

E-Verify is a program that electronically confirms an employee’s eligibility to work in the United States 
after completion of Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form I-9). This Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) explains certain features of the E-Verify program and describes specific 
responsibilities of the Employer, the Social Security Administration (SSA), and DHS.   

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and 
Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. 
§ 1324a note). The Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 22.18, “Employment Eligibility
Verification” and Executive Order 12989, as amended, provide authority for Federal contractors and 
subcontractors (Federal contractor) to use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of certain 
employees working on Federal contracts.  

ARTICLE II 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER  

1. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by DHS in a prominent place that is
clearly visible to prospective employees and all employees who are to be verified through the system: 

a. Notice of E-Verify Participation

b. Notice of Right to Work

2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names, titles, addresses, and telephone
numbers of the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify.  The Employer also agrees to 
keep such information current by providing updated information to SSA and DHS whenever the 
representatives’ contact information changes.  

3. The Employer agrees to grant E-Verify access only to current employees who need E-Verify access.
Employers must promptly terminate an employee’s E-Verify access if the employer is separated from 
the company or no longer needs access to E-Verify.   

1636273

The parties to this agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and the
Rolling Hills Community Development District (Employer).  The purpose of this agreement is to set
forth terms and conditions which the Employer will follow while participating in E-Verify.



 

Page 2 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

4.  The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version of the 
E-Verify User Manual.  

5.  The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative who will create E-Verify cases will 
complete the E-Verify Tutorial before that individual creates any cases.  

a. The Employer agrees that all Employer representatives will take the refresher tutorials when 
prompted by E-Verify in order to continue using E-Verify.  Failure to complete a refresher tutorial 
will prevent the Employer Representative from continued use of E-Verify.   

6. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form I-9 procedures, with two exceptions:  

a. If an employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept "List 
B" documents that contain a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.2(b)(1)(B)) can 
be presented during the Form I-9 process to establish identity.) If an employee objects to the photo 
requirement for religious reasons, the Employer should contact E-Verify at  
888-464-4218.  

b. If an employee presents a DHS Form I-551 (Permanent Resident Card), Form I-766 
(Employment Authorization Document), or U.S. Passport or Passport Card to complete Form I-9, 
the Employer agrees to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the 
employee’s Form I-9. The Employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS 
with its review of photo mismatches that employees contest.  DHS may in the future designate 
other documents that activate the photo screening tool. 

Note: Subject only to the exceptions noted previously in this paragraph, employees still retain the right 
to present any List A, or List B and List C, document(s) to complete the Form I-9.  

7.  The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form I-9 or to print 
the screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's Form I-9.  

8.  The Employer agrees that, although it participates in E-Verify, the Employer has a responsibility to 
complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms I-9 that relate to its employees, or from other 
requirements of applicable regulations or laws, including the obligation to comply with the 
antidiscrimination requirements of section 274B of the INA with respect to Form I-9 procedures.  

a. The following modified requirements are the only exceptions to an Employer’s obligation to not 
employ unauthorized workers and comply with the anti-discrimination provision of the INA: (1) List B 
identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 6 above; (2) When an Employer 
confirms the identity and employment eligibility of newly hired employee using E-Verify procedures, 
the Employer establishes a rebuttable presumption that it has not violated section 274A(a)(1)(A) of 
the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect to the hiring of that employee; (3) If the 
Employer receives a final nonconfirmation for an employee, but continues to employ that person, 
the Employer must notify DHS and the Employer is subject to a civil money penalty between $550 
and $1,100 for each failure to notify DHS of continued employment following a final 
nonconfirmation; (4) If the Employer continues to employ an employee after receiving a final 
nonconfirmation, then the Employer is subject to a rebuttable presumption that it has knowingly 

    

1636273



 

Page 3 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

employed an unauthorized alien in violation of section 274A(a)(1)(A); and (5) no E-Verify participant 
is civilly or criminally liable under any law for any action taken in good faith based on information 
provided through the E-Verify.  

b. DHS reserves the right to conduct Form I-9 compliance inspections, as well as any other 
enforcement or compliance activity authorized by law, including site visits, to ensure proper use of 
E-Verify.  

9.  The Employer is strictly prohibited from creating an E-Verify case before the employee has been 
hired, meaning that a firm offer of employment was extended and accepted and Form I-9 was 
completed.  The Employer agrees to create an E-Verify case for new employees within three Employer 
business days after each employee has been hired (after both Sections 1 and 2 of Form I-9 have been 
completed), and to complete as many steps of the E-Verify process as are necessary according to the 
E-Verify User Manual. If E-Verify is temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period will be extended 
until it is again operational in order to accommodate the Employer's attempting, in good faith, to make 
inquiries during the period of unavailability.  

10.  The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify for pre-employment screening of job applicants, in 
support of any unlawful employment practice, or for any other use that this MOU or the E-Verify User 
Manual does not authorize. 

11. The Employer must use E-Verify for all new employees.  The Employer will not verify selectively 
and will not verify employees hired before the effective date of this MOU.  Employers who are Federal 
contractors may qualify for exceptions to this requirement as described in Article II.B of this MOU. 

12.  The Employer agrees to follow appropriate procedures (see Article III below) regarding tentative 
nonconfirmations.  The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide 
them with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee’s E-Verify case.   The 
Employer agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees with 
limited English proficiency to employees.  The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions 
to employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA.  The 
Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees 
if they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending. Further, when employees contest 
a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo mismatch, the Employer must take additional steps 
(see Article III.B. below) to contact DHS with information necessary to resolve the challenge.  

13.  The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an employee based upon the 
employee's perceived employment eligibility status while SSA or DHS is processing the verification 
request unless the Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.1(l)) that the employee 
is not work authorized. The Employer understands that an initial inability of the SSA or DHS automated 
verification system to verify work authorization, a tentative nonconfirmation, a case in continuance 
(indicating the need for additional time for the government to resolve a case), or the finding of a photo 
mismatch, does not establish, and should not be interpreted as, evidence that the employee is not work 
authorized. In any of such cases, the employee must be provided a full and fair opportunity to contest 
the finding, and if he or she does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse 
employment consequences based upon the employee’s perceived employment eligibility status 

    

1636273



 

Page 4 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

(including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring an 
employee to work in poorer conditions, withholding pay, refusing to assign the employee to a Federal 
contract or other assignment, or otherwise assuming that he or she is unauthorized to work) until and 
unless secondary verification by SSA or DHS has been completed and a final nonconfirmation has 
been issued. If the employee does not choose to contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo 
mismatch or if a secondary verification is completed and a final nonconfirmation is issued, then the 
Employer can find the employee is not work authorized and terminate the employee’s employment. 
Employers or employees with questions about a final nonconfirmation may call E-Verify at 1-888-464-
4218 (customer service) or 1-888-897-7781 (worker hotline).  

14.  The Employer agrees to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 274B of 
the INA as applicable by not discriminating unlawfully against any individual in hiring, firing, 
employment eligibility verification, or recruitment or referral practices because of his or her national 
origin or citizenship status, or by committing discriminatory documentary practices. The Employer 
understands that such illegal practices can include selective verification or use of E-Verify except as 
provided in part D below, or discharging or refusing to hire employees because they appear or sound 
“foreign” or have received tentative nonconfirmations. The Employer further understands that any 
violation of the immigration-related unfair employment practices provisions in section 274B of the INA 
could subject the Employer to civil penalties, back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of 
Title VII could subject the Employer to back pay awards, compensatory and punitive damages. 
Violations of either section 274B of the INA or Title VII may also lead to the termination of its 
participation in E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the anti-discrimination provision, 
it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD).  

15.  The Employer agrees that it will use the information it receives from E-Verify only to confirm the 
employment eligibility of employees as authorized by this MOU. The Employer agrees that it will 
safeguard this information, and means of access to it (such as PINS and passwords), to ensure that it 
is not used for any other purpose and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that 
it is not disseminated to any person other than employees of the Employer who are authorized to 
perform the Employer's responsibilities under this MOU, except for such dissemination as may be 
authorized in advance by SSA or DHS for legitimate purposes.  

16.  The Employer agrees to notify DHS immediately in the event of a breach of personal information.  
Breaches are defined as loss of control or unauthorized access to E-Verify personal data.  All 
suspected or confirmed breaches should be reported by calling 1-888-464-4218 or via email at           
E-Verify@dhs.gov.  Please use “Privacy Incident – Password” in the subject line of your email when 
sending a breach report to E-Verify. 

17.  The Employer acknowledges that the information it receives from SSA is governed by the Privacy 
Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a(i)(1) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)). Any person who 
obtains this information under false pretenses or uses it for any purpose other than as provided for in 
this MOU may be subject to criminal penalties.  

18.  The Employer agrees to cooperate with DHS and SSA in their compliance monitoring and 
evaluation of E-Verify, which includes permitting DHS, SSA, their contractors and other agents, upon 

    

1636273

mailto:E-Verify@dhs.gov


 

Page 5 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

reasonable notice, to review Forms I-9 and other employment records and to interview it and its 
employees regarding the Employer’s use of E-Verify, and to respond in a prompt and accurate manner 
to DHS requests for information relating to their participation in E-Verify.  

19.  The Employer shall not make any false or unauthorized claims or references about its participation 
in E-Verify on its website, in advertising materials, or other media.  The Employer shall not describe its 
services as federally-approved, federally-certified, or federally-recognized, or use language with a 
similar intent on its website or other materials provided to the public.  Entering into this MOU does not 
mean that E-Verify endorses or authorizes your E-Verify services and any claim to that effect is false. 

20.  The Employer shall not state in its website or other public documents that any language used 
therein has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division, without first 
obtaining the prior written consent of DHS. 

21.  The Employer agrees that E-Verify trademarks and logos may be used only under license by 
DHS/USCIS (see M-795 (Web)) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such license, may not 
be used in any manner that might imply that the Employer’s services, products, websites, or 
publications are sponsored by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with DHS, USCIS, or E-Verify. 

22.  The Employer understands that if it uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as 
authorized by this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its 
participation in E-Verify according to this MOU.  

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS  

1.  If the Employer is a Federal contractor with the FAR E-Verify clause subject to the employment 
verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR, it will become familiar with and comply with the most 
current version of the E-Verify User Manual for Federal Contractors as well as the E-Verify 
Supplemental Guide for Federal Contractors. 

2.  In addition to the responsibilities of every employer outlined in this MOU, the Employer understands 
that if it is a Federal contractor subject to the employment verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the 
FAR it must verify the employment eligibility of any “employee assigned to the contract” (as defined in 
FAR 22.1801). Once an employee has been verified through E-Verify by the Employer, the Employer 
may not create a second case for the employee through E-Verify.  

a. An Employer that is not enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor at the time of a contract 
award must enroll as a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of 
contract award and, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to verify employment eligibility of new hires 
using E-Verify.  The Employer must verify those employees who are working in the United States, 
whether or not they are assigned to the contract. Once the Employer begins verifying new hires, 
such verification of new hires must be initiated within three business days after the hire date. Once 
enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor, the Employer must begin verification of employees 
assigned to the contract within 90 calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an 
employee’s assignment to the contract, whichever date is later.  

   

1636273

http://www.uscis.gov/USCIS/Verification/E-Verify/everifytrademark.pdf


 

 

 

Page 6 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

b. Employers enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 days or more at the time of a 
contract award must use E-Verify to begin verification of employment eligibility for new hires of the 
Employer who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within 
three business days after the date of hire. If the Employer is enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal 
contractor for 90 calendar days or less at the time of contract award, the Employer must, within 90 
days of enrollment, begin to use E-Verify to initiate verification of new hires of the contractor who 
are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new 
hires must be initiated within three business days after the date of hire. An Employer enrolled as a 
Federal contractor in E-Verify must begin verification of each employee assigned to the contract 
within 90 calendar days after date of contract award or within 30 days after assignment to the 
contract, whichever is later.  

c. Federal contractors that are institutions of higher education (as defined at 20 U.S.C. 1001(a)), 
state or local governments, governments of Federally recognized Indian tribes, or sureties 
performing under a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency under a performance 
bond may choose to only verify new and existing employees assigned to the Federal contract. Such 
Federal contractors may, however, elect to verify all new hires, and/or all existing employees hired 
after November 6, 1986.  Employers in this category must begin verification of employees assigned 
to the contract within 90 calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an 
employee’s assignment to the contract, whichever date is later.  

d. Upon enrollment, Employers who are Federal contractors may elect to verify employment 
eligibility of all existing employees working in the United States who were hired after November 6, 
1986, instead of verifying only those employees assigned to a covered Federal contract. After 
enrollment, Employers must elect to verify existing staff following DHS procedures and begin        
E-Verify verification of all existing employees within 180 days after the election.  

e. The Employer may use a previously completed Form I-9 as the basis for creating an E-Verify 
case for an employee assigned to a contract as long as: 

i. That Form I-9 is complete (including the SSN) and complies with Article II.A.6,  

ii. The employee’s work authorization has not expired, and  

iii. The Employer has reviewed the Form I-9 information either in person or in 
communications with the employee to ensure that the employee’s Section 1, Form I-9 
attestation has not changed (including, but not limited to, a lawful permanent resident alien 
having become a naturalized U.S. citizen).  

f. The Employer shall complete a new Form I-9 consistent with Article II.A.6 or update the 
previous Form I-9 to provide the necessary information if: 

i. The Employer cannot determine that Form I-9 complies with Article II.A.6,  

ii. The employee’s basis for work authorization as attested in Section 1 has expired or 
changed, or  

iii. The Form I-9 contains no SSN or is otherwise incomplete.  

Note:  If Section 1 of Form I-9 is otherwise valid and up-to-date and the form otherwise complies with 

   

1636273



 

 

 

Page 7 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

Article II.C.5, but reflects documentation (such as a U.S. passport or Form I-551) that expired after 
completing Form I-9, the Employer shall not require the production of additional documentation, or use 
the photo screening tool described in Article II.A.5, subject to any additional or superseding instructions 
that may be provided on this subject in the E-Verify User Manual.  

g. The Employer agrees not to require a second verification using E-Verify of any assigned 
employee who has previously been verified as a newly hired employee under this MOU or to 
authorize verification of any existing employee by any Employer that is not a Federal contractor 
based on this Article. 

3.  The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU is a 
performance requirement under the terms of the Federal contract or subcontract, and the Employer 
consents to the release of information relating to compliance with its verification responsibilities under 
this MOU to contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the Employer’s compliance with 
Federal contracting requirements.  

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA  

1.  SSA agrees to allow DHS to compare data provided by the Employer against SSA’s database.  SSA 
sends DHS confirmation that the data sent either matches or does not match the information in SSA’s 
database. 

2.  SSA agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides through E-Verify procedures.  SSA 
also agrees to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to individuals responsible for 
the verification of Social Security numbers or responsible for evaluation of E-Verify or such other 
persons or entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a), 
the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)), and SSA regulations (20 CFR Part 401).    

3.  SSA agrees to provide case results from its database within three Federal Government work days of 
the initial inquiry.  E-Verify provides the information to the Employer.   

4.  SSA agrees to update SSA records as necessary if the employee who contests the SSA tentative 
nonconfirmation visits an SSA field office and provides the required evidence.  If the employee visits an 
SSA field office within the eight Federal Government work days from the date of referral to SSA, SSA 
agrees to update SSA records, if appropriate, within the eight-day period unless SSA determines that 
more than eight days may be necessary.  In such cases, SSA will provide additional instructions to the 
employee.  If the employee does not visit SSA in the time allowed, E-Verify may provide a final 
nonconfirmation to the employer.   

Note: If an Employer experiences technical problems, or has a policy question, the employer should 
contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218. 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHS  

1.  DHS agrees to provide the Employer with selected data from DHS databases to enable the 
Employer to conduct, to the extent authorized by this MOU:  

a. Automated verification checks on alien employees by electronic means, and  
    

1636273



 

 

 

Page 8 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

b. Photo verification checks (when available) on employees.  

2.  DHS agrees to assist the Employer with operational problems associated with the Employer's 
participation in E-Verify. DHS agrees to provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and telephone 
numbers of DHS representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process.  

3.  DHS agrees to provide to the Employer with access to E-Verify training materials as well as an        
E-Verify User Manual that contain instructions on E-Verify policies, procedures, and requirements for 
both SSA and DHS, including restrictions on the use of E-Verify.  

4.  DHS agrees to train Employers on all important changes made to E-Verify through the use of 
mandatory refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Verify User Manual. Even without changes to        
E-Verify, DHS reserves the right to require employers to take mandatory refresher tutorials. 

5.  DHS agrees to provide to the Employer a notice, which indicates the Employer's participation in       
E-Verify. DHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti-discrimination notices issued by the Office of 
Special Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices (OSC), Civil Rights Division, 
U.S. Department of Justice.  

6.  DHS agrees to issue each of the Employer’s E-Verify users a unique user identification number and 
password that permits them to log in to E-Verify.     

7.  DHS agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides, and to limit access to such 
information to individuals responsible for the verification process, for evaluation of E-Verify, or to such 
other persons or entities as may be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used only to verify 
the accuracy of Social Security numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the INA and Federal 
criminal laws, and to administer Federal contracting requirements.  

8.  DHS agrees to provide a means of automated verification that provides (in conjunction with SSA 
verification procedures) confirmation or tentative nonconfirmation of employees' employment eligibility 
within three Federal Government work days of the initial inquiry.  

9.  DHS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (including updating DHS records) for 
employees who contest DHS tentative nonconfirmations and photo mismatch tentative 
nonconfirmations. This provides final confirmation or nonconfirmation of the employees' employment 
eligibility within 10 Federal Government work days of the date of referral to DHS, unless DHS 
determines that more than 10 days may be necessary. In such cases, DHS will provide additional 
verification instructions.  

ARTICLE III  
REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO SSA AND DHS  

A.  REFERRAL TO SSA  

1.  If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer must print the 
notice as directed by E-Verify.  The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding 
and provide them with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee’s E-Verify 

    

1636273



 

 

 

Page 9 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

case.  The Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for 
employees with limited English proficiency to employees.  The Employer agrees to provide written 
referral instructions to employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter 
to the SSA.  The Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action 
against employees if they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending.  

2.  The Employer agrees to obtain the employee’s response about whether he or she will contest the 
tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative 
nonconfirmation.  Only the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation.  

3.  After a tentative nonconfirmation, the Employer will refer employees to SSA field offices only as 
directed by E-Verify.  The Employer must record the case verification number, review the employee 
information submitted to E-Verify to identify any errors, and find out whether the employee contests the 
tentative nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social Security number, or any other 
corrected employee information that SSA requests, to SSA for verification again if this review indicates 
a need to do so.  

4.  The Employer will instruct the employee to visit an SSA office within eight Federal Government work 
days. SSA will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal 
Government work days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary.  

5.  While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case 
updates.  

6.  The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social Security 
Administration number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the SSN from the SSA.  

B. REFERRAL TO DHS  

1.  If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer must promptly 
notify employees in private of the finding and provide them with the notice and letter containing 
information specific to the employee’s E-Verify case.  The Employer also agrees to provide both the 
English and the translated notice and letter for employees with limited English proficiency to 
employees. The Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action 
against employees if they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending. 

2.  The Employer agrees to obtain the employee’s response about whether he or she will contest the 
tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative 
nonconfirmation.  Only the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

3.  The Employer agrees to refer individuals to DHS only when the employee chooses to contest a 
tentative nonconfirmation.  

4.  If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer will instruct the 

   

1636273



 

 

 

Page 10 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

employee to contact DHS through its toll-free hotline (as found on the referral letter) within eight 
Federal Government work days.  

5.  If the Employer finds a photo mismatch, the Employer must provide the photo mismatch tentative 
nonconfirmation notice and follow the instructions outlined in paragraph 1 of this section for tentative 
nonconfirmations, generally.    

6.  The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo 
mismatch, the Employer will send a copy of the employee’s Form I-551, Form I-766, U.S. Passport, or 
passport card to DHS for review by:  

a. Scanning and uploading the document, or  

b. Sending a photocopy of the document by express mail (furnished and paid for by the employer).  

7.  The Employer understands that if it cannot determine whether there is a photo match/mismatch, the 
Employer must forward the employee’s documentation to DHS as described in the preceding 
paragraph.  The Employer agrees to resolve the case as specified by the DHS representative who will 
determine the photo match or mismatch.  

8.  DHS will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal 
Government work days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary. 

9.  While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case 
updates. 

ARTICLE IV  
SERVICE PROVISIONS  

A.  NO SERVICE FEES 

1.  SSA and DHS will not charge the Employer for verification services performed under this MOU. The 
Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access E-Verify, an 
Employer will need a personal computer with Internet access.  

ARTICLE V 
MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION 

A.  MODIFICATION  

1.  This MOU is effective upon the signature of all parties and shall continue in effect for as long as the 
SSA and DHS operates the E-Verify program unless modified in writing by the mutual consent of all 
parties.  

2.  Any and all E-Verify system enhancements by DHS or SSA, including but not limited to E-Verify 
checking against additional data sources and instituting new verification policies or procedures, will be 
covered under this MOU and will not cause the need for a supplemental MOU that outlines these 
changes. 

    

1636273



 

 

 

Page 11 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Company ID Number:

B.  TERMINATION 

1.  The Employer may terminate this MOU and its participation in E-Verify at any time upon 30 days 
prior written notice to the other parties.  

2.  Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU, DHS may terminate this MOU, and thereby the 
Employer’s participation in E-Verify, with or without notice at any time if deemed necessary because of 
the requirements of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or DHS that there has been a breach 
of system integrity or security by the Employer, or a failure on the part of the Employer to comply with 
established E-Verify procedures and/or legal requirements. The Employer understands that if it is a 
Federal contractor, termination of this MOU by any party for any reason may negatively affect the 
performance of its contractual responsibilities.  Similarly, the Employer understands that if it is in a state 
where E-Verify is mandatory, termination of this by any party MOU may negatively affect the 
Employer’s business.   

3.  An Employer that is a Federal contractor may terminate this MOU when the Federal contract that 
requires its participation in E-Verify is terminated or completed. In such cases, the Federal contractor 
must provide written notice to DHS. If an Employer that is a Federal contractor fails to provide such 
notice, then that Employer will remain an E-Verify participant, will remain bound by the terms of this 
MOU that apply to non-Federal contractor participants, and will be required to use the E-Verify 
procedures to verify the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees. 

4. The Employer agrees that E-Verify is not liable for any losses, financial or otherwise, if the Employer 
is terminated from E-Verify. 

ARTICLE VI 
PARTIES 

A. Some or all SSA and DHS responsibilities under this MOU may be performed by contractor(s), and 
SSA and DHS may adjust verification responsibilities between each other as necessary. By separate 
agreement with DHS, SSA has agreed to perform its responsibilities as described in this MOU.  

B. Nothing in this MOU is intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, substantive 
or procedural, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States, its agencies, officers, or 
employees, or against the Employer, its agents, officers, or employees.  

C. The Employer may not assign, directly or indirectly, whether by operation of law, change of control or 
merger, all or any part of its rights or obligations under this MOU without the prior written consent of 
DHS, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Any attempt to sublicense, assign, 
or transfer any of the rights, duties, or obligations herein is void. 

D. Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising out of or 
related to E-Verify or this MOU, whether civil or criminal, and for any liability wherefrom, including (but 
not limited to) any dispute between the Employer and any other person or entity regarding the 
applicability of Section 403(d) of IIRIRA to any action taken or allegedly taken by the Employer.  

E. The Employer understands that its participation in E-Verify is not confidential information and may be 
disclosed as authorized or required by law and DHS or SSA policy, including but not limited to, 

   

1636273



 

 

 

Page 12 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

Congressional oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, determinations of compliance with 
Federal contractual requirements, and responses to inquiries under the Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA).  

F.  The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this 
MOU on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. The Employer understands that any inaccurate 
statement, representation, data or other information provided to DHS may subject the Employer, its 
subcontractors, its employees, or its representatives to: (1) prosecution for false statements pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or; (2) immediate termination of its MOU and/or; (3) possible debarment or 
suspension. 

G. The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between DHS and the Employer.  

To be accepted as an E-Verify participant, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the 
signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218.   

   

1636273



 

 

 

 

  
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 13 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13     

Company ID Number:

Approved by: 

Employer  

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

Department of Homeland Security – Verification Division 

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

1636273

Rolling Hills Community Development District

Darren De Santis

Electronically Signed 01/29/2021

USCIS Verification Division

Electronically Signed 01/29/2021



 

 

 

Page 14 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Company ID Number:

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information Required for the E-Verify Program 

Information relating to your Company: 

Company Name 

Company Facility Address 

Company Alternate Address 

County or Parish 

Employer Identification Number 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems Code 

Parent Company 

Number of Employees 

Number of Sites Verified for 

  

   

1636273

Rolling Hills Community Development District

475 West Town Place
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

SAINT JOHNS

204613878

925

1 to 4

1



Page 15 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in 
each State: 

1636273

FLORIDA 1 site(s)



Page 16 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or 
operational problems:  

1636273

Name Kelly  Adams
Phone Number (865) 717 - 7700
Fax Number
Email Address kadams@gmstnn.com

Name Darren A De Santis
Phone Number (954) 721 - 8681 ext. 208
Fax Number
Email Address ddesantis@gmssf.com



Page 17 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 1636273

Page intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



        Chris H. Chambless 
 Supervisor of Elections 

 Clay County, Florida 
 

                      

P.O. Box 337            500 N. Orange Ave.               Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

(904) 269-6350            Fax (904) 284-0935 

April 15, 2021 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
Attention:  Katie S. Buchanan 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL  32301 
 
Dear Mrs. Buchanan: 
 
I have queried the number of eligible voters residing within the Rolling Hills Community 
Development District as of April 15, 2021.  At this time, there are 774                         
registered voters residing within the district. 
 
Please provide the contact information and term expiration dates for the current CDD 
Board Members.  I can be reached via the contact information at the bottom of this page 
or via email at Lynn.Gaver@ClayElections.gov.  
 
In an effort to keep our records updated please notify us of any changes to the Board due 
to resignations or appointments.  
 

 
Thank you, 
 
Lynn Gaver, MFCEP 
Clay County Supervisor of Elections Office 
P.O. Box 337 | 500 North Orange Ave. 

Green Cove Springs, FL  32043 

(904) 269-6350 Fax (904) 284-0935 

 

 
 

mailto:Lynn.Gaver@ClayElections.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway · Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

	
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:            June 11th, 2021  
 
To:  Rich Whetsel, Operations Director 
 
From:  Freddie Oca, Facility Manager  
                        Tom Chewning, Operations Manager 
 
Re:  Rolling Hills CDD - Monthly Operations Report: April-May 
 
General 
 
● www.RollingHillsCDD.com website is up and running; documents such as annual audits, 

meeting minutes and annual budgets will be updated as they become available.	
● Food	Truck	night	Greg’s	Southern	Eats	was	here	on	April	23rd	
● Food Truck Brochachos was here on for Taco Tues on April 27th & May 25th	
● Food Truck Nacho Bizness was here on May 14th	
● Food Truck Jags Boilers will be here on June 11th	
● The Summer Bash event is scheduled for June 4th	
● Food Truck A Little Bit of Country Kitchen will be her on June 18th 	
● Pool Bash with live music is scheduled for July 16th	
● Twelve (12) sets of access cards were issued.	
● An off-duty Police Officer is continuing to patrol Rolling Hills twice a week.	
 
 
 
Maintenance: 
       
● Orange	Environmental	Services	conducted	their	quarterly	inspection	and	treatment.	
● Mechanical	Solutions	conducted	their	quarterly	inspection	on	the	AC	units	and	made	

the	needed	repairs.	
● Southeast	Fitness	performed	the	preventative	maintenance	and	made	repairs	of	the	

fitness	equipment	
● Black	Creek	Electric	has	repaired	the	electric	at	the	amphitheater		
● Black	Creek	has	installed	a	flood	light	on	the	back	of	the	pavilion	
● Black	Creek	has	installed	flood	lights	on	the	amphitheater	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	
	



	
	Riverside	Management	Services	has	completed	the	following:		
	
	 	
● All	the	lighting	in	the	fitness	area	has	been	switched	out	to	LED	
● Lighting	in	the	hallway	unisex	bathroom	has	been	switched	out	to	LED	
● Pavers	along	the	pool	deck	have	been	repaired	
● The	trim	in	the	fitness	area	has	been	repaired	
● The	canopies	on	the	pool	deck	have	been	pressure	washed	
● The	bucket	at	the	splash	ground	has	been	repaired	
● The	pillars	at	the	amphitheater	have	been	repainted	
● New	lights	at	the	amphitheater	have	been	installed		
● Electrical	box	at	the	amphitheater	has	been	repaired	
● No	vaping	signage	has	been	installed	around	the	pool	area	
● The	handrails	at	the	front	of	the	amenity	center	have	been	repainted	
● 2	additional	no	parking	signs	have	been	installed	along	Bradley	Creek	Blvd	
● The	park	locations	are	being	policed	weekly	for	debris	
● All	District	Lakes	are	being	inspected	and	cleaned	bi-weekly.	
● Lake	water	out	falls	are	inspected	and	cleaned	on	a	monthly	basis	to	ensure	proper	

water	flow.	
● Irrigation	inspections	and	needed	repairs	are	being	completed	on	a	monthly	basis.	
● An	inspection	of	the	Amenity	Center	lighting	was	performed.	
● Trash	can	liners	are	being	changed	on	a	weekly	basis.	
	
	
	
	
		
	
Rentals	April-May			15				
															
 
Resident Requests/Comments: 
 

Should you have any questions or comments regarding the above information, please feel 
free to contact Freddie at (904) 338-5723 or Rich at (904) 759-8923. 

	
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



Item Price

Playground Equipment  

Playground Installation

TURNKEY TOTAL  

Contact



  

PROPOSAL #: 101128 

ACCOUNT:
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

DATE CREATED:
5/21/2021

 ACCOUNT REP:
Jesse Williams

 PREPARED FOR:   BILLING & SHIPPING:
  PRIMARY CONTACT:

Tom Chewning
 EMAIL:
tchewning@rmsnf.com

PHONE NUMBER:
+19046714204

 ORGANIZATION:
Riverside Management
Services

   BILLING ADDRESS: 
Riverside Management
Services
3813 Great Falls
Middleburg, FL 32068  

 SHIPPING ADDRESS: 
Rolling Hills at Lake Asbury
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy
Green Cove Springs, FL
32043  

Qty Product Price Total

1   12' SQUARE CANTILEVER UMBRELLA
Model: CUSTOM-CU121208IG
Umbrella Cantilever Square (Shade: 12x12x8)

Features Include:
Block up to 96% of harmful UV Rays
Fade, mildew and tear resistant
Breathable fabric allows hot air toescape
Engineered to withstand 80-150 mph winds
10 year limited warranty

$2,538.00 $2,538.00

Color TBD

1   ENGINEERED DRAWINGS - SRP SHADE
Model: DRAWINGS-srp
N/A

$880.00 $880.00

1 STEEL SURCHARGE
Model: CUSTOM-STEEL-SURCHARGE
STEEL SURCHARGE

$309.44 $309.44

1 CUSTOMER DISCOUNT
Model: CUSTOM-CDYTD001-000421
Customer Discount

$-350.00 $-350.00

Have questions about this quote?
Call 800-853-5316 or visit BYOPLAYGROUND.COM

Sub Total: $3,377.44

Sales Tax: $253.31

Shipping: $585.00

Total: $4,215.75

I APPROVE THIS PROJECT AND AM READY TO PLACE MY ORDER:
Thank you for the opportunity to quote your playground project. We accept Visa, Mastercard, Discover, personal & business
checks and purchase orders from government entities. All items must be paid for in advance of order unless prior arrangements
are approved. Approval and acceptance of this proposal may be executed by signing below and faxing or emailing back to the

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.byoplayground.com

https://www.byoplayground.com/


contact information listed above. By signing below you agree to the terms and conditions found here:
https://www.byoplayground.com/byo-terms-and-conditions

Please note, sales tax calculations are calculated upon invoicing due to tax rate changes and/or change orders. If you believe
you should be tax-exempt, please provide a tax exemption certificate prior to submitting a purchase order.

Authorized Purchaser: ______________________________________________      Date: _________________________

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.byoplayground.com

https://www.byoplayground.com/byo-terms-and-conditions
http://www.tcpdf.org


  

PROPOSAL #: 101129 

ACCOUNT:
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

DATE CREATED:
5/21/2021

 ACCOUNT REP:
Jesse Williams

 PREPARED FOR:   BILLING & SHIPPING:
  PRIMARY CONTACT:

Tom Chewning
 EMAIL:
tchewning@rmsnf.com

PHONE NUMBER:
+19046714204

 ORGANIZATION:
Riverside Management
Services

   BILLING ADDRESS: 
Riverside Management
Services
3813 Great Falls
Middleburg, FL 32068  

 SHIPPING ADDRESS: 
Rolling Hills at Lake Asbury
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy
Green Cove Springs, FL
32043  

COMMENTS & DETAILS:
Price quoted for delivery coordination and installation. NPC shall not be responsible for removing existing trees, limbs, roots etc.
Unless otherwise noted price excludes: sitework, site security, core drilling or cutting concrete or asphalt, permits, lift gates,
impact fees, debris/trash removal, and prevailing wages. Site must be clear, level and accessible at time of installation. The
customer is responsible for marking all Private underground utilities, NPC will call for Public Utility Locate.

Qty Product Price Total

1   PROFESSIONAL CERTIFIED INSTALLATION
Model: Installation
Certified installation by professional playground installers. Price includes
coordinating deliveries and unloading large equipment at the delivery
address listed on this proposal/purchase order.

$3,388.00 $3,388.00

Installation for BYO Quote #101128

This installation quote covers the following items:
- 12' Square Cantilever Umbrella (CUSTOM-CU121208IG)
- Customer Discount (CUSTOM-CDYTD001-000421)
- Engineered Drawings - SRP Shade (DRAWINGS-srp)
- STEEL SURCHARGE (CUSTOM-STEEL-SURCHARGE)

1   PERMITTING
Model: CUSTOM-PERMIT
Permitting required for installation of playground equipment, shades,
shelters, etc.

$800.00 $800.00

Have questions about this quote?
Call 800-853-5316 or visit BYOPLAYGROUND.COM

Sub Total: $4,188.00

Sales Tax: $0.00

Shipping: $0.00

Total: $4,188.00

I APPROVE THIS PROJECT AND AM READY TO PLACE MY ORDER:
Approval and acceptance of this proposal may be executed by signing below and faxing or emailing back to the contact
information listed above. Unless prior arrangements are approved, a 50% deposit for NPC is due upon ordering. Balance is due
Net 15 upon substantial completion. By signing below you agree to the terms and conditions found here:

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.playgroundinstallations.com

https://www.playgroundinstallations.com/


https://www.npcinstall.com/npc-terms-and-conditions

Please note, sales tax calculations are calculated upon invoicing due to tax rate changes and/or change orders. If you believe
you should be tax-exempt, please provide a tax exemption certificate prior to submitting a purchase order.

Authorized Purchaser: ______________________________________________      Date: _________________________

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.playgroundinstallations.com

https://www.npcinstall.com/npc-terms-and-conditions
http://www.tcpdf.org




National Playground Construction Warranty 

National Playground Construction (NPC) pledges to its customers that all material, workmanship and/or 

building improvements provided in the course of installation and/or building project will be free of 

defects, of a specified quality and perform properly for a period of one year from the day of 

commencement of use, substantial completion of the project, or a date of notice of completion of the 

project, whichever occurs first. 

NPC will assign and deliver to owner all guarantees, warranties and quality instructions of all 

subcontractors, equipment manufacturers and material suppliers that are applicable to the project. 

Within 10 days of the first knowledge of any defect, or failure to operate properly, NPC is to be notified, 

in writing by owner or his/ her agents. NPC shall be given first opportunity to promptly repair, replace 

and/ or correct item found to be defective, or that fails to function properly, at no cost to the owner, 

within a reasonable period of time.  This warranty does not apply to any construction work that has 

been subjected to an accident, misuse and abuse, nor to any construction work that has been modified, 

altered, defaced, and/or repairs made/attempted by others. 

What is not covered in this warranty:  Under no circumstances shall NPC be liable by virtue of this 

warranty or otherwise for damage to any person or property whatsoever for any special, indirect, 

secondary or consequential damage of any nature arising out of the use or inability to use because of 

the construction defect.  NPC is not liable for repair conditions caused by chemical or sedimentary build 

up, misuse or abuse, failure to clean or maintain as specified by the equipment manufacturer, missing 

parts, structural changes, fire, freezing, electrical failure or surge, water damage, lightening, mud, 

earthquake, soil movement, soil sediment, storms, accidents, pest damage, vandalism, arson or acts of 

God.   

405 Golfway West Drive, Suite 302 | St. Augustine, FL 32095 | Phone: 800-853-5316 | Fax: 904-808-8529



Superior Recreational Products    1050 Columbia Drive    Carrollton, GA  30117        770.834.6120 

 

WARRANTY 
 

General Conditions: 
• The warranty set forth shall be the purchaser’s sole and exclusive warranty. 
• All warranties below are effective from the date of installation by Superior Shade, 
its subsidiaries or agents. 
• Superior Shade reserves the right to repair or replace any item covered by this 
warranty. 
• This warranty will be void if the structures are not paid for in full. 
• The warranty is void if the structures are not installed in strict compliance with the 
manufacturer specifications. 
• Purchaser shall notify Superior Shade or its agent in writing detailing any defect 
for which a warranty claim is being made. 
• Superior Shade shall not in any event be liable for indirect, special, consequential 
or liquidated damages. 
• Superior Shade specifically denies the implied warranties of fitness for a 
particular purpose and merchantability. 
• The warranty is void if any changes, modifications, additions or attachments are 
made to the structures or fabric without the written consent of the manufacturer. 
• No signs, objects, ornaments, fans, lights, fixtures or decorations may be hung 
from the top part of the structure, unless specifically designed and engineered by 
the manufacturer. These items may interfere with the fabric causing the warranty 
to be voided. 
 
Thread: 
• Superior Shade warranties its sewing thread for a period of eight years. 
• This warranties that the sewing thread will be free from defects in material and 
workmanship and will not be damaged by exposure to sunlight, weather and 
water. 
• All other warranties are disclaimed. 
• Labor for the removal, installation and/or freight charges, or tops with damage 
caused by thread will only be covered in instances where Superior Shade had 
installed the shade structures. In all cases where shade structures were not 
installed by Superior Shade or its agents, all labor for the removal, installation 
and/or freight will be at the customers’ expense and the warranty will only be 
applicable to the repair or replacement of the defective materials. 
 

devon.ward
Stamp



Superior Recreational Products    1050 Columbia Drive    Carrollton, GA  30117        770.834.6120 

 
Fabric: 
• Superior Shade fabrics carry a ten-year manufacturer’s warranty from the 
date of installation against failure from significant deterioration, 
breakdown, outdoor heat, cold or discoloration with the exception of the 
umbrella shade structures which carry a three-year warranty.  
• All fabric curtains, valences and flat vertical panels are not covered under the 
warranty. 
• Fabric is not warranted where it is installed on a structure that is not engineered 
and built by Superior Shade or its agents. 
• This warranty shall be void if damage to or failure to the shade structure is 
caused by contact with chemicals, misuse, vandalism or any act of God, 
including but not limited to, ice, snow or wind in excess of the applicable building 
code parameters. 
• All fabric tops are warranted for sustained winds up to 76mph (hurricane force 1) 
and for gusts of up to 3 seconds duration up to 90mph with no snow or ice 
accumulation. 
• The structures have been designed to eliminate any friction between the rafters 
and the fabric. The warranty will, therefore, be voided if any modification 
(temporary or permanent) is made to the rafter, cross pieces or ridge beams. 
• Labor for the removal, installation and/or freight charges will be covered in full for 
a period of twelve months where the shade structures supplied and installed by 
Superior Shade are defective. In all cases where the shade structures are not 
installed by Superior Shade or its agents, all labor for the removal, installation 
and/or freight will be at the customers’ expense and the warranty will only be 
applicable to the repair or replacement of the defective materials. 
• Superior Shade reserves the right, in cases where certain fabric colors have 
been discontinued, to offer the customer a choice of available colors to replace 
the warranted fabric of the discontinued color. The company does not warranty 
that any particular color will be available for any period of time and reserves the 
right to discontinue any color for any reason it may determine, without recourse 
by the owner of the discontinued fabric color. 
 
Steel: 
• The structural steel frames are covered for a period of twenty (20) years against 
failure due to rust corrosion or faulty workmanship. 
• Workmanship and painted surfaces are warranted for a period of twelve months. 
This warranty shall be void if damage to the steel frame or paint is caused by 
contact with chemicals, misuse, vandalism or any act of God, including but not 
limited to, ice, snow or wind in excess of the applicable building code 
parameters. 
  



Superior Recreational Products    1050 Columbia Drive    Carrollton, GA  30117        770.834.6120 

Acts of Nature: 
• This warranty does not cover natural disasters, such as earthquakes, shifts of 
terrain or tornados. If the structure is installed in an area exposed to hurricanes, 
removal of the shade fabric is required when a hurricane warning is issued. 
• Structures are warranted for winds up to 145mph only if shade canopies have 
been removed as per requirement set forth above in the Fabric paragraph. 
Removal and reinstallation must be performed by an authorized Superior Shade 
installer unless otherwise specified in writing. 
 
Installation: 
• Labor for the removal, installation and/or freight charges will only be covered in 
instances where Superior Shade or its agents have installed the shade 
structures. In all cases where units were not installed by Superior Shade or its 
agents, all labor for the removal, installation and/or freight will be at the 
customers’ expense and the warranty will only be applicable to the repair or 
replacement of the defective materials. 
 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 

  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. 



Item Price

Playground Equipment  

Playground Installation

TURNKEY TOTAL  

Contact



  

PROPOSAL #: 99183 

ACCOUNT:
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

DATE CREATED:
2/12/2021

 ACCOUNT REP:
Jesse Williams

 PREPARED FOR:   BILLING & SHIPPING:
  PRIMARY CONTACT:

Tom Chewning
 EMAIL:
tchewning@rmsnf.com

PHONE NUMBER:
+19046714204

 ORGANIZATION:
Riverside Management
Services

   BILLING ADDRESS: 
Riverside Management
Services
3813 Great Falls
Middleburg, FL 32068  

 SHIPPING ADDRESS: 
Rolling Hills at Lake Asbury
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy
Green Cove Springs, FL
32043  

Qty Product Price Total

1   4 POST SQUARE SHADE
Model: CUSTOM-RD203012IG
4 Post Square Shade 16' X 16' X 10' High WITH GLIDE ELBOW

Features Include:
Block up to 96% of harmful UV Rays
Fade, mildew and tear resistant
Breathable fabric allows hot air toescape
Engineered to withstand 80-150 mph winds
10 year limited warranty

$4,089.00 $4,089.00

Color TBD

1   ENGINEERED DRAWINGS - SRP SHADE
Model: DRAWINGS-srp
N/A

$880.00 $880.00

1 STEEL SURCHARGE
Model: CUSTOM-STEEL-SURCHARGE
STEEL SURCHARGE

$507.67 $507.67

1 CUSTOMER DISCOUNT
Model: CUSTOM-CDYTD001-000421
Customer Discount

$-350.00 $-350.00

Have questions about this quote?
Call 800-853-5316 or visit BYOPLAYGROUND.COM

Sub Total: $5,126.67

Sales Tax: $384.51

Shipping: $564.00

Total: $6,075.18

I APPROVE THIS PROJECT AND AM READY TO PLACE MY ORDER:
Thank you for the opportunity to quote your playground project. We accept Visa, Mastercard, Discover, personal & business
checks and purchase orders from government entities. All items must be paid for in advance of order unless prior arrangements
are approved. Approval and acceptance of this proposal may be executed by signing below and faxing or emailing back to the

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.byoplayground.com

https://www.byoplayground.com/


contact information listed above. By signing below you agree to the terms and conditions found here:
https://www.byoplayground.com/byo-terms-and-conditions

Please note, sales tax calculations are calculated upon invoicing due to tax rate changes and/or change orders. If you believe
you should be tax-exempt, please provide a tax exemption certificate prior to submitting a purchase order.

Authorized Purchaser: ______________________________________________      Date: _________________________

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.byoplayground.com

https://www.byoplayground.com/byo-terms-and-conditions
http://www.tcpdf.org


  

PROPOSAL #: 99218 

ACCOUNT:
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

DATE CREATED:
5/21/2021

 ACCOUNT REP:
Jesse Williams

 PREPARED FOR:   BILLING & SHIPPING:
  PRIMARY CONTACT:

Tom Chewning
 EMAIL:
tchewning@rmsnf.com

PHONE NUMBER:
+19046714204

 ORGANIZATION:
Riverside Management
Services

   BILLING ADDRESS: 
Riverside Management
Services
3813 Great Falls
Middleburg, FL 32068  

 SHIPPING ADDRESS: 
Rolling Hills at Lake Asbury
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy
Green Cove Springs, FL
32043  

COMMENTS & DETAILS:
Price quoted for delivery coordination and installation. NPC shall not be responsible for removing existing trees, limbs, roots etc.
Unless otherwise noted price excludes: sitework, site security, core drilling or cutting concrete or asphalt, permits, lift gates,
impact fees, debris/trash removal, and prevailing wages. Site must be clear, level and accessible at time of installation. The
customer is responsible for marking all Private underground utilities, NPC will call for Public Utility Locate.

Qty Product Price Total

1   PROFESSIONAL CERTIFIED INSTALLATION
Model: Installation
Certified installation by professional playground installers. Price includes
coordinating deliveries and unloading large equipment at the delivery
address listed on this proposal/purchase order.

$4,155.00 $4,155.00

Installation for NPC Quote #99183

This installation quote covers the following items:
- 4 Post Hip Shade (CUSTOM-RD203012IG)
- Customer Discount (CUSTOM-CDYTD001-000421)
- Engineered Drawings - SRP Shade (DRAWINGS-srp)

1   CUSTOM PRODUCT
Model: CUSTOM-PERMITTING
Permitting required for installation of playground equipment, shades,
shelters, etc.

$800.00 $800.00

Have questions about this quote?
Call 800-853-5316 or visit BYOPLAYGROUND.COM

Sub Total: $4,955.00

Sales Tax: $0.00

Shipping: $0.00

Total: $4,955.00

I APPROVE THIS PROJECT AND AM READY TO PLACE MY ORDER:
Approval and acceptance of this proposal may be executed by signing below and faxing or emailing back to the contact
information listed above. Unless prior arrangements are approved, a 50% deposit for NPC is due upon ordering. Balance is due
Net 15 upon substantial completion. By signing below you agree to the terms and conditions found here:
https://www.npcinstall.com/npc-terms-and-conditions

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.playgroundinstallations.com

https://www.playgroundinstallations.com/
https://www.npcinstall.com/npc-terms-and-conditions


Please note, sales tax calculations are calculated upon invoicing due to tax rate changes and/or change orders. If you believe
you should be tax-exempt, please provide a tax exemption certificate prior to submitting a purchase order.

Authorized Purchaser: ______________________________________________      Date: _________________________

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

405 Golfway West Drive - Suite 302 · St. Augustine, FL 32095 · Phone: 800-853-5316 · Fax: 904-808-8529 · www.playgroundinstallations.com

http://www.tcpdf.org




National Playground Construction Warranty 

National Playground Construction (NPC) pledges to its customers that all material, workmanship and/or 

building improvements provided in the course of installation and/or building project will be free of 

defects, of a specified quality and perform properly for a period of one year from the day of 

commencement of use, substantial completion of the project, or a date of notice of completion of the 

project, whichever occurs first. 

NPC will assign and deliver to owner all guarantees, warranties and quality instructions of all 

subcontractors, equipment manufacturers and material suppliers that are applicable to the project. 

Within 10 days of the first knowledge of any defect, or failure to operate properly, NPC is to be notified, 

in writing by owner or his/ her agents. NPC shall be given first opportunity to promptly repair, replace 

and/ or correct item found to be defective, or that fails to function properly, at no cost to the owner, 

within a reasonable period of time.  This warranty does not apply to any construction work that has 

been subjected to an accident, misuse and abuse, nor to any construction work that has been modified, 

altered, defaced, and/or repairs made/attempted by others. 

What is not covered in this warranty:  Under no circumstances shall NPC be liable by virtue of this 

warranty or otherwise for damage to any person or property whatsoever for any special, indirect, 

secondary or consequential damage of any nature arising out of the use or inability to use because of 

the construction defect.  NPC is not liable for repair conditions caused by chemical or sedimentary build 

up, misuse or abuse, failure to clean or maintain as specified by the equipment manufacturer, missing 

parts, structural changes, fire, freezing, electrical failure or surge, water damage, lightening, mud, 

earthquake, soil movement, soil sediment, storms, accidents, pest damage, vandalism, arson or acts of 

God.   

405 Golfway West Drive, Suite 302 | St. Augustine, FL 32095 | Phone: 800-853-5316 | Fax: 904-808-8529



Superior Recreational Products    1050 Columbia Drive    Carrollton, GA  30117        770.834.6120 

 

WARRANTY 
 

General Conditions: 
• The warranty set forth shall be the purchaser’s sole and exclusive warranty. 
• All warranties below are effective from the date of installation by Superior Shade, 
its subsidiaries or agents. 
• Superior Shade reserves the right to repair or replace any item covered by this 
warranty. 
• This warranty will be void if the structures are not paid for in full. 
• The warranty is void if the structures are not installed in strict compliance with the 
manufacturer specifications. 
• Purchaser shall notify Superior Shade or its agent in writing detailing any defect 
for which a warranty claim is being made. 
• Superior Shade shall not in any event be liable for indirect, special, consequential 
or liquidated damages. 
• Superior Shade specifically denies the implied warranties of fitness for a 
particular purpose and merchantability. 
• The warranty is void if any changes, modifications, additions or attachments are 
made to the structures or fabric without the written consent of the manufacturer. 
• No signs, objects, ornaments, fans, lights, fixtures or decorations may be hung 
from the top part of the structure, unless specifically designed and engineered by 
the manufacturer. These items may interfere with the fabric causing the warranty 
to be voided. 
 
Thread: 
• Superior Shade warranties its sewing thread for a period of eight years. 
• This warranties that the sewing thread will be free from defects in material and 
workmanship and will not be damaged by exposure to sunlight, weather and 
water. 
• All other warranties are disclaimed. 
• Labor for the removal, installation and/or freight charges, or tops with damage 
caused by thread will only be covered in instances where Superior Shade had 
installed the shade structures. In all cases where shade structures were not 
installed by Superior Shade or its agents, all labor for the removal, installation 
and/or freight will be at the customers’ expense and the warranty will only be 
applicable to the repair or replacement of the defective materials. 
 

devon.ward
Stamp



Superior Recreational Products    1050 Columbia Drive    Carrollton, GA  30117        770.834.6120 

 
Fabric: 
• Superior Shade fabrics carry a ten-year manufacturer’s warranty from the 
date of installation against failure from significant deterioration, 
breakdown, outdoor heat, cold or discoloration with the exception of the 
umbrella shade structures which carry a three-year warranty.  
• All fabric curtains, valences and flat vertical panels are not covered under the 
warranty. 
• Fabric is not warranted where it is installed on a structure that is not engineered 
and built by Superior Shade or its agents. 
• This warranty shall be void if damage to or failure to the shade structure is 
caused by contact with chemicals, misuse, vandalism or any act of God, 
including but not limited to, ice, snow or wind in excess of the applicable building 
code parameters. 
• All fabric tops are warranted for sustained winds up to 76mph (hurricane force 1) 
and for gusts of up to 3 seconds duration up to 90mph with no snow or ice 
accumulation. 
• The structures have been designed to eliminate any friction between the rafters 
and the fabric. The warranty will, therefore, be voided if any modification 
(temporary or permanent) is made to the rafter, cross pieces or ridge beams. 
• Labor for the removal, installation and/or freight charges will be covered in full for 
a period of twelve months where the shade structures supplied and installed by 
Superior Shade are defective. In all cases where the shade structures are not 
installed by Superior Shade or its agents, all labor for the removal, installation 
and/or freight will be at the customers’ expense and the warranty will only be 
applicable to the repair or replacement of the defective materials. 
• Superior Shade reserves the right, in cases where certain fabric colors have 
been discontinued, to offer the customer a choice of available colors to replace 
the warranted fabric of the discontinued color. The company does not warranty 
that any particular color will be available for any period of time and reserves the 
right to discontinue any color for any reason it may determine, without recourse 
by the owner of the discontinued fabric color. 
 
Steel: 
• The structural steel frames are covered for a period of twenty (20) years against 
failure due to rust corrosion or faulty workmanship. 
• Workmanship and painted surfaces are warranted for a period of twelve months. 
This warranty shall be void if damage to the steel frame or paint is caused by 
contact with chemicals, misuse, vandalism or any act of God, including but not 
limited to, ice, snow or wind in excess of the applicable building code 
parameters. 
  



Superior Recreational Products    1050 Columbia Drive    Carrollton, GA  30117        770.834.6120 

Acts of Nature: 
• This warranty does not cover natural disasters, such as earthquakes, shifts of 
terrain or tornados. If the structure is installed in an area exposed to hurricanes, 
removal of the shade fabric is required when a hurricane warning is issued. 
• Structures are warranted for winds up to 145mph only if shade canopies have 
been removed as per requirement set forth above in the Fabric paragraph. 
Removal and reinstallation must be performed by an authorized Superior Shade 
installer unless otherwise specified in writing. 
 
Installation: 
• Labor for the removal, installation and/or freight charges will only be covered in 
instances where Superior Shade or its agents have installed the shade 
structures. In all cases where units were not installed by Superior Shade or its 
agents, all labor for the removal, installation and/or freight will be at the 
customers’ expense and the warranty will only be applicable to the repair or 
replacement of the defective materials. 
 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 

  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 

































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2021 Assessments Receipts Summary

ASSESSED
# O&M UNITS 

ASSESSED
SERIES 2015A-1 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2015A-2 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2015A-3 
DEBT ASSESSED

SERIES 2020A-1 
DEBT ASSESSED

FY21 O&M 
ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

CBCP LANDCO PH3 247                                -                                  -                193,323.92                                -              172,393.65             365,717.57 
WALTHAM DEV 139                                -                165,981.25               97,015.05             262,996.30 

TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES (1) (2) 386                                -                                  -                193,323.92              165,981.25            269,408.70             628,713.87 

ASSESSED REVENUE TAX ROLL 761              174,000.58              136,800.46                 41,480.02                                -              348,975.00             701,256.05 

TOTAL ASSESSED 1147              174,000.58              136,800.46              234,803.94              165,981.25            618,383.70         1,329,969.92 

DUE / RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2015A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-2 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-3 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2020A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED  O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED

CBCP LANDCO PH3                101,095.60                                -                                  -                135,326.74                                -              129,295.23             264,621.97 
WALTHAM DEV                  74,048.14              116,186.88               72,761.28             188,948.16 

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIVED                175,143.74                                -                                  -                135,326.74              116,186.88            202,056.51             453,570.13 

TAX ROLL DUE / RECEIVED                     5,489.33              172,638.53              135,729.58                 41,155.32                                -              346,243.29             695,766.72 

TOTAL DUE / RECEIVED                180,633.07              172,638.53              135,729.58              176,482.06              116,186.88            548,299.80         1,149,336.85 

(1) A-3 Direct Assessments are due: 35% due 12/1/20, 4/1/21 and 30% due 9/1/21
(2)  O&M is due 25% by 10/1/20, 1/1/21, 4/1/21, 7/1/21

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION DATE RECEIVED
SERIES 2015A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-2 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2015A-3 
DEBT RECEIVED

SERIES 2020A-1 
DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED

1 11/18/2020 5,589.41                 4,394.43                 1,332.46                 -                           11,210.10             22,526.40             
2 12/1/2020 12,880.32               10,126.59               3,070.54                 -                           25,832.72             51,910.17             
3 12/4/2020 136,594.37             107,391.43             32,562.75               -                           273,953.22           550,501.77           
4 12/17/2020 14,583.16               11,465.38               3,476.48                 -                           29,247.94             58,772.96             
5 1/14/2021 1,791.65                 1,408.61                 427.11                     -                           3,593.34               7,220.71                
6 2/19/2021 131.15                     103.11                     31.27                       -                           263.04                   528.57                   
7 3/19/2021 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                         -                          
8 4/12/2021 551.16                     433.32                     131.39                     -                           1,105.40               2,221.27                
9 5/11/2021 517.31                     406.71                     123.32                     -                           1,037.53               2,084.87                

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           -                         

TOTAL RECEIVED TAX ROLL              172,638.53              135,729.58                 41,155.32                                -              346,243.29             695,766.72 

PERCENT COLLECTED 2015A-1 2015A-2 2015A-3 2020 O&M TOTAL
%  COLLECTED DIRECT BILL 0.00% 0.00% 70.00% 70.00% 75.00% 72.36%

% COLLECTED TAX ROLL 99.22% 99.22% 99.22% 0.00% 99.22% 99.22%
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 99.22% 99.22% 75.16% 70.00% 88.67% 86.42%



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 


































































































































































































































































	Board Letter
	Agenda
		III.	Approval of Minutes of the April 13, 2021 Meeting
	IV.	Acceptance of the Minutes of the April 13, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting
	VIII.	Ratification of Requisitions 
	IX.	Consideration of Audit Committee’s Ranking of Proposals
	Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank
	Grau & Associates

	X.	Consideration of Fiscal Year 2022 Proposal from Riverside Management Services, Inc
	XI.	Consideration of Resolution 2021-06 Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 and Setting a Public Date
	XIV. A. Attorney - E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding
	C.	Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters 
	D. 1. Operations	Report
	2.	BYO Proposal (Shade Umbrella)
	3.	BYO Proposal (Shade)
	XVII. A.	Balance Sheet & Income Statement
	B.	Assessment Receipt Schedule
	C.	Check Register

	Text Field 5:                  Rolling Hills at Lake Asbury
	Text Field 6: $8,403.75
	Text Field 7: $4,188.00
	Text Field 8: $4,215.75
	Text Field 9: To review our Installation process, we first assign a project manager to work with you in scheduling the delivery and installation. Our certified installers will receive and inspect all the items and our installation service has a one-year warranty.*Note Insurance Certificates Provided Upon Request
	Text Field 10:                                                       Jesse Williams (904) 417-6121


